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Financial Highlights B &=

OPERATING RESULTS %4&

For the year ended 31 December
BZ12A31HLEE
2011 P} [1] 2009 2008 2007

-5 -T-%F -—ETNF -—FT\F —EBLF
HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$’000
FET  FER  FER  FER  FER

Turnover EEH 372,726 328,120 367,056 699,317 507,494
Operating (loss) profit g (B1E) &aH (224,349) 52,942 66,171 97,887 77,576
Finance costs BERA (10,524) (779) (586) (16,405) (12,605)
(Loss) profit before taxation AR (E1E) R F (234,873) 52,163 65,585 81,482 64,971
Income tax credit (expense)  FTERIKE (1) 3,417 (12,947) (12,615) (20,563) (14,512)
(Loss) profit for the year REE (F1E) mF (231,456) 39,216 52,970 60,919 50,459
(Loss) profit attributable to: THIATREN
(&#8) %7
Owners of the Company KABIHEB A (229,858) 36,610 53,010 61,095 50,622
Non-controlling interests FEIERR (1,598) 2,606 (40) (176) (163)

(231,456) 39,216 52,970 60,919 50,459

FINANCIAL POSITION BfBUiR R

As at 31 December
M12831H
2010 2009 2008 2007

—2-BF —FTHE —TET\F —FBLF

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000  HK$000  HK$000

FEx FEx FEx FTExT FEx

Total assets waE 1,945,034 871,860 725102 794921 741,037
Total liabilities watE (908,167)  (164,845)  (74912)  (197,549)  (236,995)

1,036,867 707,015 650,190 597,372 504,042

Equity attributable to owners ~ ARQRIEB A
of the Company FEIGHER 1,034,844 703,601 649,382 596,959 503,453
Non-controlling interests JEP AR RE R 2,023 3,414 808 413 589

1,036,867 707,015 650,190 597,372 504,042

@ CGN Mining Company Limited /1 E#xTE3 G R A 7



Note:

Financial Highlights 1 & #HE

The consolidated results of the Group for the two years ended
31 December 2011 and 2010 and the assets and liabilities of the
Group as at 31 December 2011 and 2010 have been extracted
from the audited consolidated financial statements of the Group as
set out on pages 73 to 76 of the Annual Report.
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Corporate Information 2 & &

As at 23 March 2012 M2012563H23H
DIRECTORS =

Chairman and Non-Executive Director FEEBIHTES
Yu Zhiping ST

Executive Directors HITES

He Zuyuan (Chief executive officer)

8T (BEHTTE)

Li Zhengguang ZIEX

Zheng Xiaowei EpREEET
Non-executive Directors FHITES
Wei Qiyan BEE

Chen Zhiyu PRETF
Independent Non-executive Directors BYFHTES
Ling Bing EE

Qiu Xianhong B 5edt

Huang Jinsong EESIEVN
AUDIT COMMITTEE BEREES
Qiu Xianhong (Chairman) RSt (FE)
Wei Qiyan HEE

Ling Bing R
REMUNERATION COMMITTEE FMEEE
Qiu Xianhong (Chairman) R4t (/%)
Ling Bing EE

Huang Jinsong =R

He Zuyuan (BEEw

Li Zhengguang FIERX
NOMINATION COMMITTEE RBREZES

Yu Zhiping (Chairman)

REF (2/E)

He Zuyuan fAltE 7T

Ling Bing EE

Qiu Xianhong EB 5t

Huang Jinsong =R

AUTHORISED REPRESENTATIVES BERER

He Zuyuan fAlfE T

Cheung Hin Kiu sREET

COMPANY SECRETARY NEWE

Cheung Hin Kiu RERA
(ACIS (ICSA), ACS (HKICS), ACCA) (ACIS (ICSA), ACS (HKICS), ACCA)
(appointed on 31 March 2011) (20113 A31HEEZT)

@ CGN Mining Company Limited F EiZ &3 AR A &



Corporate Information 2 5 &

During the period from 18 August 2011 to 31 December 2011 R201158A18HE12831 0 A
DIRECTORS 55

Chairman and Non-Executive Director TEEIYITES
Yu Zhiping R

Executive Directors BITES

He Zuyuan (Chief executive officer) AET (BEHTE)
Li Zhengguang ZIEX
Non-executive Directors FHITES

Wei Qiyan BEE

Zheng Xiaowei EpREEET

Chen Zhiyu PRETF
Independent Non-executive Directors BYFHTES
Ling Bing EE

Qiu Xianhong B 5edt

Huang Jinsong EESIEVN

AUDIT COMMITTEE EREES
Qiu Xianhong (Chairman) BBt (£/E)
Wei Qiyan HES

Ling Bing R
REMUNERATION COMMITTEE FHEES
He Zuyuan (Chairman) At ()

Li Zhengguang FIEH

Ling Bing EE

Qiu Xianhong o S it

Huang Jinsong =
AUTHORISED REPRESENTATIVES BREAR

He Zuyuan fa]*87T

Cheung Hin Kiu SREE
COMPANY SECRETARY NRIWE
Cheung Hin Kiu sRERT

(ACIS (ICSA), ACS (HKICS), ACCA)
(appointed on 31 March 2011)

(ACIS (ICSA), ACS (HKICS), ACCA)
(FA2011F3 A31HEELT)
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Corporate Information 2 & &

During the period from 1 January 2011 to 17 August 2011

DIRECTORS

Executive Directors

Xu Xiaofan (Chairman)

Chen Zhiyu (Chief executive officer)
Guo Lin

Huang Zemin

Li Ke

Liu James Jin

Independent Non-executive Directors
Lui Tin Nang

Lee Kwong Yiu

Chong Cha Hwa

AUDIT COMMITTEE

Lui Tin Nang (Chairman)
Lee Kwong Yiu
Chong Cha Hwa

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

Lee Kwong Yiu (Chairman)
Lui Tin Nang

Chong Cha Hwa

Xu Xiaofan

Guo Lin

AUTHORISED REPRESENTATIVES

Liu James Jin
Cheung Hin Kiu (appointed on 31 March 2011)
Leung Wai Pong (resigned on 31 March 2011)

COMPANY SECRETARY

Cheung Hin Kiu
(ACIS (ICSA), ACS (HKICS), ACCA)
(appointed on 31 March 2011)

Leung Wai Pong

(CPA (Aust.), CPA)
(resigned on 31 March 2011)

@ CGN Mining Company Limited F EiZ &3 AR A &
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Corporate Information 2 5 &

REGISTERED OFFICE
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Hong Kong

COMPANY WEBSITE
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www.vital-pharm.com
(ceased to be effective from 3 January 2012)

PRINCIPAL BANKERS

The Hong Kong and Shanghai Banking Corporation Limited
The Agriculture Bank of China Limited

Bank of China (Hong Kong) Limited

Industrial and Commercial Bank of China (Asia) Limited
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REGISTRAR AND TRANSFER OFFICE

HSBC Trustee (Cayman) Limited
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HSBC House

68 West Bay Road
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Cayman Islands

AR EE

Cricket Square

Hutchins Drive

P.O. Box 2681

Grand Cayman KY1-1111
Cayman Islands

ERENRERE - #FK
FEEEME

N

B EE8I

NEH L

31E7TE

NGRS
http://www.irasia.com/listco/hk/cgnmining/index.htm

(FA20129F1 A3B 4R

www.vital-pharm.com
(FA2012F1 A3B =)

EBRAERRT
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REEERITRNBRAA
RERIT (B8) BRAT
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BB
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FHEHBERVBFEREER
ROBFRER

HSBC Trustee (Cayman) Limited

P.O. Box 484

HSBC House

68 West Bay Road

Grand Cayman

KY1-1106

Cayman Islands
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Corporate Information 2 5% ¥}

HONG KONG BRANCH SHARE REGISTRAR
AND TRANSFER OFFICE

Union Registrars Limited

18th Floor

Fook Lee Commercial Centre

Town Place, 33 Lockhart Road

Wanchai, Hong Kong

CGN Mining Company Limited F EiZ &3 AR A &
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" 0On behalf of the board of directors (the “Board”) of CGN Mining

Company Limited (“CGN Mining” or the “Company”) and its
subsidiaries (collectively referred to as the “Group”), | hereby
announce the audited consolidated results of the Group for the
year ended 31 December 2011.

Year 2011 has been a remarkable year for the Company. Over
the years, the Directors have been continuing in exploring
suitable business opportunities to broaden the revenue base
and to diversify the business scope of the Company. In March
2011, the Company entered into the Subscription Agreement
pursuant to which the Company has agreed to (i) allot and
issue to China Uranium Development Company Limited (“China
Uranium Development”) the Subscription Shares at a price of
HK$0.23 per Subscription Share and (ii) allot and issue to China
Uranium Development HK$600,000,000 Convertible Bonds
(“CB”) which can be converted into the Conversion Shares at an
initial Conversion Price of HK$0.23 per Conversion Share. The
Subscription Agreement has been approved at the extraordinary
general meeting held on 8 June 2011. Completion of the Share
Subscription and completion of the CB Subscription took place
simultaneously on 18 August 2011. The Group has explored new
investment opportunity through introducing new investor.

AANERRPERBEXERAA ((HE

BREE]HITART]) EREMNE R F
(ZEIrEE]) E5g([EF€)E
HAREBEHZE2011F12A31HIEFEZ
KEIZAR B -

011 FHEAREBMARHZ —EHARE -
EE-EUARTEEREEEEE - LUE
A =EWR LT EBERARAB ZER
I - R2011F3R - ARFEML—1H
REHE - BERE - A2ARE()Z
TR EE R 150,237 JT A E 18 () B 4
¥uHRARAA ((HEMEER] B
BERBETRBRG RGBT REE
600,000,000/ 7T & A #2 i & % T 7 B 8
¥BR - rJRRESFTRRRER (912
BTN 0.235 L) i BIRARAR
7 REWHFESDN2011F6 ASH MR
BFRAASESER - MRORERTH
fES 2 REER201148 180 [ B
RE - BESIAFHEREENRE &
EFRIRE#S -
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Chairman’s Statement = EH{EE

BUSINESS REVIEW

In year 2011, the consolidated turnover of the Group increased
by approximately 14% year-on-year to approximately HK$373
million from HK$328 million. The loss attributable to owners of the
Company amounted to approximately HK$230 million (2010: profit
attributable to owners of the Company of approximately HK$37
million).

The significant decrease in the results for the year 2011 as
compared with previous year was primarily attributable to the
effect of the change of industry regulations and internal integration
on our pharmaceutical and food business.

In addition, the Group discovered that since June 2011, there
has been a substantial drop in the sales of Osteoform compound
calcium amino acid chelate food capsule (“Osteoform Calcium
Food”). The food hygiene license (RMmEERFAIFE) obtained by
the Group was expired on 25 November 2011. Due to the change
of relevant rules and regulations relating to food hygiene, the food
hygiene licence for Osteoform Calcium Food was unable to obtain
its renewal and therefore the Group has stopped the production of
Osteoform Calcium Food.

As a result of the above events, the profits of the Group for the
year has been recorded a substantial decrease as compared
to year 2010, due to the impairment for goodwill amounted to
approximately HK$52 million, impairment for inventory amounted
to approximately HK$15 million, and staff compensation amounted
to approximately HK$44 million. Furthermore, due to integration of
production line (the “Integration”), which resulted in the idleness
of certain plants and equipment, impairment loss amounted to
approximately HK$72 million has been recognised for the property,
plant and equipment of subsidiaries of the Company.

Since the Group has shifted the manufacturing activities to China,
there is idle capacity of the production facilities in Hong Kong.
After careful consideration, the Group disposed of its property
situated in Shatin.

CGN Mining Company Limited F EiZ &3 AR A &

E 3 eI

20114 - AEE 476 & FEFBH3738
BB REAFREALS28F & B LIEM
H14% o RN THER AFEIGEEAV2308
SA T (20105 « AR EHEE AEGR
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2011 EE U K F AR - TBRE
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B201166 A RBFHBE AR - KEBEBIE
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o ARBAEEER ([ES])  AM
BYETHELEEHRE A2 EB
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Chairman’s Statement = EH L=

FUTURE PLANS AND PROSPECTS

The Board is of the view that, in the foreseeable future,
consolidation will be seen in the markets of food, pharmaceuticals
and properties of the PRC, with substantial pressure existing
in the operating environment. The Group will strengthen risk
management and scale down the existing pharmaceutical and
food business. On the other hand, the Group will expand the scale
of trading of natural uranium and proactively identify uranium
resource investment opportunities.

ACKNOWLEDGEMENTS

On behalf of the Board, | would like to express our heartfelt
gratitude to our business partners, customers and shareholders
for their relentless support. | would also like to thank all our staff
for their dedicated efforts over the past year.

Yu Zhiping
Chairman

Hong Kong, 23 March 2012
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‘_Th year 2011, the consolidated turnover of the Group increased

by approximately 14% year-on-year to approximately HK$373
million from HK$328 million. The loss attributable to owners of the
Company amounted to approximately HK$230 million (2010: profit
attributable to owners of the Company of approximately HK$37
million).

The significant decrease in the results for the year 2011 as
compared with previous year was primarily attributable to the
effect of the change of industry regulations and internal integration
on our pharmaceutical and food business.

In addition, the Group discovered that since June 2011, there
has been a substantial drop in the sales of Osteoform compound
calcium amino acid chelate food capsule (“Osteoform Calcium
Food”). The food hygiene license (RMmETEFFAIFE) obtained by
the Group was expired on 25 November 2011. Due to the change
of relevant rules and regulations relating to food hygiene, the food
hygiene licence for Osteoform Calcium Food was unable to obtain
its renewal and therefore the Group has stopped the production of

Osteoform Calcium Food.

@ CGN Mining Company Limited F EZIE AR A

20116 AREBABEEpeTgE T
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gement Discussion and Analysis EEE:1ia & 247

As a result of the above events, the profits of the Group for the
year has been recorded a substantial decrease as compared
to year 2010, due to the impairment for goodwill amounted to
approximately HK$52 million, impairment for inventory amounted
to approximately HK$15 million, and staff compensation amounted
to approximately HK$44 million. Furthermore, due to integration of
production line (the “Integration”), which resulted in the idleness
of certain plants and equipment, impairment loss amounted to
approximately HK$72 million has been recognised for the property,
plant and equipment of subsidiaries of the Company.

Since the Group has shifted the manufacturing activities to China,
there is idle capacity of the production facilities in Hong Kong.
After careful consideration, the Group disposed of its property
situated in Shatin.

As a whole, the loss attributable to owners of the Company
amounted to approximately HK$230 million (2010: profit
attributable to owners of the Company of approximately HK$37
million). Basic loss per share was HK10.31 cents (2010: earnings
of HK2.36 cents). The Group’s financial position remained strong
during the year, with approximately HK$1,264 million of bank
balance and cash as at 31 December 2011. Gearing ratio (total
borrowings/equity attributable to owners of the Company, net of
intangible assets and goodwill) as at 31 December 2011 was
45%.

TRADING OF NATURAL URANIUM

Over the years, the directors of the Company have been exploring
suitable business opportunities to broaden the revenue base
and to diversify the business scope of the Company. In March
2011, the Company entered into the Subscription Agreement
pursuant to which the Company has agreed to (i) allot and issue
to China Uranium Development the Subscription Shares at a
price of HK$0.23 per Subscription Share and (ii) issue and allot to
China Uranium Development HK$600,000,000 Convertible Bonds
(“CB”) which can be converted into the Conversion Shares at an
initial Conversion Price of HK$0.23 per Conversion Share. The
Subscription Agreement has been approved at the extraordinary
general meeting held on 8 June 2011. Completion of the Share
Subscription and completion of the CB Subscription took place
simultaneously on 18 August 2011. The proceeds from the Share
Subscription and the CB Subscription may finance new business
opportunities or investments of the Group. The Group can explore
new investment opportunity through introducing new investor.

BELMER  SEAREEHRED
RECABAETMIFERENRIGAEE
T MEBIHENRMUMBEETL A
EEBERF R 2% HME2010F KR TBE -
o ARBEEES (TS Am
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% ]
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230FE &8 7T (20105 : KA AEE A
FEIERFAI7TEE BT - FREANEIE
A10.317%8 1l (20105 E : BREKRBF)
2.3681l) - EBEEF AN BAMRIREF
EfE - M2011F12831H - EEHEFIR
THEHNIBESM1 264AEET - BAE
B (2HEE /MAEFEERS
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7+ K (ii)E 17 K B #600,000,0007% JT
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BEHAIIRRRER (NP AERIBIRRG
0.23%7T) #in sl - REHZED
20116 A8 A MR R FRI AR ESE
wo MIRMRBRERABRKRES 2RED
M2011F8H18H AR R F o B 1D R &
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EfEBHRESIRERTEES - EED
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Management Discussion and Analysis S B i & 247

The Group has commenced the trading of natural uranium during
the year. In October 2011, the Company and CGNPC Uranium
Resources Co., Ltd (“CGNPC-URC”) (presently known as “CGNPC
Nuclear Fuel Co., Ltd”) entered into a framework agreement in
relation to the sale of natural uranium by the Group to CGNPC-
URC during the effective period. During the year, the Group has
procured the first batch of natural uranium from overseas supplier.

PHARMACEUTICAL AND FOOD INDUSTRY

Product Sales

During the year, the Group’s turnover from sales of pharmaceutical
and food product was amounted to approximately HK$367 million,
an increase of approximately 13% as compared with the sales of
approximately HK$324 million for the corresponding year.

“Osteoform Calcium Food”, a food product of the Group

The Group’s food product “Osteoform Calcium Food” consists
of multiple minerals and vitamins. Its nutrition facilitates the
absorption of calcium by human body, thus helping the formation
of bone matrix and the maintenance of bone density. Turnover of
“Osteoform Calcium Food” amounted to approximately HK$181
million in year 2011, representing a decrease of approximately
12% as compared with last year. As mentioned above, the Group
has stopped the production of Osteoform Calcium Food.

“Osteoform Vitamins with minerals dispersible tablet”, a compound
vitamin and minerals product

“Osteoform Vitamins with minerals dispersible tablet”, a compound
product for the prevention and treatment of disease caused by
lack of vitamins and minerals, has been launched to the market
during the second quarter of year 2009. The sales turnover in
year 2011 was around HK$21 million, representing a growth of
approximately 17% as compared with last year.

CGN Mining Company Limited F EiZ &3 AR A &
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Management Discussion and Analysis S B i & 27

Madaus products

For the trading of overseas agency products of Madaus GmbH,
Germany, which include Legalon (Silymarin) and Uralyt-U
(Potassium Sodium Hydrogen Citrate Granules), etc., the Group
has recorded sales of approximately HK$93 million in year 2011,
representing a growth of approximately 82% as compared with
last year.

“Taurolite®”, a prescription medication capable of dissolving the
cholesterol stones formed in the gallbladder and bile-duct

“Taurolite®” Tauroursodeoxycholic acid capsule cures and
prevents liver diseases such as cholelithiasis and chronic bile
stasis. In the case of cholesterol stone smaller than 2cm, sufferers
may simply dissolve it by taking the medication without having
to undergo operation. “Taurolite®” has been launched into the
market during the second half of year 2009. The sales turnover
for year 2011 was around HK$19 million, representing a growth of
approximately 233% as compared with last year.

Vital Pharmaceuticals (Sichuan) Co., Ltd

During the year, the plant of Vital Pharmaceuticals (Sichuan) Co.,
Ltd. is principally responsible for the production of the Group’s
product “Aceclofenac Tablets”, “Aotianping” (Miglitol Tablets),
the new drug to gynaecology called “Hongjinxiaojie Tablet”,
“Mengtuoshisan” which is used for the treatment of diarrhoea
and “Domperidone Tablets” which is used for the treatment of
plenitude and indigestion.

Vital Pharmaceuticals (Sichuan) Co., Ltd. has applied to the
relevant government authorities for the split (“Split”) on 19 July
2011 and the Split has been completed. Vital Pharmaceuticals
(Sichuan) Co., Ltd. has been split into 2 companies, namely, /9)l|
HREIEAR /AT (Vital Pharmaceuticals (Sichuan) Co., Ltd.) and
a newly established company, PUJI|# R EZ#AER A7 (Sichuan
Vital Industrial Co., Ltd.).

12 [ 5 18+ K ZE o i
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Management Discussion and Analysis S B i & 247

Due to the integration of production line, certain plants and
equipment in Vital Pharmaceuticals (Sichuan) Co., Ltd. have
been idled. In view of that, on 16 August 2011, Yugofoil Holdings
Limited (“Yugofoil”), a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company,
entered into a conditional agreement with an independent third
party, Bright Future Pharmaceutical Holdings Limited (“Bright
Future”), pursuant to which Yugofoil agreed to dispose of and
Bright Future agreed to acquire the entire equity interest of Vital
Pharmaceuticals (Sichuan) Co., Ltd (the entity after completion of
the Split) at cash consideration of HK$51,000,000. The disposal of
equity interest was completed.

The Production Base in Wuhan, Hubei Province, the PRC

During the year, major production included a new drug
“Glimepiride orally disintegrating tablets” — medication for
diabetes, “Vital Fast” — a slow release flu medication, “Opin” —
a gynaecology biological drug and the Group’s food product
“Osteoform Calcium Food”. Production of “Osteoform Calcium
Food” has been stopped since August 2011.

Weiao (Chengdu) Pharmaceutical Co., Ltd. (#3R (&) &S
RN A])

Weiao (Chengdu) Pharmaceutical Co., Ltd. has received GMP
certificate at the end of January 2011. Since the launch of the
New GMP Standard, the existing GMP certificate will be expired
in December 2013. Improvement work shall be conducted
to comply with the new standard and substantial funding will
be required. Furthermore, the state industrial policy restricted
the production capacity of new drug and product submission,
and classified injection drug as high-risk medication. Taking
into account the cost effectiveness of the production, the
Company has suspended the production and dismissed the
staff of the product line in the first quarter. On 25 July 2011, Vital
Pharmaceuticals (Sichuan) Company Limited, a wholly-owned
subsidiary of the Company, entered into an agreement with
Sichuan Hebon Enterprise Company Ltd (PU)IIRABEEEEFR
‘A A]) (“Sichuan Hebon”), pursuant to which Vital Pharmaceuticals
(Sichuan) Company Limited agreed to dispose of and Sichuan
Hebon agreed to acquire the entire equity interest of Weiao
(Chengdu) Pharmaceutical Co., Ltd. (48 (B #) BBEATR A A)) at
a consideration of RMB1.5 million. Transfer of equity interest has
been completed.
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Sichuan Hengtai Pharmaceutical Company Limited

Sichuan Hengtai Pharmaceutical Company Limited is the major
sales arm of the Group. During the year, major sales products
included: “Osteoform Calcium Food”, Madaus products,
“Osteoform Vitamins with minerals dispersible tablet”, “Taurolite®”
and “Vital Fast” etc.

Property Investment
Property development

Chengdu Wenjiang Vital Property Development Company Limited
(AR T REER AR AR]) was incorporated in July 2010
for the purpose of developing the land acquired in May 2010 by
auction, which is a tract of state-owned land for construction use,
located in the Wancheng Community, Liucheng Street, Wenjiang
District, Chengdu, the PRC (A Bl Ak &0 5% 0T & 400 4ok 7 3% &8 B 4t
[&) with a total area of approximately 49,595 square meters.
Given the government’s austerity measures to curb the real estate
market, the property market in the PRC will remain uncertain. In
order to mitigate the risk, on 29 July 2011, Chengdu Vital Property
Co., Ltd. (BX &P 4 BB & ¥ H PR A 7)) entered into an agreement
with Sichuan Longhe Properties Limited (PU)IIERZZEBRAF)
and Chengdu Wenjiang Vital Property Development Company
Limited (BX B8 )T 4 B 5 b EE F 2 A R A 7]), pursuant to which
Chengdu Vital Property Co., Ltd. has agreed to dispose of and
Sichuan Longhe Properties Limited has agreed to acquire the Sale
Interest and the Sale Loan of Chengdu Wenjiang Vital Property
Development Company Limited at an aggregate consideration of
RMB230,609,000 (equivalent to approximately HK$281,230,000).
The Agreement has been approved by passing of a resolution
by the shareholders of the Company at the extraordinary general
meeting held on 8 September 2011. The said disposal has been
completed.

Leased investment property

Besides property development, property investment segment also
includes leased properties situated in Sichuan, the PRC. During
the year 2011, the properties had contributed around HK$5.5
million (2010: HK$4.2 million) rental income to the Group.
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BUSINESS PROSPECTS

The Board is of the view that, in the foreseeable future,
consolidation will be seen in the markets of food, pharmaceuticals
and properties of the PRC, with substantial pressure existing
in the operating environment. The Group will strengthen risk
management and scale down the existing pharmaceutical and
food business. On the other hand, the Group will expand the scale
of trading of natural uranium and proactively identify uranium
resource investment opportunities.

FINANCIAL REVIEW

Capital structure

As at 31 December 2011, the Company had in issue
3,332,586,993 ordinary shares (31 December 2010: 1,551,056,993
ordinary shares). During the year 2011, the Company had issued
1,781,530,000 new shares, in which 1,670,000,000 new shares
were allotted and issued to China Uranium Development at
HK$0.23 each and 111,530,000 new shares were issued for share
option exercised. The market capitalisation of the Company as
at 31 December 2011 was approximately HK$3,199 million. (31
December 2010: approximately HK$357 million).

Liquidity and financial resources

As at 31 December 2011, the Group did not have any outstanding
bank borrowing (31 December 2010: HK$71 million). Bank
balances and cash amounted to approximately HK$1,264 million
(31 December 2010: HK$80 million), including pledged bank
deposits of approximately HK$1 million (31 December 2010:
HK$12 million). The increase was mainly due to the issuance and
allotment of the Subscription Shares and CB, and the disposal of
assets during the year.

As at 31 December 2011,
facilities of approximately HK$88 million from banks in the PRC
(31 December 2010: HK$259 million). Unutilised banking facilities
amounted to approximately HK$88 million (31 December 2010:

the Group has obtained banking

HK$187 million). The average cost of financing was around 6%
per annum (2010: 6%). The Group has maintained sufficient
financial resources for business operation purpose. The Group
has no seasonality of borrowing requirement.
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The Group adopts a conservative funding and treasury policies
and objectives. During the year ended 31 December 2011, the
Group financed its operations mainly by internally generated
resources and the net proceeds from the issuance and allotment
of the Subscription Shares and CB.

As at 31 December 2011, in relation to cash and bank balances
amounting to approximately HK$1,264 million (31 December
2010: HK$80 million), approximately 7% (2010: 78%) of which
was denominated in RMB, approximately 93% (2010: 9%) was
denominated in Hong Kong dollar, approximately 11% and 2%
were denominated in US dollar and other currencies respectively
as at 31 December 2010.

Exposure to foreign exchange risk and Currency policy

The sales receipts of the Group were mainly denominated in RMB.
Purchases were denominated as to approximately 71% in USD
(2010: 42%), 19% in RMB (2010: 32%) and 10% in EURO (2010:
26%). Operating expenditures including selling and distribution
expenses and administrative expenses were denominated as to
approximately 67% in RMB (2010: 76%), others are in HKD, AUD,
USD and Macau Pataca, etc. In 2011, the Group did not enter into
forward contracts, interest or currency swaps or other financial
derivatives for hedging purpose. In 2010, in order to minimise the
exposure to exchange rate fluctuation, the Group has entered into
several forward foreign exchange contracts to lock up the price
of purchasing. However, the Group did not enter into any interest
or currency swaps, or other financial derivatives for hedging
purpose. During the year 2011, the Group did not experience any
material difficulty or negative effect on its operations or liquidity as
a result of fluctuations on currency exchange rates.
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Contingent liabilities

As at 31 December 2011, the Group had no material contingent
liabilities (2010: nil).

Key financial figures and ratios
Income statement item:

Gross profit margin: Due to the significant decrease in the average
selling price of Osteoform Calcium Food, the average gross profit
margin of the year 2011 was decreased to around 29%, when
compared with around 68% for the year 2010.

Other operating income: The other operating income for the year
2011 was approximately HK$32 million, which had been increased
by approximately HK$16 million from the year 2010. It was mainly
attributable to the increase of exchange gain and gain on disposal
of property, plant and equipment during the year.

Selling and distribution expenses: The Group had identified that
high selling and distribution expenses is a business risk and
aimed to tighten the outflow. However, due to the significant
decrease in the average selling price of Osteoform Calcium Food
as mentioned above, the ratio of selling and distribution expenses
to turnover slightly increased from 25% for the year 2010 to 26%
for the year 2011.

Administrative expenses: Although the Group focused on
tightening its budgetary control to cut down administrative costs,
the administrative expenses increased from approximately HK$73
million to HK$93 million as the Group made efforts to explore new
business opportunities during the year.

CGN Mining Company Limited F EiZ &3 AR A &

HAREE

MR2011512A831H » REBEWESE K5
SREE (20104 : &) -

FENMBEBENLL R
WERITBHHE :

ENE: ARENTRADFHEERK
i@ 2011 FE2FFHENETH®E
#)29%  2010F 2 F FHEM XA
68% °

HapEBURA : R2011FERE KLU
AK)B32EE BT BR2010FHMNAI16
BEB8ET WDHEIZHERFRERKE
RHEME - BE K& #H 2 WM
g( °

HERDHAY - KERHNKRERXZ -
UBREEHNEOSEE RS HERAZA
BESIREM SRR - AT - AR EX
Frat NS Rmr FHEBRE K -
R20114F - SHEM D HMA T e L
Bl 526% + 2010 )25 % EX AL N o

THRAY REEESHEHERAEE
PASTEITEO A - 1T B S BRF
N NFREHERmELN73aE ST £
A ZEBEEBTT °



Management Discussion and Analysis S B i & 27

Finance costs: The finance costs for the year 2011 mainly arose

from the CB issued and alloted during the year.

Income statement item:

Turnover (HK$’ million)

Gross profit margin

Selling and distribution expenses
(HK$’ million)

Gross profit margin after selling and
distribution expenses

(Loss) profit attributable to owners of
the Company/Turnover

(Loss) earning before interest, tax,
depreciation and amortisation
(“(LBITDA)” “EBITDA”) (HK$" million)

(LBITDA) EBITDA/Turnover

Statement of financial position item:

Gearing ratio: Taken into account of the issuance and allotment
of CB in the year 2011, total borrowing balance increased as
compared of 31 December 2010. As such, the gearing ratio was

increased to 45%.
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During the year, the Group had increased the demand of cash on
delivery policy to the distributors, the average trade receivable
turnover days therefore had dropped to around 46 days. Average
inventory turnover days decreased from 263 days to 74 days
since the Group had accelerated the sales of the inventory of
Osteoform Calcium Food in the fourth quarter of the year 2011.

Statement of financial position item: MR KIER !
Short-term bank loans RITER — 5 H
Long-term bank loans HBITER — K
Bank balances and cash WITHEERRE
Net tangible assets BREAETHAE
Gearing ratio BAEELE

Average trade receivable turnover days
Average inventory turnover days FERAS - T8
(excluding goods in transit)

As at 31 December 2011, the Group had approximately HK$1
million in bank balances and cash, HK$2 million in property,
plant and equipment, HK$1 million in prepaid lease payments on
land use rights, and HK$69 million in investment properties were
pledged as collateral to banks. For the year 2011, return on equity
was on average -22%.

EMPLOYEE INFORMATION

As at 31 December 2011, the Group had 100 employees,
comprising 1 in research and development, 5 in production,
2 in sales and marketing, 3 in engineering and 89 in general
administration and finance. 52 of these employees were located in
China and 48 in Hong Kong and Macau.
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The policies of employee remuneration, bonus, share option
scheme and training are commensurate with performance and
comparable to market rate. The Group encourages employees to
participate in external training programs to develop themselves
on a continuous basis, so as to improve staff quality to meet future
challenges and gain a competitive edge. Total staff costs for the
year 2011 amounted to approximately HK$120 million.

MAJOR TRANSACTION

Allot and issue Subscription Shares and CB

On 18 March 2011, the Company entered into the Subscription
Agreement pursuant to which the Company has agreed to (i)
allot and issue to China Uranium Development the Subscription
Shares at a price of HK$0.23 per Subscription Share and (ii)
allot and issue to China Uranium Development HK$600,000,000
CB which can be converted into the Conversion Shares at an
initial Conversion Price of HK$0.23 per Conversion Share. The
Agreement was passed at the extraordinary general meeting held
on 8 June 2011. The completion of the Share Subscription and the
CB Subscription took place simultaneously on 18 August 2011.

The Land disposal

On 29 July 2011, Chengdu Vital Property Co., Ltd. (FXEP#ERE
¥ BBRA7]) as vendor entered into an agreement with Sichuan
Longhe Properties Limited (PUJIIfEREZEHBRAF]) as purchaser
and Chengdu Wenjiang Vital Property Development Company
Limited (AXERRTAERFHERZEBR AR as target, pursuant
to which Chengdu Vital Property Co., Ltd. has agreed to dispose
of and Sichuan Longhe Properties Limited has agreed to acquire
the Sale Interest and the Sale Loan of Chengdu Wenjiang
Vital Property Development Company Limited at an aggregate
consideration of RMB230,609,000 (equivalent to approximately
HK$281,230,000). Details of the major transaction in relation to the
disposal have been set out in the Company’s circular dated 19
August 2011 which has been approved by passing of a resolution
by the shareholders of the Company at the extraordinary general
meeting held on 8 September 2011. The transaction has been
completed during the year.
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S CHAIRMAN AND NON-EXECUTIVE
DIRECTORS

Mr. Yu Zhiping, aged 48, joined the Company as chairman and
non-executive director in August 2011. Mr. Yu is a senior engineer.
He joined CGN Group in 1989, and is currently a general manager
of CGNPC Nuclear Fuel Co., Ltd (formerly known as “CGNPC
Uranium Resources Co., Ltd.”). Prior to that, he was the secretary
general of the Financial and Economic Affairs Committee, director
of the research centre, and a general manager of the strategic
planning department of China Guangdong Nuclear Power Holding
Corporation (“CGNPC”, the ultimate controlling shareholder of the
Company, collectively with its subsidiaries referred to as “CGN
Group”). Mr. Yu has over 22 years of experience in corporate
management and uranium exploration. Mr. Yu is currently the
Chairman of CGNPC Uranium Resource Xinjiang Co., Ltd, CGNPC
Uranium Resource Guangdong Co., Ltd and China Uranium
Development Company Limited. He is also a director of Kalahari
Minerals Plc (a listed company in London, stock code: KAH),
Extract Resources Ltd (a listed company in Australia, Toronto and
Namibia, stock code: EXT) and Taurus Mineral Limited. Mr. Yu
graduated with a bachelor degree in Engineering Mechanics from
Huazhong University of Science & Technology in 1985.
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EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. He Zuyuan, aged 46, joined the Company as the chief
executive officer, executive director and authorized representative
in August 2011. He joined CGN Group in 2007, and is currently
a deputy general manager of CGNPC Nuclear Fuel Co., Ltd..
He had served as a CFO of CGNPC Nuclear Fuel Co. Ltd.. Mr.
He has over 21 years of experience in uranium exploration and
financial management. He has worked for Nanjing Zhongda
Group for 3 years, serving as its Chief Financial Officer and
vice president. Mr. He is currently a director of Beijing Sino-Kaz
Uranium Resources Investment Company Limited, Energy Metals
Ltd. (a listed company in Australia, stock code: EME), China
Uranium Development Company Limited, Kalahari Minerals Plc (a
listed company in London, stock code: KAH), Extract Resources
Ltd (a listed company in Australia, Toronto and Namibia, stock
code: EXT), Taurus Mineral Limited and Semizbay-U LLP. Mr. He
graduated with a bachelor degree in geological economics from
East China Institute of Geology in 1988 and was also awarded an
MBA degree from Tsinghua University.

Mr. Li Zhengguang, aged 39, joined the Company as an
executive director in August 2011. He joined CGN Group in 2008,
and is currently a deputy head of financial department of CGNPC
Nuclear Fuel Co. Ltd.. Mr. Li has over 16 years of experience in
financial management. He has worked for China Construction
Bank, serving as a deputy head and then as head of the Finance
Department of Shanxi Changzhi Branch. Mr. Li is currently a
director of CGNPC URC Logistics (Beijing) Co., Ltd. and Newkum
Inc.. Mr. Li graduated with an MBA degree from Tsinghua
University in 2008.

Ms. Zheng Xiaowei, aged 45, joined the Company as a non-
executive director in August 2011 and was re-designated as
an executive director in March 2012. Ms Zheng worked in the
finance department and planning department of CGNPC during
1998-2002. She is currently the Chief Legal Advisor and Company
Secretary of CGNPC Nuclear Fuel Co. Ltd. and a director of
the following companies: Beijing Sino-Kaz Uranium Resources
Investment Company Limited, Newkum Inc., CGNPC URC
Logistics (Beijing) Co., Ltd, Energy Metals Ltd. (a listed company
in Australia, stock code: EME) and China Uranium Development
Company Limited. Prior to that, she served as a head of the
investment and legal department of CGNPC Nuclear Fuel Co. Ltd.
Ms. Zheng has over 15 years of experience in investment, project
management and corporate governance. Ms. Zheng graduated
with a bachelor degree of industrial automation from Zhejiang
University in 1988 and was also awarded a master degree of
information engineering in 1992.
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NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Wei Qiyan, aged 44, joined the Company as a non-executive
director in August 2011. He is a senior engineer and holder of
doctorate degree in Management. Mr. Wei joined CGN Group
in 1991, and is currently a deputy general manager of CGNPC
Nuclear Fuel Co., Ltd. Prior to that, he served as the head of the
planning and contract department and the contract manager
of the engineering department in Taishan Nuclear Power Joint
Venture Co., Ltd. Mr. Wei has over 20 years of experience
in nuclear fuel, nuclear power plant technology, contract
management and corporate management. Mr. Wei graduated with
a master degree in engineering from Tsinghua University in 1991
and received a doctorate degree in management from Huazhong
University of Science and Technology in 2007.

Mr. Chen Zhiyu, aged 50, joined the Group in November 2009
and was re-designated from an executive director to a non-
executive director of the Company in August 2011. He ceased
to be the chief executive officer of the Company in August 2011.
He graduated with a bachelor degree in Science from Southwest
China Normal College (7§ 7 A & £ %) (presently known as
Southwest University) in 1982 and a master degree in Economics
from Southwestern University of Finance and Economics (7 &
BA & KE28) in 1990. Mr. Chen has over 10 years of experience in
pharmaceutical industry. He was the general manager of Beijing
Xianmai Medicine Company Limited (it 3 5 18 % % 5 [R A a))
from 2000 to 2002, and the general manager and chairman of
Guangdong Suntop Pharmaceutical Co., Ltd. (BRI{Z R % AF
fR A7) from 2003 to October 2009. As at the date of this report,
Mr. Chen still has approximately 52% shareholding in the said
Guangdong Suntop Pharmaceutical Co., Ltd..
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INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Ling Bing, aged 45, a qualified lawyer in the PRC, and
is currently a professor of the Faculty of Law of the Chinese
University of Hong Kong, Mr Ling joined the Company in
August 2011. Mr. Ling is also the secretary of the International
Law Association (ILA) (Hong Kong Chapter), a member of the
Executive Council of the Chinese Society of International Law, a
member of Constitutional Affairs Committee of the Law Society of
Hong Kong, a consultant to the research centre of law of the sea
of School of Law of Tsinghua University, a consultant to the Centre
of Comparative Law and Transnational Law of Tilburg University
in the Netherlands and an external consultant for both the LLM
Program in Chinese Law of the Faculty of Law of the University
of Hong Kong and the LLM Program of the Open University of
Hong Kong. Mr. Ling was a visiting professor of the Law School
of Tsinghua University, an adjunct professor of School of Law
of Fudan University, a visiting professor of Law School of the
University of Michigan, and a tutor of the Institute of International
Law of Peking University. Mr. Ling has over 21 years of experience
in Business Law teaching and research. Mr. Ling has an LLB
degree from Peking University and an LLM degree from the
University of Michigan.

Mr. Qiu Xianhong, aged 49, a Certified Public Accountant in the
PRC and a senior accountant. Mr. Qiu joined the Company in
August 2011. Mr. Qiu is a partner of Beijing QQCPA Accounting
Firm. Mr. Qiu is also a finance consultant to China Institute of
Strategy and Management. Mr. Qiu was the deputy head of the
financial department and asset management department of China
National Packaging Corporation, and the deputy director of the
Financial Department of China Patent Bureau. Mr. Qiu has over 27
years of experience in financial accounting, financial management
and auditing. Mr. Qiu graduated with a bachelor degree in financial
accounting from Jiangxi University of Finance and Economics.

Mr. Huang Jinsong, aged 42, an associate professor of Corporate
Management of the School of Economics and Management of
Beijing University of Aeronautics and Astronautics, joined the
Company in August 2011. Mr. Huang has worked as the chief
consultant to Beijing Zhengxinchuangye Investment Consulting
Company Limited for 3 years. Mr. Huang has over 12 years of
experience in corporate reorganization and development strategy.
Mr. Huang has a master degree and a doctorate degree in
Management, both of which are from Tsinghua University.

BMYFHITES

EESE  BLF455% 0 BB EEMEB
EER BEEABEERXARBERES
B 0 #% - % e £ 20118 A I A KRR
Al BEAEBRAERKECREEHRSE
BEOEWER PREREZZ2SEKE
= BEEZMCEREKLEESEE -
TEEAEBL BRI EAEROEM
RETRERNBLBEZMBEREZkR
B BEARBEEERPBRIEEZE
THEBRINTEBRMNESARAAEL
BIETHERRINTERERM AR ETE
EEERNEEZERGBHEER  BEERE
EERRBRAE  ERERTABEE
B 5 8 25035 A0 4 K B2 B B A Bt 92 P B
o BT ERERBIBAAFHELAHERN
RHA &S - ZEERBILRKREELEE
TEMMERTRETNEABE T B4 -

BREB A - IMF495% - AAPEEM
SEAER - SAEETANEE - Bk AE
M2011F8 A I AR R R] o Bf 5L £/ 7E
EAERE2CBREEMEEMERE
FRAIGEA - BIETHEEKEKEERE
MEGVBERER - BEESETHER
HANRPBEIEET  EETEHI
FTEMFTBEEFNBHBERRR - B
FEEABRBB2TFNMBEE  BBER
RENER BAERERNTAMEX
2. gseran (MKgst) -

EYMELE  BE405 0 BEILEMZE
MARBLEHEERDRPEERERIHK
oo EEEN2011FSAIARR A -
BEEBHEILREERIXEREBANER
NEILESF - EAHEEAAA - Jik
£ BBBBI12F /b EEHAMERBE
KB BrEERBBEEREETESEEL
AE LA -

ANNUAL REPORT 2011 —ZF——FF @



Profile of Directors and Senior Management EE Kk SR EEE A B/

SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Mr. Li Xianli, aged 38, joined the Company as the Chief Financial
Officer (CFQ) in February 2012. Mr Li is currently a non-practicing
member of The Chinese Institute of Certified Public Accountants.
He graduated from the Central University of Finance and
Economics with a bachelor degree in economics in 1996. From
1996 to 2000, Mr. Li was involved in the financial management
work in the finance department of CGNPC. From April 2010 to
February 2012, Mr. Li was the executive director of Silver Grant
International Industries (“Silver Grant”) (Stock code:171), whose
shares are listed on the The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited, during which, he was also the Deputy General Manager
of Silver Grant from September 2010 to January 2012. Mr. Li
has over 10 years of experience in accounting and financial
management.

Ms. Guo Lin, aged 48, a former executive director of the
Company. She is a director of Sichuan Vital Industrial Co., Ltd,
a subsidiary of the Company. Ms. Guo was awarded a bachelor
degree in Economics from Hunan Finance and Economics Institute
in 1984 and a master degree from Zhongnan Industrial University
in 1993. She was a lecturer in Hunan Finance and Economics
Institute and Zhongnan Industrial University and also worked as a
manager of an investment bank. Ms. Guo joined the Group in June
2001 and was appointed as an executive director of the Company
on 1 January 2008 and resigned as an executive director of the
Company in August 2011.
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Mr. Li Ke, aged 50, a former executive director of the Company.
He is a director of Sichuan Vital Industrial Co., Ltd. and Chengdu
Vital Property Co., Ltd, subsidiaries of the Company. He graduated
with a bachelor degree in medicine from Sichuan Medical Institute
(P9I & 2B3) in 1982. He has over 10 years of experience in
pharmaceutical industry and 9 years of experience in real estate
industry. Mr. Li was a technician in Fourth Sichuan Chengdu
Pharmaceutical Factory (P9)I|AXEBELBEIRER) from 1982 to 1987.
He worked with 999 Group (= L{bZ5%E]) from 1994 to 2006, as
a deputy head of development department, a general manager
of Yaan Sanjiu Pharmaceutical Co., Ltd. (% = &£ FR A R])
and a general head of Chengdu Sanjiu Investment Management
Co., Ltd. (BR#=NIKEEEBRATR]). He joined the Company
as an executive director in November 2009 and resigned as an
executive director of the Company in August 2011.

Mr. Guo Wei Ping, aged 53, is the general manager of Wuhan
Weiao Pharmaceutical Co. Ltd, a subsidiary of the Company.
Mr. Guo graduated from Luzhou Chemical Engineering College
with a diploma in organic synthetics in 1982 and Huaxi Medical
University with a diploma in pharmacy. He worked for Chengdu
Fourth Pharmaceutical Factory for almost 20 years and the last
position he held was deputy technical manager. Mr. Guo joined
the Group in 1998.
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_The Company is committed to establishing and fulfilling a good
corporate governance practices and procedures, by ensuring
a quality Board, sound internal control, and transparency and
accountability to all shareholders.

CODE ON CORPORATE GOVERNANCE
PRACTICES

Throughout the year ended on 31 December 2011, the Company
was in compliance with the code provisions set out in the Code
on Corporate Governance Practices (“CG Code”) contained in
Appendix 14 of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on
The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Listing Rules”),
except for the deviation from the code provision E.1.2.

Code provision E.1.2 of the CG Code provides that the Chairman
of the independent board committee (if any) should be available to
answer questions at any general meeting to approve a connected
transaction or any other transaction that is subject to independent
shareholders’ approval. Mr. Ling Bing, the Chairman of the
Independent Board Committee, did not attend the extraordinary
general meeting of the Company, held on 28 November 2011, by
the reason of his business trip.

Save as the aforesaid and in the opinion of the Directors, the

Company has met the code provisions set out in the CG Code for
the year ended 31 December 2011.
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MODEL CODE FOR SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted the Model Code as set out in
Appendix 10 of the Listing Rules as the principle standards of
securities transactions for directors of the Company. Save as
disclosed herein, all directors have confirmed, in response to the
specific enquiry made by the Company that they have compiled
with the required standard set out in the Model Code during the
year ended 31 December 2011. Details of non-compliance and
remedial steps taken by the Company are as follow:

According to The Codes on Takeovers and Mergers and Share
Repurchases (the “Takeovers Code”) published by the Securities
and Futures Commission (the “SFC”), the offer period of the
Company starts when an announcement is made of a proposed or
possible offer and ends whichever is the latest of the date when
the offer is accepted, lapsed or withdrawn. When an offer period
begins, the respective associates of the Company must disclose
their dealings in any securities of the Company.

Reference is made to the Company’s announcement dated
31 March 2011 (the “Joint Announcement”) regarding the
proposed subscription of shares of the Company and the
proposed subscription of convertible bonds offered by China
Uranium Development Company Limited. The offer period of
the Company starts on 31 March 2011, the date of the Joint
announcement, and ends on 8 June 2011, the date of EGM
approving the Subscription Agreement (as defined in the Joint
Announcement) and the transactions contemplated thereunder
and the Whitewash Waiver (as defined in the Joint Announcement).

Ms. Zeng Qingling’s late submission of disclosure form

Ms. Zeng Qingling is the wife of Mr. Liu James Jin, a former
executive director of the Company. Under class (3) of the
definition of “associate” of the Takeovers Code, Ms. Zeng Qingling
is an associate of the Company.
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On 1 April 2011 and 4 April 2011, Ms. Zeng Qingling bought a
total of 1,000,000 shares of the Company. As required by Rule 22
of the Takeovers Code (Disclosure of dealings during offer period),
Ms. Zeng Qingling is required to disclose any dealing during the
offer period from 31 March 2011 to 8 June 2011. Disclosure must
be made no later than 10:00 a.m. on the business day following
the date of the dealing.

Ms. Zeng Qingling submitted the disclosure of dealing form to
SFC on 11 April 2011.

Ms. Tao Bei Di’s late submission of disclosure form

Ms. Tao Bei Di is the daughter of Mr. Tao Lung, who is one of the
shareholders of Perfect Develop Holding Inc. Under class (3) of
the definition of “associate” of the Takeovers Code, Ms. Tao Bei Di
is an associate of the Company.

On 6 April 2011, Ms. Tao Bei Di bought 250,000 shares of
the Company. As required by Rule 22 of the Takeovers Code
(Disclosure of dealings during offer period), Ms. Tao Bei Di is
required to disclose any dealing during the offer period from 31
March 2011 to 8 June 2011. Disclosure must be made no later
than 10:00 a.m. on the business day following the date of the
dealing.

Ms. Tao Bei Di submitted the disclosure of dealing form to SFC on
12 April 2011.

Save as disclosed above, the Directors have complied with the
Model Code.

BOARD COMPOSITION AND BOARD PRACTICES

The Board is responsible for the oversight of the Group’s business
management, strategic decisions, performance and affairs with the
objective of enhancing shareholders interest. The Board delegated
certain authorities and responsibilities to the management of
the Group. In addition, the Board has also delegated various
responsibilities (such as determining remuneration) to several
committees.
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As at 31 December 2011, the Board comprises 2 Executive
Directors (“EDs”), 4 Non-executive Directors (“NEDs”) and
3 Independent Non-executive Directors (“INEDs”) whose
biographical details are set out on pages 24 to 27. All the INEDs
have appropriate professional qualifications, or accounting or
related financial management experience.

Except for Mr. Huang Jianming, who resigned as Director of the
Company on 11 November 2009, who is the brother of Mr. Huang
Zemin (resigned as Director of the Company on 18 August 2011),
who was appointed as Director of the Company on 11 November
2009, the Board members have no financial, business, family
or other material/relevant relationships with each other. Such
balanced board composition ensuring a strong independence
exists across the Board and has met the recommended practice
under the Code on CG for the Board to have at least 1/3 in
number of its members comprising INEDs.

The Company has received from each of the INEDs, the written
confirmation of their respective independence pursuant to
Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. The Company, based on such
confirmation, considers all the INEDs as independent.

All Directors are subject to retirement by rotation once every three
years in accordance with the Company’s Articles of Association
and the CG Code.

The Board has four scheduled meetings a year at quarterly
interval and meets as and when required. Its members have full
access to relevant information both at the meetings and at regular
intervals. Apart from regular Board meetings, the Chairman shall
hold meetings with the INEDs without the presence of EDs at least
once every year.
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During the year, the Board held 24 meetings. The attendance of

the Directors at the meetings is set out as follows:

WAEE EFEAMAREH  EF
EEEFERELERMT

Executive Directors

He Zuyuan (Chief Executive Officer)
(appointed on 18 August 2011)

Li Zhengguang (appointed on 18 August 2011)

Zheng Xiaowei (appointed on 18 August 2011 as
non-executive Director and re-designated as
executive Director on 15 March 2012)

Xu Xiaofan (resigned on 18 August 2011)

Liu James Jin (resigned on 18 August 2011)

Guo Lin (resigned on 18 August 2011)

Huang Zemin (resigned on 18 August 2011)

Li Ke (resigned on 18 August 2011)

Non-Executive Directors

Yu Zhiping (Chairman)
(appointed on 18 August 2011)

Wei Qiyan (appointed on 18 August 2011)

Chen Zhiyu (re-designated from an
executive Director to a non-executive Director on
18 August 2011)

Independent Non-executive Directors

Ling Bing (appointed on 18 August 2011)

Qiu Xianhong (appointed on 18 August 2011)
Huang Jinsong (appointed on 18 August 2011)
Lui Tin Nang (resigned on 18 August 2011)
Lee Kwong Yiu (resigned on 18 August 2011)
Chong Cha Hwa (resigned on 18 August 2011)

Board papers are circulated not less than three days before
the Board meetings to enable the Directors to make informed
decisions on matters to be raised at the Board meetings. The
Company Secretary and the accountant shall attend all regular
Board meetings to advise on corporate governance, statutory
compliance, accounting and financial matters when necessary.
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Board minutes are kept by the Company Secretary of the
Company and are circulated to the Directors and are open for
inspection by the Directors.

The Company Secretary of the Company shall provide
professional advice and information to the Directors. In addition,
the Directors enable, upon the reasonable request, to seek
independent professional advice in appropriate circumstances,
at the Company’s expenses. The Board shall resolve to provide
separate appropriate independent professional advice to the
directors to assist the relevant directors to discharge their duties.

Each newly appointed Director is provided with a package of
orientation materials setting out the duties and responsibilities of
Directors under the Listing Rules, related ordinance and relevant
regulatory requirements of Hong Kong. All newly appointed
Directors have confirmed that they have received directors’
training and declared their understanding of their respective
responsibilities under the Listing Rules.

Appropriate insurance cover has been arranged in respect of
legal action arising from the business of the Group against the
Directors.

NOMINATION COMMITTEE

During the year ended on 31 December 2011, the Company does
not have a nomination committee for appointment of new Directors
to the Board. The responsibilities of identifying and selecting
suitably qualified individuals to become members of the Board are
undertaken by the Board collectively. Where the Board considers
necessary or desirable to appoint a new member to the Board
(whether to fill a casual vacancy or otherwise), each member of
the Board may nominate suitable individual(s) as candidate(s) of
member(s) of the Board for the decision of the Board. In selecting
a suitable candidate to become a member of the Board, the Board
will consider various criteria such as education, qualification,
experience, skills and possible contribution of such candidate.
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Throughout the year 2011, the Board had reviewed the structure,
size and composition (including the skills, knowledge and
experience) of the Directors, and made recommendations
regarding further refinement of the Board composition, to tie in
development and fill up casual vacancy. As such, Mr. He Zuyuan
and Mr Li Zhengguang had been appointed as Executive Director
on 18 August 2011; and Mr. Yu Zhiping, Ms Zheng Xiaowei,
Mr. Wei Qiyan had been appointed as Non-Executive Director
on 18 August 2011; and Mr. Ling Bing, Mr. Qiu Xianhong and
Mr. Huang Jinsong had been appointed as Independent Non-
Executive Director on 18 August 2011. In addition, the Board had
also assessed the independence of Independent Non-executive
Directors during the year 2011.

Pursuant to the relevant requirements of the Listing Rules, the
Company established a nomination committee (“Nomination
Committee”) on 15 March 2012. The chairman of the Nomination
Committee is Mr. Yu Zhiping, and the members of the Nomination
Committee include Mr. He Zuyuan, Mr. Ling Bing, Mr. Qiu
Xianhong and Mr. Huang Jinsong. The Nomination Committee
comprises a majority of independent non-executive directors.

CHANGES OF DIRECTORS

Pursuant to the written resolution signed by all Directors on 17
August 2011, the Board has approved the following changes
in the composition of the board of directors with effect from 18
August 2011:

Resignation of directors:

(1) Mr. Xu Xiaofan resigned as the chairman, the executive
Director and a member of the remuneration committee;

(2) Mr. Liu James Jin resigned as an executive Director and an
authorized representative under the Companies Ordinance

and the Listing Rules;

(3) Ms. Guo Lin resigned as an executive Director and a
member of the remuneration committee;

(4) Mr. Huang Zemin resigned as an executive Director;

(5) Mr. Li Ke resigned as an executive Director;
(6) Mr. Lee Kwong Yiu resigned as an independent non-

executive Director, the chairman of remuneration committee
and a member of audit committee;

CGN Mining Company Limited F EiZ &3 AR A &

R2011F  BEESERFTETAHLEE -
MIERKE (BIEHEE  MERLER) -
M EHE—TRASEETHAXIED
HEEER ATHEREFENI2EME -
&R MIEMERZR - MAETEE
MEENRECR2011F8A18HEE
EARITES  MEETFLAL - BEER
Zt - BEELEDR20114F8A18H
BEERIENTES MERLE - B
Sk E R E N SE A B R201148 A
18AEZEABUIERNITES - B
EEEER20MFTE T BIUIERTE
v hvA 3

REEMARAUBEFTRK - RRIER2012
FIAGHRUIRRZE S ([IRBREB
gl - RBRLZEEZEREARE TR
EEM MKEREMBETLEE Y ER
S B EREDNIELE - A
ZEENBUBMY IR TESHAZEH -

EECEH
RIEC0ONFESAITHITBEEEHEZE
HmR#F EFTSCHEATETSHEMK
2 E) - B2011F8A18H AR

EEZBMT
(1) HBPRAEAEDEETIFE  $H17E
ERFMEE X EMS

(2) BRELECHINTEERRE
RENEG R EWR R AT R E 2 K
RER KRBT -

(3) WAL EEENTEERT
EEENARS

(4) ZERLECDBHOTCHTESZH
7%

(5) FHALCERINTESRRY
(6) FERBRELCBEBILIFENTE

5 FHZESIRRERZE
BB B



Corporate Governance Report (¥ &85 &

(7) Mr. Lui Tin Nang resigned as an independent non-executive
Director, the chairman of audit committee and a member of
remuneration committee; and

(8) Mr. Chong Cha Hwa resigned as an independent non-
executive Director, a member of audit committee and a
member of remuneration committee.

Appointment of directors:

(1 Mr. Yu Zhiping was appointed as a chairman and non-
executive Director;

2) Mr. He Zuyuan was appointed as an executive Director,
chief executive officer, chairman of remuneration committee
and an authorized representative under the Companies
Ordinance and the Listing Rules;

(3) Mr. Li Zhengguang was appointed as an executive Director
and a member of remuneration committee;

(4) Mr Wei Qiyan was appointed as a non-executive Director
and a member of audit committee;

(5) Ms Zheng Xiaowei was appointed as a non-executive
Director;

(6) Mr Ling Bing was appointed as an independent non-
executive Director, a member of remuneration committee
and a member of audit committee;

(7) Mr Qiu Xianhong was appointed as an independent non-
executive Director, chairman of audit committee and a
member of remuneration committee; and

(8) Mr Huang Jinsong was appointed as an independent
non-executive Director and a member of remuneration
committee.

Re-designation of director

Mr. Chen Zhiyu was re-designated from an executive Director to
a non-executive Director and ceased to be the Chief Executive
Officer.

RERLECDBHERILIFNITE
= BERZEBEIRNMFMHEZR
SRERT &

RREELCDEHIEBIIEHNTE
£ ERZEEXNENFIHESR
gKEBE

BEECERfE:

(1)

ﬁ§$~

AETEEREZERRITES -
BRATE FHEESETFEHR
RIR R ARSI N E TR BIFTARE
IR

EENEZTARITE ST
ZEGKE ;

REEARLRZERFATES
REVZEEGKE

%*%ﬁiﬁéﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁ%

%

BEEEERETERBIIFNTE
= VFHEZEEeXREREREZER

K8

I]

Rt e £ R T AB L IFNIT
%% EREZESTFERFTINE
g8 s &

BEYMAELEZERBULIFHRTT
EERFHEREENE

BB

REF

EEBRATEFTAT RN

EXNTBREIERATE B -

ANNUAL REPORT 2011 —ZF——FF @



Corporate Governance Report {t ¥ &8 &

Pursuant to the written resolution signed by all Directors on 15
March 2012, the Board has approved the following changes with
effect from 15 March 2012:

(1) the re-designation of Ms. Zheng Xiaowei (EEE%AT) from a
non-executive Director to an executive Director; and

(2)  the re-designation of Mr. Qiu Xianhong (B %t ) from a
member of the Remuneration Committee to the chairman of
the Remuneration Committee and the re-designation of Mr.
He Zuyuan (fa]#87T) from the chairman of the Remuneration
Committee to a member of the Remuneration Committee.

CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER
(“CEO’!)

The position of the Chairman and CEO are held by separate
individuals to maintain and preserve independence and an
effective segregation of duties respecting management of the
Board and the day-to-day management of the Group’s business.

The Chairman provides leadership to the Board so that the
Board works effectively and discharges its responsibilities and
that all key and appropriate issues are discussed by the Board
in a timely manner. All Directors have been consulted about any
matters proposed for inclusion in the agenda. The Chairman has
delegated the responsibility for drawing up the agenda for each
Board meeting to the Company Secretary.

The CEO is responsible for the business directions and
operational decisions of the management and performance of the
Group. The CEO together with the other EDs and management
team, is responsible for the implementation of strategies adopted
by the Board and assuming full accountability to the Board for the
operations of the Group.

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The Company established its Remuneration Committee on 30
June 2005 and comprises 2 EDs and 3 INEDs.

The principle responsibilities of the Remuneration Committee
include making recommendations to the Board on the Company’s
policy and structure for all remuneration of executive directors
and senior management and reviewing the specific remuneration
packages of all EDs and senior management by referencing to
the corporate goals and objectives resolved by the Board from
time to time. The detailed terms of reference of the Remuneration
Committee are posted on the Company’s website in March 2012,
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The Remuneration Committee meets regularly to review human
resource issues, including group-wide remuneration policies
and long-term incentive scheme (share option scheme). The
emoluments of Directors are based on the working experience,
skill, knowledge and involvement in the Company’s affairs of each
Director and are determined by referencing to the Company’s
performance and profitability, as well as remuneration benchmark
in the industry and the prevailing market conditions.

The remuneration committee adopted the model of making
recommendations to the Board on the remuneration packages of
individual executive directors and senior management.

Details of the remuneration of the Directors and the 5 highest paid
individuals are set out in Note 16 to the consolidated financial
statements.

During the year, the Remuneration Committee held 1 meeting. The
attendance of each member at the committee meeting is set out
as follows:

FHMZEETHRTERENRITANE
REH BREBEEKEZFHBERREE
HIZER A 8 (BARERTE)) - EFBE Y
RIFERES 2 THEER - 56 AE
IKFERBABEHZRARE W20
REEBEAFMN - REKFRHH
RIRMET °

HMEB QRN E S LERERINT
FERBRERARNFUEBL A -

ARFEFZHFH RS EREHFMALZ
HIBEN A M HRRMIFE16 -

RAFE HFWEZESAFIRNEE - K
BHEGZZBEROT

Attendance
HERE

BTES

Executive Directors

He Zuyuan (appointed on 18 August 2011)*

Li Zhengguang (appointed on 18 August 2011)
Xu Xiaofan (resigned on 18 August 2011)

Guo Lin (resigned on 18 August 2011)

Independent Non-executive Directors
Ling Bing (appointed on 18 August 2011)
Qiu Xianhong (chairman of

Remuneration Committee)

(appointed on 18 August 2011 and

re-designated as chairman of

Remuneration Committee on 15 March 2012)
Huang Jinsong (appointed on 18 August 2011)
Lui Tin Nang (resigned on 18 August 2011)
Lee Kwong Yiu (resigned on 18 August 2011)**
Chong Cha Hwa (resigned on 18 August 2011)

fAlfET (FR201148 H18HELT) *
EIEN (R20114F8 A18HE L)
BN (FR201148 A 18 HBHT)
Rk (7201148 A 18 H BHT)

BMEHTES

EE (R201148 B 18EEZRT)

e (FWEE S+ /)
(R201158 A18SHEZER
201293 A15HERT A
TNEEBEERE)

I (R20114F8 F18AE L)
B K& (20118 A 18 A EHT)
EER (R201148F18AFHT) =
REKE (201148 A 18 A BHE)

0/0
0/0
1/1
11

0/0

0/0
0/0
11
1/1
1/1

Mr. He Zuyuan was appointed as the chairman of the
Remuneration Committee on 18 August 2011 and ceased to be
the chairman of the Remuneration Committee with effect from 15
March 2012, but remains as a member.

Mr. Lee Kwong Yiu has resigned as chairman and member of the
Remuneration Committee, with effect from 18 August 2011.

*k
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AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Company established its Audit Committee on 26 January
2002 with reference to “A Guide for the Formation of an Audit
Committee” issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants (formerly known as Hong Kong Society of
Accountants). The Audit Committee currently comprises 1 NED
and 2 INEDs. The Company Secretary and the accountant shall
attend all Audit Committee meetings to advise on corporate
governance, statutory compliance, accounting and financial
matters when necessary.

The principal responsibilities of the Audit Committee include
reviewing and supervising the Group’s financial reporting system
and internal control procedures, and providing an accurate, fair
and complete financial statement for the Company. The Audit
Committee also reviews the Group’s financial information and the
relationship with the auditors of the Company.

The quarterly results and accounts, interim report and condensed
consolidated financial statements, and annual report and
consolidated financial statements of the Group in 2011 have been
reviewed by the Audit Committee.

During the year, the Audit Committee held 4 meetings. The
attendance of each member at the committee meetings is set out
as follows:

BEREES
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Attendance
H RS

Independent Non-executive Directors BIYFHTES
Qiu Xianhong (chairman of Audit Committee) Mt (FREELE/E)

(appointed on 18 August 2011) (FR20115F8 A 18HEZ ) 0/1
Wei Qiyan (appointed on 18 August 2011) BHEZE (R2011F8A18REZR(T) 1/1
Ling Bing (appointed on 18 August 2011) EE (201148 A18AEET) 1/1
Lui Tin Nang (ex-chairman of Audit Committee) BREE (FIFEZEEE/E)

(resigned on 18 August 2011) (F20114F8 A18H EHE) 3/3
Lee Kwong Yiu (resigned on 18 August 2011) FER (A20114E8 5 18HBHE) 3/3
Chong Cha Hwa (resigned on 18 August 2011) RERZE (201198 A18HEHT) 3/3

Corporate Governance Policy PESEHME

The Company’s corporate governance policy follows the principles
and practices stated in Appendix 14 of the Listing Rules (Code on
Corporate Governance Practices).
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SHAREHOLDERS AND SHAREHOLDERS’
MEETING

In order to ensure that all shareholders of the Company enjoy
equal status and effectively exercise their own rights, the
Company convenes shareholders’ general meetings every year in
accordance with the Articles of Association. During the year, five
shareholders’ general meetings were held, including the annual
general meeting held on 3 June 2011 and four extraordinary
general meetings held on 8 June 2011, 8 September 2011,
21 November 2011 and 28 November 2011 respectively. The

REMBRAE

RIRERRFMBERRZE FEHANE
RATEE B H BN - ARBIRBLARIE
BHAANREEFERRERE - RASF
[ ARRHEBFASABREAS  HFE
FER2011F6 AR RITZRREAFKRE
M4k 5 Bl F2011F6A8H « 201149 A
8H ~ 201111 H218 K2011411 A28H
BOBRRERARE - EFHERERS

attendance of each director at the general meetings is set out as

follows:

Executive Directors

He Zuyuan (Chief Executive Officer)
(appointed on 18 August 2011)

Li Zhengguang (appointed on 18 August 2011)

Zheng Xiaowei (appointed on 18 August 2011 as
non-executive Director and re-designated as
executive Director on 15 March 2012)

Xu Xiaofan (resigned on 18 August 2011)

Liu James Jin (resigned on 18 August 2011)

Guo Lin (resigned on 18 August 2011)

Huang Zemin (resigned on 18 August 2011)

Li Ke (resigned on 18 August 2011)

Non-Executive Directors

Yu Zhiping (Chairman)
(appointed on 18 August 2011)

Wei Qiyan (appointed on 18 August 2011)

Chen Zhiyu (re-designated from an
executive Director to a non-executive Director on
18 August 2011)

Independent Non-executive Directors

Ling Bing (appointed on 18 August 2011)

Qiu Xianhong (appointed on 18 August 2011)
Huang Jinsong (appointed on 18 August 2011)
Lui Tin Nang (resigned on 18 August 2011)
Lee Kwong Yiu (resigned on 18 August 2011)
Chong Cha Hwa (resigned on 18 August 2011)

(EPUNNE
BITEE
8T (BEHTE)

(20118 A18HEL ) 0/3
ZIEY (R20114F8 A 18 AEE(T) 3/3
i (72011488188

EZERFBITEER

R2012F3A15HERAT ANTTES) 0/3
BN (FR201148 A18HEHT) 2/2
2= (20118 A 18 A &) 1/2
203 (FR201148 A 18 HEHT) 2/2
=ER (R2011F8 A18BEHT) 1/2
27 (FR2011F8 A18HEHT) 0/2
FHITES
REF (£E)

(FR2011F8 A 18HE L) 0/3
BES (R2011F8A18HEERT) 0/3
BRETF (R201146818A TR S

AERENTES)

3/5
BIFHITES
EE (R20114F8 A 18HEZRT) 0/3
ER5E3t (20118 A18HEL ) 0/3
EHP (FR2011F8 A18AEZRT) 0/3
BREE (20118 A18AEHT) 2/2
ZER (R2011FE8 A18ABHT) 2/2
REE (201148 A 18AEHT) 1/2
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SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHT

(a)

(b)

Requisition to convene an extraordinary general
meeting

With reference to Article 64 of the Articles of Association,
extraordinary general meetings can be convened on the
requisition of one or more shareholders holding, at the date
of deposit of the requisition, not less than one tenth of the
paid up capital of the Company having the right of voting
at general meetings. Such requisition shall be made in
writing to the Directors or the Secretary for the purpose of
requiring an extraordinary general meeting to be called by
the Directors for the transaction of any business specified
in such requisition. Such meeting shall be held within
two months after the deposit of such requisition. If within
twenty-one (21) days of such deposit the Directors fail to
proceed to convene such meeting, the requisitionist(s)
himself (themselves) may do so in the same manner, and
all reasonable expenses incurred by the requisitionist(s) as
a result of the failure of the Directors shall be reimbursed to
the requisitionist(s) by the Company.

Procedure for shareholders to nominate directors

Article 113 of the Articles provides that “No person, other
than a retiring Director, shall, unless recommended by
the Directors for election, be eligible for election to the
office of Director at any general meeting, unless notice in
writing of the intention to propose that person for election
as a Director and notice in writing by that person of his
willingness to be elected shall have been lodged at the
head office or at the registration office provided that the
minimum length of the period, during which such notice(s)
are given, shall be at least seven (7) days and that the
period for lodgement of such notice(s) shall commence no
earlier than the date after the despatch of the notice of the
general meeting appointed for such election and end no
later than seven (7) days prior to the date of such general
meeting.”
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Accordingly, if a shareholder wishes to nominate a person
to stand for election as a Director, the following documents
must be validly served on the Secretary or the Board,
namely:

1. his/her notice of intention to propose a resolution at
the general meeting;

2. a notice executed by the nominated candidate of
the candidate’s willingness to be appointed together
with:

(a) that candidate’s information as required to be
disclosed under Rule 13.51(2) of the Listing
Rules;

(b) a declaration made by the nominated
candidate in respect of the information
required to be disclosed pursuant to Rule
13.51(2)(h) to (w) of the Listing Rules, or an
appropriate negative statement to that effect
where there is no information to be disclosed
pursuant to any of such requirements nor
there are any other matters relating to that
nominated candidate’s standing for election
as a Director that should be brought to
shareholders’ attention; and

(c) the candidate’s written consent to the
publication of his/her personal data.

In order to ensure shareholders have sufficient time to
receive and consider the information of the nominated
candidate(s), shareholders are urged to submit their
proposals as early as practicably and shall not be later
than 10 business days prior to the date appointed
for such meeting, so that an announcement can be
issued on a timely manner and a supplemental circular
containing information of the candidate(s) proposed by the
shareholders can be despatched to shareholders as soon
as practicable.
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(c)

(d)

Procedure for shareholders to add a resolution in the
annual general meeting

If shareholders would like to make a request to include
a resolution in the annual general meeting, they are
requested to follow the requirements and procedures as set
out in Section 115A of the Companies Ordinance (Chapter
32 of the Laws of Hong Kong).

Procedures and contact details for making enquiries

Shareholders are invited to visit the Company’s website
for getting the latest information of the Company. If
shareholders have any specific enquiries, they can:

1. deliver their verbal enquires to the Board members,
chairman of Board committees or their delegates,
appropriate management executives or auditors who
attend the Company’s annual general meeting; or

2. make enquiries to the Company through the
following means:

(c)

(d)

BRERRBRRBEARS LIBRRE
RZBERF

MEBRAEEERERRBEA
EEMARBRR  WEAETA
AP (BBEHIHE32E) £115
ARz REREF -

EHZRFRBEFR
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ERREBEEARFEER - BEFA

1. MHFEARRBEREZ
EXgeKEB EF%E89
TRIEZEA AED
EIEABIZRHENEL O
SEEH K

It

2. BBUTREMAAT
o

Hotline telephone number: EIRE 5 (852) 2570 5886

By fax: HE (852) 2806 2861

By post: IR Unit 7, 31t Floor, Tower 1, Lippo Centre,
89 Queensway, Hong Kong
BASEEBS R NEROIEIIETE

Attention: o Ms. Gloria Cheung

SREAR/MA
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INTERNAL CONTROL

The Board is responsible for establishing, maintaining and
operating an effective system of internal control. The internal
control system of the Group comprises a well-established
organisational structure and comprehensive policies and
standards.

Our internal control system covers major operational function of
the Group. Our system is designed to (i) safeguard the Group’s
assets against loss and misappropriation; (ii) maintain proper
accounting records for producing reliable financial information;
and (iii) provide reasonable, but not absolute, assurance against
material fraud and errors.

The Group’s internal audit function plays an important role in the
Group’s internal control framework. It provides objective assurance
to the Board that a sound internal control system is maintained
and operated in compliance with the established processes and
standards through regular and comprehensive audits on major
operational functions. All internal audit reports will be submitted
to the Audit Committee for review. Significant issues in the
management letters from external auditors will be brought to the
attention of the Audit Committee to ensure that prompt remedial
action is taken. All recommendations will be properly followed
up to ensure they are implemented within a reasonable period
of time. Pursuant to a risk-based methodology, the Internal Audit
Department plans its internal audit schedules annually with audit
resources being focused on higher risk areas. The Internal Audit
Plan is submitted to the Audit Committee for review and approval.
To preserve the audit independence, the Head of Internal Audit
Department can report directly to the Audit Committee.

In respect of the year ended 31 December 2011, the Board had
reviewed the effectiveness of internal control system including the
supervision of the financial, operational and compliance affairs, as
well as risk management. No significant deficiencies which might
affect shareholders were identified.

A BB BE 1
EEGRRLY  BHERTEEMN
MPNSBERRG - REEH A HELR
Gk ExEHBEEBN2ENK
5 R -

AEBZAPEERGRETELEL
Fl AVREAEEEERTBRIH
B (NZERTFEICEHENUIEHRASE

BB ER (A ERRFERERSE
WAEL & - HETREREREBYE T g5
Ko

ANREZATNEBATEEEEEEN
— R REFGRHETHRE  ARAY
FTELEAMNTHEEES ARRT
EMAPEEZRF AT RIEBERE
MIEFMZE - MIBRAAEZMSEE
RXEBEZZESEM - INEZHMEKE
BEHNFANEESEHEEREZES
E2H BRERKEFEDERTE I
REFMBERZ  BRECSERREAH
T NEBEZTTFRERR AR 2R
Al - BEZEREHBERARSER 2
IS L ABETEANDEZFRRE - F
ZEHE g RREZZEGIZ - BER
BER2BYM  ANEZHEEAEE
MBEZZEEWSE -

HE2011F12A31BILZFEN - &F
e BEHABET RS (REME - EIF
RAEREETMEREEINE) AR
WA e ERR 2 EARRRK -

ANNUAL REPORT 2011 —ZF——FF



Corporate Governance Report (t ¥ &85

CONFIRMATION OF THE DIRECTORS AND
AUDITORS

The Directors are responsible for supervising the preparation
of annual accounts in order to give a true and fair view of the
financial position, operating results and cash flow of the Group
during the year. For the purpose of the preparation of the financial
statements of the reporting period, the Directors have selected
appropriate accounting policies, adopted applicable accounting
principles, made judgments and assessments that are prudent
and reasonable and ensured the financial statements were
prepared on a going concern basis. The Directors have confirmed
that the Group’s financial statements were prepared in accordance
with the requirements of laws and applicable accounting
principles.

The Directors are not aware of any material uncertainties relating
to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt upon
the ability of the Company to operate as a going concern. The
statement of auditors about their reporting responsibilities on the
financial statements is set out in the Independent Auditor's Report.

EXTERNAL AUDITORS

It is important to the Group that the independence of its external
auditors is maintained. Therefore, all the contracts for substantial
non-audit work to be awarded to the external auditors must be
approved by the Audit Committee and the Board. The scope of
work should be limited to those with efficiencies of scale and
added value, with no adverse effect on actual or perceived
independence of the audit work itself.

Messrs. SHINEWING (HK) CPA Limited, the auditor of the
Company received approximately HK$1.5 million for audit services
and approximately HK$1.6 million for non-audit services, such
as agreed-upon procedures services and interim review service
during the year ended 31 December 2011.
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INVESTOR RELATIONS AND COMMUNICATION
WITH SHAREHOLDERS

The Company established different communication channels with
its shareholders and investors. The annual general meeting of the
Company (“AGM”) is the principal occasion at which the Chairman
and Directors may interact directly with the shareholders to
provide a forum for shareholders to raise comments and exchange
views with the Board. All shareholders can receive corporate
information by printed copies of corporate communication.

Corporate communication (“Corporate Communication”) refers
to any document issued or to be issued by the Company for the
information or action of holders of any of the Company’s securities
as defined in Listing Rule 1.01, including but not limited to, the
directors’ report and annual accounts together with a copy of the
auditor’s report, the interim report, a notice of meeting, a circular
and a proxy form.

If any shareholder does not receive the Company’s Corporate
Communication, the shareholder shall contact the Company’s
registrar, Union Registrars Limited at 18th Floor, Fook Lee
Commercial Centre, Town Place, 33 Lockhart Road, Wanchai,
Hong Kong. The relevant Corporate Communication will be sent
to you free of charge as soon as practicable after receiving your
notification of non-receipt of Corporate Communications.

Apart from the above, updated and key information of the Group
are also available on the website of the Company. During the
year, enquiries from shareholders were handled by the executive
Directors and the Company Secretary.
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All the shareholders have at least 20 clear business days formal AAFIGRRBFASHTEERRER
notice of the AGM. In respect of each substantially separate issue D20E TERCIERBA - TRAFER
at a general meeting, a separate resolution has been proposed by EBERERNEIE  LERRZERS
the chairman of that meeting. All resolutions tabled at the general PRI - REFBUKREFNRRFAER
meeting shall be voted by poll by shareholder. Shareholders, RARGRER - RE - WEE RIERBY
investors and the media can make enquiries to the Company ATEBA TS T ARARRELRE
through the following means:

Hotline telephone number: HRER (852) 2570 5886
By fax: BH : (852) 2806 2861
By post: IR - Unit 7, 31 Floor, Tower 1, Lippo Centre,

89 Queensway, Hong Kong
BB EBRIRNER OIEIETE

Attention: 3} Ms. Gloria Cheung
skERF/NA
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"I’he Directors have pleasure in submitting their report together

with the audited consolidated financial statements of the Group for
the year ended 31 December 2011.

LISTING OF SHARES

The Company’s shares had been listed on The Growth Enterprise
Market (the “GEM”) of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
(the “Stock Exchange”) on 7 February 2002. On 4 August 2003,
the Company withdrew the listing of its shares on the GEM and
on the same date, the Company’s shares were listed on the main
board of the Stock Exchange by way of introduction.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES AND ANALYSIS OF
OPERATIONS

The Company is an investment holding company and engaged in
trading of natural uranium. Its subsidiaries are principally engaged
in selling, distributing and manufacturing of pharmaceutical and
food products and property investment. An analysis of the Group’s
performance for the year is set out in Note 8 to the consolidated
financial statements.

RESULTS AND APPROPRIATIONS

The results of the Group for the year are set out in the
consolidated income statement on page 73 of the annual report.

Since the Group intends to retain sufficient capital for the business
expansion, the Board would not recommend the payment of a final
dividend (2010: Nil).
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No dividend was paid or proposed during the year ended 31
December 2011, nor has any dividend been proposed since the
end of the reporting period (2010: Nil)

FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the results and of the assets and liabilities of the
Group for the five years ended 31 December 2011 is set out on
page 2 of the annual report.

RESERVES

Movements in the reserves of the Group during the year are set
out on pages 77 and 78 of the annual report.

INTANGIBLE ASSETS, PROPERTY, PLANT AND
EQUIPMENT, INVESTMENT PROPERTIES, AND
PREPAID LEASE PAYMENTS ON LAND USE
RIGHT

Details of the movements in intangible assets, property, plant and
equipment, investment properties, and prepaid lease payments on
land use right of the Group are set out in Notes 17, 18, 19 and 20
to the consolidated financial statements respectively.

SUBSIDIARIES

Details of the principal subsidiaries of the Company are set out in
Note 40 to the consolidated financial statements.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of the movements in share capital of the Company are set
out in Note 30 to the consolidated financial statements.

CONVERTIBLE BONDS

During the year, the Company has issued convertible bonds
with principal amount of HK$600,000,000. The proceeds from
convertible bonds may finance new business opportunities or
investments of the Group. Details of this convertible bonds are set
out in Note 31 to the consolidated financial statements.

CGN Mining Company Limited F E &% AR A 7

HZE2011F12A31 8 It FE I R 3k
BRRERS  MELERARTERES
RIS (20104 « 48]) -

MBERE

REBEH Z2011F12A318 5@ FE
CEENMEENBEZREHNFRSE?2
E o

fit
AEBRNAEE 2 FREHHNFRE
TTRT8H o

BREEE WX BERR
B REVER L ERER
HHEERIA

AEBZBVEE WE - BERR
B REVERLMERREANEER
HEEFED N EN A MWK T
17~ 18~ 1920 °

B 2~ B
AATEEBHE AR FEERRERA Y
HEMFE40 ©

[N
AARARFEHFEERNRE BB BE
B30 e

R ES

A R N BT A S B 2£600,000,0007#
T2 AR ES - BITARRES 2K
BAARNEEFNEGREIREREER
® o ARRARRES 2HBHNRGEE
BTSRRI 5E31 o

5



Directors’ Report EE 2| &

DIRECTORS

The directors of the Company during the year and up to the date

of this report were:

Executive directors

Mr. He Zuyuan (chief executive officer)
(appointed on 18 August 2011)

Mr. Li Zhengguang (appointed on 18 August 2011)

Ms. Zheng Xiaowei (appointed as non-executive
director on 18 August 2011 and re-designated as executive
director on 15 March 2012)

Mr. Xu Xiaofan (resigned on 18 August 2011)

Mr. Liu James Jin (resigned on 18 August 2011)

Ms. Guo Lin (resigned on 18 August 2011)

Mr. Huang Zemin (resigned on 18 August 2011)

Mr. Li Ke (resigned on 18 August 2011)

Non-executive directors

Mr. Yu Zhiping (Chairman)
(appointed on 18 August 2011)

Mr. Wei Qiyan (appointed on 18 August 2011)

Mr. Chen Zhiyu (re-designated from an executive director to
a non-executive director on 18 August 2011)

Independent non-executive directors

Mr. Ling Bing (appointed on 18 August 2011)

Mr. Qiu Xianhong (appointed on 18 August 2011)
Mr. Huang Jinsong (appointed on 18 August 2011)
Mr. Lui Tin Nang (resigned on 18 August 2011)

Mr. Lee Kwong Yiu (resigned on 18 August 2011)
Mr. Chong Cha Hwa (resigned on 18 August 2011)

In accordance with article 108 of the Articles of Association of the
Company, Mr. Chen Zhiyu will retire from office by rotation at the
forthcoming annual general meeting of the Company and, being

eligible, offer himself for re-election.

In accordance with article 112 of the Articles of Association of
the Company, the Directors appointed on 18 August 2011 shall
hold office until the forthcoming annual general meeting of the

Company and then be eligible for re-election at such meeting.
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DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

There is no service contract, which is not determinable by the
Company within one year without payment of compensation (other
than statutory compensation), in respect of those Directors who
are due to retire and offer for re-election at the forthcoming annual
general meeting of the Company.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS

Except for the director’s service contracts, no contracts of
significance in relation to the Group’s business to which the
Company or its subsidiaries were a party and in which a director
of the Company had a material interest, whether directly or
indirectly, subsisted at the end of the year or at any time during
the year.

BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND
SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Brief biographical details of Directors and senior management are
set out on pages 24 to 29 of the annual report.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

Distributable reserves of the Company as at 31 December 2011
amounted to approximately HK$637,557,000.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There is no provision for pre-emptive rights under the Company’s
articles of association and there was no restriction against such
rights under the laws of the Cayman Islands.
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PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF THE
COMPANY’S LISTED SHARES

None of the Company and its subsidiaries redeemed any of
its shares during the year. Neither the Company nor any of its
subsidiaries has purchased or sold any of the Company’s shares
during the year 2011.

SHARE OPTIONS

The Company has adopted a share option scheme (the “2010
Share Option Scheme”) in the annual general meeting of the
Company held on 2 June 2010 and terminated the share option
scheme approved by the shareholders of the Company on 23 July
2003 (the “2003 Share Option Scheme”) at the same meeting.

The “2010 Share Option Scheme”

After adoption of the 2010 Share Option Scheme, no share option
was granted. The following disclosure is a summary of the 2010
Share Option Scheme as required by Chapter 17 of the Rules
Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited (the “Listing Rules”).

(1) Purpose:

The purpose of the 2010 Share Option Scheme is to enable
the Company to grant options to Eligible Participants as
incentives or rewards for their contribution to the Company
and / or any of the Subsidiaries.

2) Participants:

The Eligible Participants of the 2010 Share Option Scheme
to whom option(s) may be granted by the Board shall
include any employees, non-executive directors, directors,
suppliers, customers, advisors, consultants, joint venture
partners and any shareholders of any members of the
Group or any invested entities or any holders of any
securities issued by any members of the Group or any
invested entities.
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3

(4)

5)

(6)

Total number of shares available for issue under the 2010
Share Option Scheme and percentage of issued share
capital at the date of approval of the share option scheme:

The number of shares which can be issued is 155,105,699
shares representing approximately 10% of the issued share
capital of the Company at the date of approval of the 2010
Share Option Scheme.

Maximum entitlement of each participant:

The total number of shares issued and to be issued upon
exercise of the Options granted under the 2010 Share
Option Scheme and any other share option schemes of the
Company (including exercised, cancelled and outstanding
Options) to each Eligible Participant in any 12-month period
must not exceed one percent (1%) of the then total issued
share capital of the Company (the “Individual Limit”).

The periods within which the shares must be taken up
under an option:

An option shall be exercisable in whole or in part and
in accordance with the terms of the 2010 Share Option
Scheme at any time during a period to be determined and
notified by the Directors to each grantee, which period may
commence on the day on which the offer for the grant of
options is made but shall end in any event not later than
ten (10) years commencing from the date the Board makes
an offer of the grant of an option subject to the provisions
for early termination thereof.

The minimum period for which an option must be held
before it can be exercised:

Unless the Directors otherwise determine and state in the
offer of the grant of options to an Eligible Participant, there
is no minimum period for which an option granted under
the 2010 Share Option Scheme must be held before it can
be exercised.
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The amount payable on application or acceptance of the
option and the period within which payments of calls must
or may be made or loans for such purpose must be paid:

An offer of grant of an option may be accepted by an
Eligible Participant within twenty-eight (28) days from the
date of the offer of grant of the option. A consideration of
HK$1.00 is payable on acceptance of the offer of grant of
an option.

The basis of determining the exercise price:

Subject to the adjustment made in accordance with the
terms of the 2010 Share Option Scheme, the exercise price
in respect of any particular option shall be such price as
determined by the Board in its absolute discretion at the
time of making the offer of grant of an option (which shall
be stated in the letter containing the offer of grant of an
option) but in any case the exercise price must be at least
the highest of (i) the closing price of shares as stated in the
Stock Exchange’s daily quotations sheet on the date of the
offer of grant, which must be a trading day; (ii) the average
closing price of shares as stated in the Stock Exchange’s
daily quotations sheets for the five (5) business days
immediately preceding the date of the offer of grant; and
(iii) the nominal value of the shares.

The remaining life:

The 2010 Share Option Scheme will remain in force for a
period of 10 years commencing on 2 June 2010.

The “2003 Share Option Scheme”

The share option scheme effective on 26 January 2002 was
replaced by a new share option scheme adopted by the
shareholders on 23 July 2003 (the “2003 Share Option Scheme”).

The purpose of the 2003 Share Option Scheme is to grant share

options to selected participants satisfying the criteria according to

the 2003 Share Option Scheme as incentives or rewards for their

contribution to the Group.
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The maximum number of securities to be issued upon the exercise
of all outstanding options granted and yet to be exercised under
the 2003 Share Option Scheme and any other share option
scheme must not in aggregate exceed 30% of the relevant shares
capital of the Company in issue from time to time.

The total number of shares which may be issued upon exercise
of all options to be granted under the 2003 Share Option Scheme
must not in aggregate exceed 127,746,216 shares representing
10% of the share in issue at the date of the 2003 Share Option
Scheme. Subsequently, the general scheme limit was refreshed
and approved at the annual general meeting on 31 May 2005, and
the limit was re-set to 154,170,699 shares.

The total number of shares issued and which may fall to be issued
upon exercise of the options granted under the 2003 Share Option
Scheme to each participant in any 12-month period shall not
exceed 1% of the issued share capital of the Company for the
time being.

An option may be accepted by a participant within 21 days from
the date of the offer of grant of the options. The subscription price
for shares under the 2003 Share Option Scheme will be a price
determined by the Directors but shall not be less than the highest
of (i) the closing price of shares as stated in the Stock Exchange’s
daily quotation sheet for trades in one or more board lot of shares
on the date of the offer of grant, or (ii) the average closing price
of the shares as stated in the Stock Exchange’s daily quotation
sheets for trades in one or more board lot of shares for the five
trading days immediately preceding the date of the offer of grant,
and (iii) the nominal value of shares. A nominal consideration of
HK$1 is payable on acceptance of the grant of option.

An option may be exercised in accordance with the terms of the
2003 Share Option Scheme at any time during a period to be
determined and notified by the Directors to each grantee, which
period may commence from the date of acceptance of the offer
but shall and in any event be not later than ten years from the
date on which the offer is made subject to the provisions of early
termination thereof.
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The 2003 Share Option Scheme commenced on 23 July 2003 and
ended on 2 June 2010.

First phase:

On 21 June 2002, the Directors granted options to subscribe
for an aggregate of 30,000,000 shares of the Company, with an
exercise price at HK$0.39 per share. Those who were granted with
the options can exercise their rights in multiple periods starting
from 16 August 2002 to 6 February 2012 as below:

From 16 August 2002 to 6 February 2012 —
approximately 6,850,000 shares

From 1 January 2003 to 6 February 2012 -
approximately 8,280,000 shares

From 1 January 2004 to 6 February 2012 —
approximately 6,510,000 shares

From 1 January 2005 to 6 February 2012 —
approximately 8,360,000 shares

Among the grantees in this grant of share options, 108 of them
are full-time employees of the Company and an aggregate of
21,100,000 options were granted to them; 29 of them are staff of
major customers of the Company and an aggregate of 8,900,000
options are granted to them. During the year ended 31 December
2011, 230,000 share options granted were exercised, no option
was forfeited or cancelled. As at 31 December 2011, 100,000
share options remained outstanding and exercisable.

Second phase:

On 28 February 2003, the Directors granted options to three
directors of certain subsidiaries of the Group to subscribe for
19,800,000 shares of the Company, with an exercise price at
HK$0.24 per share. The grantees are entitled to exercise the
subscription rights on or before 6 February 2012.

All of the options in this phase were fully exercised in 2004.
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Third phase:

On 29 September 2003, the Directors granted options to subscribe
for an aggregate of 30,000,000 shares of the Company, with an
exercise price at HK$0.51 per share. Those who were granted
the options can exercise their rights in two periods starting from 2
January 2004 to 6 February 2012 as below:

From 2 January 2004 to 6 February 2012 -
approximately 8,990,000 shares

From 2 July 2004 to 6 February 2012 —
approximately 21,010,000 shares

As at the date of granting, among the grantees in this grant of
share options, 14 of them are full-time employees of the Group
and an aggregate of 16,595,000 options were granted to them;
5 of them are directors of certain subsidiaries of the Group and
an aggregate of 12,405,000 options were granted to them; and
one of them is a consultant of a wholly owned subsidiary and
1,000,000 options were granted. In year 2003, 1,500,000 options
were waived by a grantee. During the year ended 31 December
2011, 13,000,000 share options granted were exercised, no option
was forfeited or cancelled. As at 31 December 2011, 760,000
share options remained outstanding and exercisable.

Fourth phase:

On 12 September 2005, the Directors granted options to subscribe
for an aggregate of 69,800,000 shares of the Company, with an
exercise price at HK$0.23 per share. Those who were granted
the options can exercise their rights in two periods starting from 1
January 2006 to 6 February 2012 as below:

From 1 January 2006 to 6 February 2012 —
approximately 34,900,000 shares

From 1 January 2007 to 6 February 2012 —
approximately 34,900,000 shares

CGN Mining Company Limited F EiZ &3 AR A &

FE=HFE

M2003F9H29H - EEHH A HAR
% A2 5)30,000,0008% B {7 2 8 A% -
TEEAEROSIETL - EREREZ
A T 7] 2004128 £201262 A6
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2004%1A2H=2012F2A6H -
#78,990,0000%

20047 A2HE2012F2H6H -
#921,010,000%

REHEXR RAERBREALE
R4 AAEBEZHBES A HER
16,595,000/ FE Ik 1 : 5B A A EE A
THEBARES - & HE#12,405,000
MERE 12— R2EWB AR ZE
[ - 7 #%1,000,00013 B A% 4 o 72003
FERN —HBFE A MKES00,000
DR E - NE 22011F128318 1k
FERN ERERECALTITIEGH
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M2005F9H12H - EEHHAEHAR
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As at the date of granting, among the grantees in this grant of
share options, 12 of them are full-time employees of the Group
and an aggregate of 11,000,000 options were granted to them; 3
of them are executive directors of the Company and an aggregate
of 35,000,000 options were granted to them; 3 of them are
independent non-executive directors of the Company and an
aggregate of 4,500,000 options were granted to them; 2 of them
are ex-executive directors of the Company in the past 12 months
and an aggregate of 18,000,000 options were granted to them;
and 2 of them are directors of certain subsidiaries of the Group
and an aggregate of 1,300,000 options were granted to them.

During the year ended 31 December 2011, 32,800,000 share
options granted were exercised, no option was forfeited or
cancelled. All of the options in this phase were fully exercised
during the year.

Fifth phase:

On 29 January 2008, the Directors granted options to subscribe
for an aggregate of 67,500,000 shares of the Company, with an
exercise price at HK$0.28 per share. Those who were granted
the options can exercise their rights in two periods starting from 1
October 2008 to 6 February 2012 as below:

From 1 October 2008 to 6 February 2012 —
approximately 20,250,000 shares

From 1 January 2009 to 6 February 2012 —
approximately 47,250,000 shares

As at the date of granting, among the grantees in this grant of
share options, 6 of them are full-time employees of the Group
and an aggregate of 16,000,000 options were granted to them;
4 of them are executive directors of the Company and an
aggregate of 34,000,000 options were granted to them; 1 of
them is independent non-executive director of the Company
and 1,500,000 options were granted; 1 of them is a director of a
subsidiary of the Company and 2,000,000 options were granted;
1 of them is a director of certain subsidiaries of the Company and
3,000,000 options were granted; and 3 of them are consultants
of the Company and an aggregate of 11,000,000 options were
granted to them. During the year ended 31 December 2011,
65,500,000 share options granted were exercised, no option was
forfeited, or cancelled. All of the options in this phase were fully
exercised during the year.

REBEHEX RAERBREALE
PFI2EARAEBEL2HBES 5 HER
11,000,00017 f& I& # : 3% /& A 2 A
1% = - 4 % $35,000,00017 B8 A%
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Other share options

On 22 September 2003, the Group entered into an agreement
to acquire the remaining 15% minority interest of the subsidiary,
Vital Pharmaceuticals (Sichuan) Co Ltd. The remaining monetary
consideration of the acquisition amounting to approximately
HK$28.3 million representing 60% of the total consideration will be
settled at the sole option of the Company, either in cash or in new
ordinary share of the Company. On or before the following dates,
the Company may opt to pay cash or to issue new ordinary shares
by serving a notice to the seller (the “Notice”):

° 22 March 2004: HK$9,433,962;
° 22 September 2004: HK$9,433,962; and
. 22 March 2005: HK$9,433,962.

The number of shares is calculated at a price that is equal to
the higher of the average 30 day closing price of the Company’s
shares on the Stock Exchange immediately prior to the date of the
Notice and HK$0.46 per share. The maximum number of shares
to be issued if based on HK$0.46 per share will be 61,525,839. A
conditional approval has been obtained from the Stock Exchange
for the listing of and permission to deal in the share options. All of
the options in this phase were fully exercised in 2005.

Details of the movement of share options are set out in Note 34 to
the consolidated financial statements.

RETIREMENT BENEFIT SCHEMES

Details of the retirement benefit schemes are set out in Notes 3
and 15 to the consolidated financial statements.

CGN Mining Company Limited F EiZ &3 AR A &
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CHANGE OF COMPANY NAME

In view of the expansion and diversification in the Company’s
scope of business, the Board considered that a change of
company name would reflect the Company’s corporate nature
more accurately. Therefore, pursuant to a special resolution
passed by the shareholders at the extraordinary general meeting
held on 21 November 2011, the Company had changed its name
from “Vital Group Holdings Limited # B £ EIZERABR AR to
“CGN Mining Company Limited” and adopted “f EZIEZEER A
A" as its new Chinese name for identification purposes only, with
effect from 21 November 2011.

CHANGE OF STOCK SHORT NAME AND
TRADING ARRANGEMENT

In connection with the change of company name, trading in the
shares of the Company under the new English stock short name
of “CGN MINING” and new Chinese stock short name “# E#% &
%" have taken effect from 3 January 2012. The stock code of the
Company remains as “1164".

CHANGE OF COMPANY WEBSITE

The website of the Company has been changed from “www.vital-
pharm.com” to “http://www.irasia.com/listco/nk/cgnmining/index.
htm”, with effect from 3 January 2012.

ERAREHE

ENARREBEBEZEERSZ T/
B EEERAFRARELREIEE
BREARAZEENEE - At - BB
AR A2011F11 B21 B &7 2 IR R
AELFBAFKIAZRE  ARAIE®
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HHE o
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FHE XA ETE [CGN MINING | & #
XD [ EREE] RS - 52012
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RET1164] -

X NG

KA Az @B B [www.vital-pharm.
com] B 2 A [http://www.irasia.com/
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DISCLOSURE OF INTERESTS

(a)

The Directors’ and chief executive’s interests and
short position in the shares, underlying shares
and debentures of the Company or any associated
corporation

As at 31 December 2011, the interests and short positions
of the Directors and chief executive of the Company
and their associates in the shares, underlying shares
and debentures of the Company and its associated
corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO)
which were notified to the Company and the Stock
Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the
SFO (including interests and short positions which they
were taken or deemed to have taken under such provisions
of the SFQO), or which were required, pursuant to section
352 of the SFO, to be entered in the register referred
to therein, or pursuant to the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (“Model
Code”) contained in the Listing Rules, to be notified to the
Company and the Stock Exchange, were as follows:

(a

EERBETRAERERAAHR
FREBZEZRSG - AERH
RESHzEBRAR

M2011F12A31H  FF * AR
AEEITHRABRESE ZHMEA
TRARAFT REMEEEE (T&
RES REEBAEXVER) 2k
m - HERDRESY  HEAR
BEAF LB BRANEXVEETRS
D EBEE ANRAE) B AP 2 R
mRhkAR (BEREELAREE
{61 78 A6 S I S5 45 B E Sk AR B
BB ZERRKE)  HIBREESH
N HAE OIS 35215 R B8R
ZiEFmEERM o EmE AR
SAREBEETMRAFEH LT RRE
FEHTELRHMIZESFA ([1E
PRI ZBAE AR R KRB PR
ZREmRARWT

Number of ordinary

shares of HK$0.01

Name of Director

Capacity
EEpnA 54

EERRG (Rt BE

Percentage
each (“Share”) Shareholding
(Note 1) in the same class
SRMEE0.017E T of securities
P25
(BR7E1) EHEDL
Mr. Chen Zhiyu Beneficial owner 26,666 (L) 0.0008%
BRETEE BEmBEAA
Note: s
1. The letter “L” stands for the Director’'s long position in the
Shares.

CGN Mining Company Limited F EiZ &3 AR A &
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Directors’ and chief executive’s interests in underlying
Shares and equity derivatives

As at 31 December 2011, the Directors (including
Ex-Directors) and chief executive of the Company had
the following personal interests in options to subscribe for
shares of the Company granted under the share option
scheme of the Company:

Outstanding at

EFZLREETHEAERIEBK G
RBAPTAET A 1w

M2011FE12A31H » AR AIESE
(BHENAES) REaTHRAER
RIBIBEAR QBB R ERT S AT E D
ARBARRRD ZERET
BUTEARESR :

Outstanding at

31 December Exercised 31 December Exercise price

Ex-Directors?:

AEES>
Mr. Xu Xiaofan 12 September 2005 15,000,000
wAIAFKE 2005497 12H
Mr. Liu James Jin 29 January 2008 8,500,000
£ 200841 A29H
Ms. Guo Lin 29 September 2003 3,000,000
o+ 200359 A29H
29 January 2008 8,500,000
20081 H29H
Mr. Chong Cha Hwa 29 January 2008 1,500,000
RRELE 200841 A29H
2 The Ex-Directors have resigned with effect from 18 August
2011.

Save as disclosed above, none of the Directors and the

Date of grant

RHAH

2010
R20105
12A31H
RITE

during the
year 2011
R2011ER
{pxi:d

2011 per share
R20115 (HKS)
12A31H BRITEE

fe RAT6E (B7)

15,000,000 - 0.23
8,500,000 - 0.28
3,000,000 - 0.51
8,500,000 - 0.28
1,500,000 - 0.28

2 RIEEEELBT - 8201
FEA18HA AR o

BREXHIEN  EERARQT

chief executive of the Company had any interest and short
positions in the shares, underlying shares and debentures
of the Company or its associated corporations (within the
meaning of the SFO) which were required to be notified to
the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to Division
7 and 8 of part XV of the SFO (including interests and
short positions which they were taken or deemed to have
taken under such provisions of the SFO), or which were
required, pursuant to section 352 of the SFO, to be entered
in the register referred to therein, or which were required,
pursuant to the Model Code contained in the Listing Rules,
to be notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange.

ERTHRABEBERLEERRA K
EEH B (TEREHFMBE
&5 MR - HERG REFH
b BEBRER #&HﬁﬁﬂﬂJ
XVEBE7R8D ;E\%D PIN/N

Bt 2 BT B9 1 {7 i 2k 2 ﬁ(@%
ﬂ'ﬂ% %&Hﬂ,%’iﬂﬂﬁwﬁ—r%&”‘“{’ﬁ
SRBHER 2R RKE) - IR
BESH RIS KO 35218 8%F
REZEMEELHZ EREE X
KE o AR EWAR B TR L
SFRAIBNEARE KRB R AT 2T
ﬂﬁé &/)\F‘"
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(b)

Substantial Shareholders’ interest and short positions
in the shares, underlying shares of the Company

As at 31 December 2011, according to the register of
members kept by the Company pursuant to section 336 of
the SFO and so far as is known to, or can be ascertained
after reasonable enquiry by the Directors, the following
persons/entities, other than a Director or chief executive of
the Company, had an interest or short position in the shares
and underlying shares and debentures of the Company
which would fall to be disclosed to the Company under the
provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO, or,
were directly or indirectly, interested in 10% or more of the
nominal value of any class of share capital carrying rights
to vote on all circumstances at general meetings of the
Company:

Company/
Name of
Group member
AR/ &8

Capacity
REAT BB 5%

(b)

FERRAERQ2FARGRABR
R zEERAR

20115 12A31H « AR AR
BES MEEIEDIEI36IERTERF
BEvBRRERM  BREFEED
ERERRAMLHER - TIHA
T/ B (TREEEAARAA
FETHRAR) REARAIKRG
ARG RMESFTEERIEBEES
K B E & B EXVED £2Kk37
RSO R A AR R B FE 2 HE a SOR
B NEESHEERBEMMA
RN AT AERIE R S AR AR
RASREZ EMAEMNRAEE
10% A FHEAs
Number of Approximate
percentage of
shareholding
BRI
BAL

shares
(Note 3)
R E
(PH5E3)

Perfect Develop Holding Inc. Corporate Beneficial owner 522,526,940 (L) 15.68%
(Note 4)

Perfect Develop Holding Inc. NSl ERERA
(PH5E4)

China Uranium Development Corporate Beneficial owner 1,670,000,000 (L) 50.11%
Company Limited

PEHEERARAR NG| EREEA

CGNPC Uranium Resources Corporate Interest in a controlled  4,728,695,652 (L) 141.89%
Co. Ltd. (Note 5) corporation (Note 6)

hEZMEERERAA NG| FErERR (Pt7E6)
(PH7E5)

China Guangdong Nuclear Corporate Interest in a controlled  4,728,695,652 (L) 141.89%
Power Holding Corporation, corporation
Ltd. (Note 7)

PEERZEEEARAA NG| FErERR

(H5E7)
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Notes:

3. The letter “L” denotes the person’s/entity’s long position in
the shares.

4. The issued share capital of Perfect Develop Holding Inc. is

beneficially owned as to 58.28% by Mr. Tao Lung, 30.67%
by Mr. Huang Jianming and 11.05% by Mr. Liu James Jin.
Mr. Tao Lung, Mr. Huang Jianming and Mr. Liu James Jin
are founders of the Group, and former executive Directors
of the Company. Pursuant to a share charge dated 1 April
2011 (the “Share Charge”), Perfect Develop Holding Inc.
charged 450,000,000 Shares in favour of China Uranium
Development.

5. CGNPC Uranium Resources Co. Ltd. (“CGNPC-URC”)
(presently known as “CGNPC Nuclear Fuel Co., Ltd")
holds 100% of the issued share capital of China Uranium
Development. Therefore, CGNPC-URC is deemed to
be interested in 1,670,000,000 Shares by virtue of its
shareholding of China Uranium Development.

6. The long position represents (i) the interests held by China
Uranium Development as stated in Note 5 above, (ii) the
interests in the 2,608,695,652 conversion shares which
may be issued under the Convertible Bonds and (iii)
450,000,000 Shares under the Share Charge as stated in
Note 4 above.

7. China Guangdong Nuclear Power Holding Corporation,
Ltd. holds 100% of the equity interests of CGNPC-URC.
Therefore, it is deemed to be interested in the interest held
by CGNPC-URC.

Save as disclosed above, the Directors are not aware of any
person as at 31 December 2011 who had an interest or short
positions in the shares, underlying shares and debentures of
the Company which would fall to be disclosed to the Company
pursuant to Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO, or was directly
or indirectly, interested in 10% or more of the nominal value of any
class of shares capital carrying rights to vote in all circumstances
at general meetings of the Company.

GEE

3. LI RRZEALHEEU
ERMPAIT 2R -

4. PREELE  EEPLERE
ST 9 B E 25 % B Perfect
Develop Holding Inc. B
17 B% 7858.28% * 30.67% &
11.05% © FA 8 5t & - &
SENER A BAREE AR
AFRRQRIFIAITES - RIE
AH B2011F4818 2B B
IR (TR H KA ]) - Perfect
Develop Holding Inc./@ A E
i 2 ¥ & 15 #450,000,0004%

Bt

5. PEZBEZEARAA
(P EZMEZRE] RE
[hEZREBERAA]) HAE
FESHERRE D HITRA
100% ° AL+ P EiZihF T
REFETEHERR Y RE
M 4% 4% /& # B 1,670,000,000
AR 2 K o

6. TR R K SCH FE5RTE R
BEthEERFE 2ER (i)
RIBAT BB ESRA] F#ITZ
2,608,695,652/% #2 f% i 15 =~
W7 M (i) £ XCPT sE 4P kB 19
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1/\ °

7. PEERZEEBEGRA A
B EZHMEZER100% A
s AMEEAESSEZ
TR TS ARERS o

br ESCRT#EEESN - 720115 12H318 -
EETUVTMBEEMALRARAR
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FAMEEFATRERMERTEARART
BREXEREZEMERNBRAEEI0%
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DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S RIGHT
TO SUBSCRIBE FOR SHARES

Save as disclosed in the annual report, none of the Company’s
Directors and chief executive (including their spouse and children
under 18 years of age) had any interest in, or had been granted,
or exercised, any rights to subscribe for shares, warrants or
debentures (if applicable) of the Company and its associated
corporations (within the meaning of the SFO) during the year.

CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTION

Framework agreement entered into between CGNPC Uranium
Resources Co., Ltd (“CGNPC-URC”) (presently known as
“CGNPC Nuclear Fuel Co., Ltd”) and the Company (the
“Framework Agreement”)

On 21 October 2011, the Company and CGNPC-URC entered
into the Framework Agreement in relation to the sale of Natural
Uranium (as defined in the Framework Agreement) by the Group
to CGNPC-URC during the Effective Period (as defined in the
Framework Agreement). Pursuant to the Framework Agreement,
the Group has agreed to sell and CGNPC-URC has agreed
to purchase and purchase on behalf of certain End Users (as
defined in the Framework Agreement) certain amount of Natural
Uranium during the Effective Period. The framework Agreement
took effect on 28 November 2011 (“Effective Date”).

As at date of Framework Agreement, CGNPC-URC is the sole
shareholder of China Uranium Development, the controlling
shareholder of the Company, which holds approximately 50.11%
equity interest in the Company. CGNPC-URC is therefore a
connected person of the Company under the Listing Rules.
The transaction contemplated under the Framework Agreement
constitutes a continuing connected transaction of the Company
under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

CGN Mining Company Limited F EiZ &3 AR A &
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Pursuant to the Framework Agreement, the transaction value
cannot exceed the following Annual Cap Amounts (as defined
in the Framework Agreement) in respect of the Continuing
Connected Transaction for each of the three years ending 31
December 2013:

From the Effective Date to

31 December 2011
HAMBEZE2011F12831H

For the year ending
31 December 2012
BZ2012F12A31HILEE

BIBERGZE  ZEXH2EE  RE
Z2013F12A31A L =ZAF E S FH
M THEBUATEEFEFRELSS
FZFELR (ERRIERBZ) -

For the year ending
31 December 2013
BZ2013F12A31HILEE

HK$522,600,000
522,600,000/ 7T

Details of the Framework Agreement have been disclosed in the
circular dated 11 November 2011.

Pursuant to an ordinary resolution passed by the Independent
Shareholders at the extraordinary general meeting held on 28
November 2011, the Framework Agreement, the transactions
contemplated thereunder, and the proposed Annual Cap Amounts
have been approved.

The Group’s principal business used to be selling, distributing and
manufacturing of pharmaceutical and food products and property
investment. The Group has repositioned itself as a platform for
uranium resources investment and trading after the successful
completion of China Uranium Development’'s subscription of
1,670,000,000 Shares and the Convertible Bonds on 18 August
2011.

Given that CGNPC-URC is one of the few enterprises in the PRC
which own the licences to manage nuclear fuels and deal with
the import and export of Natural Uranium, coupled with the facts
that the Group, by entering into the Framework Agreement, will
indirectly become natural uranium supplier of certain large and
famous End Users (including Guangxi Fangchenggang Nuclear
Power Company Limited and Yangjiang Nuclear Power Company
Limited), the Board believes that the Continuing Connected
Transaction is able to diversify the Group’s business and broaden
the Group’s income sources as well as to assist in developing the
Group’s expertise and experience in the uranium industry and
enhancing the Group’s competitiveness in the future.

From the Effective Date to 31 December 2011, the Group did not
conduct any transaction under the Framework Agreement.

HK$2,246,400,000
2,246,400,0007%8 7T

HK$3,463,200,000
3,463,200,000/% 7T
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MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

The percentages of purchases and sales for the year attributable
to the Group’s major suppliers and customers are as follows:

Purchases
— the largest supplier 65%
— five largest suppliers combined 83%

Sales
— the largest customer 19%
— five largest customers combined 44%

None of the Directors, their associates or any shareholder (which
to the knowledge of the Directors owns more than 5% of the
Company’s share capital) had an interest in the major suppliers or
customers noted above.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contracts concerning the management and administration of
the whole or any substantial part of the business of the Company
were entered into or existed during the year.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN COMPETING
BUSINESS

As at 31 December 2011, Mr. Chen Zhiyu (“Mr Chen”), a non-
executive director of the Company, has approximately 52%
shareholding in the Guangdong Suntop Pharmaceutical Co., Ltd.
(the “Guangdong Suntop”). Mr. Chen had interest in businesses
which compete or likely to compete, either directly or indirectly
with the business of the Group. Guangdong Suntop principally
engages in the sales of pharmaceutical products in the PRC. The
major pharmaceutical products sold by the Guangdong Suntop
are Houtou Jun TiQuWu Keli (fZZEEHRERIFERL), which is made
for the treatment of chronic gastritis, and fungus related products
Compound TianMa MiHuanTangTai Pian (#77 Xl Z R ER ),
which is made for the treatment of high blood pressures and
cerebral thrombosis etc. These products are different and easily
distinguishable from the major products, i.e. calcium capsule,
minerals, vitamins and liver protecting drug, of the Company.
As there is a clear delineation between the products sold by the
Company and by Guangdong Suntop, the Directors believe that
there is no direct competition between the Guangdong Suntop
and the Company.

CGN Mining Company Limited F EiZ &3 AR A &
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Save as disclosed above, none of the Directors, the controlling
shareholders of the Company and their respective associates (as
defined in the Listing Rules) had an interest in a business which
causes or may cause any significant competition with the business
of the Group and any other conflicts of interest which any such
person has or may have with the Group.

DONATIONS

During the year, the Group has not made any charitable donations.

PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information that is publicly available to the Company
and within the knowledge of the directors of the Company as at
23 March 2012, the latest practicable date prior to the issue of
this report, the Company believe that the number of securities of
the Company which are in the hands of the public is above the
relevant prescribed minimum percentage.

EVENT AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

Details of a significant event occuring after the reporting period
are set out in Note 41 to the consolidated financial statements.

AUDITORS

The consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31
December 2011 have been audited by Messrs. SHINEWING (HK)
CPA Limited who will retire and, being eligible, offer themselves
for reappointment in the forthcoming Annual General Meeting.

There was no change in auditors in the past 3 years.

By Order of the Board
Yu Zhiping
Chairman

Hong Kong, 23 March 2012
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SHINEWING (HK) CPA Limited
43/F., The Lee Gardens

33 Hysan Avenue

Causeway Bay, Hong Kong

fekspda

Shineﬂ)mg

TO THE MEMBERS OF CGN MINING COMPANY LIMITED
PEXEEERAT

(formerly known as Vital Group Holdings Limited
HREEZERARAA])

(incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of CGN
Mining Company Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries
(collectively referred to as the “Group”) set out on pages 73 to 191
which comprise the consolidated statement of financial position
as at 31 December 2011, and the consolidated income statement,
consolidated statement of comprehensive income, consolidated
statement of changes in equity and consolidated statement of
cash flows for the year then ended, and a summary of significant
accounting policies and other explanatory information.

Directors’ responsibility for the consolidated
financial statements

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation
of consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view
in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
and the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance, and for such internal control as the directors determine
is necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated financial
statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due
to fraud or error.

CGN Mining Company Limited F EiZ &3 AR A &
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Auditor’s responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated
financial statements based on our audit and to report our opinion
solely to you, as a body, in accordance with our agreed terms
of engagement, and for no other purpose. We do not assume
responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person for
the contents of this report. We conducted our audit in accordance
with Hong Kong Standards on Auditing issued by the Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants. Those standards
require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and
perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether
the consolidated financial statements are free from material
misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence
about the amounts and disclosures in the consolidated financial
statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's
judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material
misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, whether
due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor
considers internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation of the
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view
in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion
on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. An audit also
includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies
used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made by
the directors, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the
consolidated financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient
and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.
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Opinion

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true
and fair view of the state of affairs of the Group as at 31 December
2011 and of the Group’s loss and cash flows for the year then
ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards and have been properly prepared in accordance
with the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance.

SHINEWING (HK) CPA Limited
Certified Public Accountants

Wong Hon Kei, Anthony

Practising Certificate Number: PO5591

Hong Kong
23 March 2012
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Consolidated Income Statement Z& Ui F&
For the year ended 31 December 2011 £ Z2011F12 8318 1L FE

2011 2010
20114 20104
HK$°000 HK$'000
FEx FAT
(GESEIE))
(&%)
Turnover St 8 372,726 328,120
Cost of sales SHE AR (264,758)  (104,098)
Gross profit EF 107,968 224,022
Other operating income E g A 8 31,752 16,230
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries HEM B A RS 35 30,599 -
Selling and distribution expenses HENDHEFS (97,953) (82,178)
Administrative expenses TR (93,193) (72,861)
Termination benefits ATz 15 (54,728) -
Impairment loss recognised in respect  ##RYIZE - FE K&
of property, plant and equipment REEE 18 (72,001) (9,702)
Decrease in fair value of investment HEMERER D
properties 19 (24,438) -
Impairment loss recognised in respect R R SR (EEIE
of goodwill 22 (52,355)  (22,569)
Finance costs A AR 10 (10,524) (779)
(Loss) profit before taxation KRl (EB18) & (234,873) 52,163
Income tax credit (expense) s Hiie () 11 3,417 (12,947)
(Loss) profit for the year AEE (E518) m 12 (231,456) 39,216
(Loss) profit for the year THIATEIGAFE
attributable to: (E8) &l :
Owners of the Company KAREBA (229,858) 36,610
Non-controlling interests JEFE R RE 2 (1,598) 2,606
(231,456) 39,216
(Loss) earnings per share Bk (EE) &BF) 14
Basic BN HK(10.31) HK2.36
centsiEfll  centsiB{ll
Diluted e HK(10.31) HK2.36
centsiEfll  centsiB{ll
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Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income %4 2 H k% &
For the year ended 31 December 2011 20116128318 L FE

2011 2010
201145 2010%F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FEx T
(Loss) profit for the year REE (EE) mF (231,456) 39,216
Other comprehensive income (expense) Hihemis (Fx)
Exchange differences arising on translating BREBINEBEEZ
foreign operations MEHER
Gain arising during the year REFFESE 2 WS 29,288 15,589
Reclassification adjustments for the AEFEEREE BUBERLR
cumulative gain included in profit or loss Fhet ABZ 2z 25t
upon disposal/deregistration during the year VER Z EF D fBAE (21,649) (1,922)
7,639 13,667
Available-for-sale investments A ERE
Net gain arising during the year REFEE WG FE = 333
Reclassification adjustments for the AEERHERET AR
cumulative gain included in profit Z BEHEs e
or loss upon disposal during the year ZENDERE - (683)
- (350)
Gain arising on transfer of property, plant and  #% - = M RE A M FE R
equipment and prepaid lease payments to HEFEERTRAAE
investment properties at fair value FrEZIREYEMEE NS - 5,723
Deferred tax liability arising on M RE KR R IER
transfer of property, plant and HEFEEREEZRANE
equipment and prepaid lease payments SrEZIREYERGFTESE
to investment properties at fair value BEEHIEAR = (1,431)
- 4,292
Other comprehensive income for REERTEEMEERE
the year, net of tax 7,639 17,609
Total comprehensive (expense) income for AEERTERZE
the year, net of tax (FX) Uzssass (223,817) 56,825
Total comprehensive (expense) income for TIALTEGAFEEZA
the year attributable to: (FX) Waniass -
Owners of the Company RAREBA (222,426) 54,219
Non-controlling interests FEPRAR R RS (1,391) 2,606
(223,817) 56,825

CGN Mining Company Limited R EZIEE B[R QA



Consolidated Statement of Financial Position %= & Bf #& AR R &

As at 31 December 2011 A20115E12H831H

2011 2010
20114 2010%F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FHETT
Non-current assets FRBEE
Intangible assets BVEE 17 322 3,028
Property, plant and equipment W - WENEE 18 63,007 174,139
Investment properties REYE 19 76,790 95,409
Prepaid lease payments on land T TR
use rights REFIA 20 19,918 32,922
Deposit for acquisition of property, WEEME - BB
plant and equipment REZET® 21 - 4.063
Goodwill kS 22 - 52,355
160,037 361,916
Current assets REBEE
Properties under development BERPYIHE 23 — 240,561
Inventories FE 24 408,422 108,968
Trade and other receivables JE UK AR 3R &% E A R U ERIE 25 96,467 69,195
Prepaid lease payments on land T TR
use rights MEFHE 20 366 672
Income tax recoverable AIUg B PS5 16,207 8,091
Held-for-trading investment RIEEERE 26 - 2173
Bank balances and cash BITEF RS 27
- pledged —BEH 678 12,138
— unpledged — AR 1,262,857 68,146
1,784,997 509,944
Current liabilities REAE
Trade and other payables FETBR R e B At FE < 5RIE 28 424,922 67,148
Value added tax payable JERT BT 4,187 3,591
Income tax payable FERTFR1SHL - 7,746
Secured bank borrowings BHEARITEE 29 - 71,285
429,109 149,770
Net current assets REBEEFE 1,355,888 360,174
Total assets less current liabilities BEERBERRBEE 1,515,925 722,090
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position %= & Bf #& AR R 3R

As at 31 December 2011 72011512 H831H

2011 2010
20115 20104

HK$°000 HK$'000
FER TAET

Capital and reserves BEXR#E
Share capital & 30 33,326 15,511
Reserves i 1,001,518 688,090
Equity attributable to owners of AAREE AELER
the Company 1,034,844 703,601
Non-controlling interests FEIER RS 2,023 3,414
Total equity R 1,036,867 707,015
Non-current liabilities ERBARG
Convertible bonds AR ES 31 467,483 -
Other payables HAb eI IR 32 - 920
Deferred tax liabilities FETIEEE 33 11,575 14,155

479,058 15,075
1,515,925 722,090

The consolidated financial statements on pages 73 to 191 were HREIBREIMBE 2 HEAWHERERR
approved and authorised for issue by the board of directors on 23 20123 F23H KR EE It £ N IZHE T

March 2012 and are signed on its behalf by: EUWHNYEERREE
Yu Zhiping REF He Zuyuan fi# T
Director % Director %

CGN Mining Company Limited R EZIEE B[R QA
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For the year ended 31 December 2011 £ Z2011F12 8318 1L FE

Attributable to owners of the Company

Exchange Share Enterprise Properties Non-

Share translation  options  Reserve development Other  Retained  revaluation controlling
premium  reserve  reserve fund  reseve  earnings  reserve interests
e IEEL
R 3 e EREe ; EfpiE  REEA i Bt
HK$000  HK$000  HKS000  HK$000 § HK$000  HK§000  HKS000  HK$000  HKSO000  HK§000  HK$O000

TEr  TiEn AL TER Br TEn  TEr TR TEr  TEr  TEr  TER

At 1 January 2010 R2O10E1A1H 15511 261175 5483 9,891 47,883 616 350 264403 4719 649,382 808 650,190

Profit for the year REERER - - - - - - - %610 - %610 2606 39216
Other comprehensive ~ AEEEA,

income (expense) 2EYE

for the year (Ax%) - - 13,667 - - - (350) - 429 17,609 - 17,609

Total comprehensive  AEEREUE
income (expense) (Fx) 8

for the year - - 13,667 - - - (350) 36,610 4292 54,219 2,606 56,825
Appropriation to HEzaRES
reserve fund - - - - 6,490 - - (6,490) - - - -

At 31 December 2010 120108
120318 15511 51475 68501 9891 54373 616 - 9452 9011 703601 3414 707,015
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For the year ended 31 December 2011 20116128318 L FE

Attributable to owners of the Company
ARTEE AR

Equity
N

of Exchange Share Enterprise

Share Share convertible translation ~ options  Reserve development

capital  premium bonds  reserve  reserve Fund fund
TRRES HhE bRER

& RGEE REYD  EXRR e fRES =53
HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000
Tén Tn TEn TEr TEr TEr  TER
(Note)

(M)

At 1 January 2011 ROMF1A1E - 15511 251,175 - 68501 9891 54373 616

Properties Non-

Retained revaluation controlling
eamings  reserve Total interests Total

EE FER
RERA it At Es it
HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HK$'000
Tén Tz TEr TEn  THEn

204,523 9,01 703,601 344 707015

Loss for the year AEERR = - - - - _
Other comprehensive  AEEEA

(229,858) - (229858)  (1,598)  (281,456)

= = 432 207 7639

income for the year 2B - - - 7432 - -
Total comprehensive ~ AEEZE

(expense) income (%)

for the year imes - = = 432 = =
Issue of shares kb

(Note 30) (M:30) 16700 367400 - - - -
Transaction costs Ekihe

attributable to RHRA

Issue of shares - (1861) - - - -
Bxercise of share options 7 (B2 115 41,225 - - (9,737) -
Recognition of equty ~ BT ARES

component of b5

convertiole bonds - - 139,503 - = =

Transaction costs LTERES
affributable toissue  ZRBMA
of convertible bonds - - (676) - - -

Disposal of subsidiaries  HEHBAA - - = =

(9878 (616)

(229,858) - (246 (1391)  (28817)
= - 384,100 - 384,100

= - (181 - (1881

- - 68 - 3608

= - 139,508 - 139,508

- - (6™ - (6T
20494 = = = =

At 31 December Root1E
2011 12A31H 33326 657939 138,827 75,933 154 34,495

85,159 9,011 1,034,844 2,023 1,036,867

Note: Subsidiaries in the People’s Republic of China (the “PRC”) have B
appropriated 10% of the profit to reserve fund. The reserve fund
is required to be retained in the accounts of the subsidiaries for
specific purposes.

CGN Mining Company Limited F EiZ &3 AR A &
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows Z2BEEREXR

OPERATING ACTIVITIES

(Loss) profit before taxation
Adjustments for:
Amortisation of intangible assets
Amortisation of prepaid lease
payments on land use rights
Decrease in fair value of investment
properties
Decrease in fair value of
held-for-trading investment
Depreciation of property, plant and
equipment
Finance costs
Loss on disposal of available-for-sale
investments
Net gain on deregistration of
subsidiaries
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries
Gain on disposal of held-for-trading
investment
Impairment loss recognised
in respect of goodwill
Impairment loss recognised
in respect of property, plant and
equipment
Impairment loss recognised
in respect of prepayments,
deposits and other receivables
Impairment loss recognised
in respect of intangible assets
Impairment loss recognised
in respect of trade receivables
Bank interest income
Dividend income from held-for-trading
investment
(Gain) loss on disposal of property,
plant and equipment
Reversal of impairment loss
recognised in respect of
trade receivables
Reversal of impairment loss
recognised in respect of
prepayments, deposits and
other receivables
Reversal of provision for
compensation of redundant staff
Write-back of long outstanding payables
Write-off of other receivables
Write-down and write-off of inventories

SuE
581 (#518)
B

BRI ATE
skt i AR ERE

BREWEARERD

RIEBEBREZARERD

W% - BERRETE

HERTHHEREZER

B A BBURE G2 W

S BN AL s
HEFEERRE 2 W

MR ERERR

RYE - BE MRE
RIERE

FERTAN IR
eI R E &R
RELEERMERER

R LSRR E R

RITHLSWA
FIEEERE ZBBIA

HEWE - BERREZ
(Wezs) B8

B E YRR Z
BRI ERR

BOFENFOR « FTE M
H At & YRR 2
ERERRERR

RO EmERE
B EREARN 2 B 50R

i EL A R UL IR
OB S M ST &

7l & R EAD

For the year ended 31 December 2011 £ Z2011F12 8318 1L FE

#

2011 2010
20115 20104
HK$°000 HK$'000
FET T
(234,873) 52,163
333 1,335

723 672
24,438 -
= 6

9,458 14,367
10,524 779

= 9
= (2,099)
(30,599) -
(13) -
52,355 22,569
72,001 9,702
= 1,724

2,558 -

85 -
(5,911) (1,544)
- (343)
(11,804) 8,064
= (152)
= (2,778)
= (1,493)
(3,554) (3,330)
1,887 -
20,765 161
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows 2B HhE XK
For the year ended 31 December 2011 20116128318 L FE

2011 2010
20114 2010%F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FEx FATT
Operating cash flow before movements &E&E & EHAT 2
in working capital TERERE (91,627) 99,812
Increase in inventories FEE (325,032) (33,393)
Increase in properties under development  Z%f& th ¥ 2 3% 40 (11,215)  (239,315)
Decrease in trade and other receivables [ U BR 51 K E b & Y FR I8 e > 2,906 2,491
Increase in trade and other payables JE AT B N EL At B ST FRIEAE AN 370,828 10,622
Increase in tax recoverable A B R TR AN (4,000) -
Decrease in value-added tax recoverable  FEUIZ(E R - 5,728
Increase in value-added tax payable JERTIEE T I8 0 596 3,591
Cash used in operations CEEFFTARS (57,544)  (150,464)
The PRC Enterprise Income Tax paid BT B ZE ST (12,378) (4,372)
NET CASH USED IN OPERATING CEEKFARSFE
ACTIVITIES (69,922)  (154,836)
INVESTING ACTIVITIES REEH
Net cash inflow from disposal of HERBATIRSRAFE
subsidiaries (net of bank balances (MBHEZBTEFRIRS)
and cash disposed of) 35 296,653 -
Proceeds from disposal of property, HEME - MENMRENSIE
plant and equipment 24,759 57
Decrease (increase) in pledged bank ERPRITETRL (1)
balances 12,161 (11,469)
Proceeds from disposal of HERIEEBEIRE TS RIE
held-for-trading investment 2,186 -
Bank interest income RITHEWA 1,869 1,544
Purchase of property, plant and BEWE - WEKEE
equipment (8,948) (3,994)
Proceeds from the disposal of HEMMHEHEREMEHIE
available-for-sale investments - 1,972
Dividend received from held-for-trading R EIFEEEREZIRE
investment - 343
Deposit paid for acquisition of property, UEE®IZE « BEMRED TS
plant and equipment - (1,650)
Purchase of intangible assets HEEEEE = (1,230)
NET CASH FROM (USED IN) REEBHE (FTA)
INVESTING ACTIVITIES HE&FEE 328,680 (14,427)

CGN Mining Company Limited F EiZ &3 AR A &



Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows Z2BEEREXR

For the year ended 31 December 2011 £ Z2011F12 8318 1L FE

2011 2010
20115 20104

HK$’000 HK$'000
TR TAT

FINANCING ACTIVITIES Eﬂﬁiﬁw
Proceeds from issue of convertible TARREHFIE IR -

bonds, net of issuing expenses ?D%??Tfﬁi 597,093 -
Proceeds from issue of shares, BATIRIDFI1S5RIAE -

net of issuing expenses MR 382,239 -
Proceeds from shares issued under IRIR AR i T 28T

share option scheme IR 15 1S 5R18 32,603 -
Repayment of bank borrowings EERITEE (75,632) (22,989)
Interest paid BRFE (3,466) (2,025)
New bank borrowings raised FIEIRITEE = 94,274
Repayment of obligations under EEREREAE

finance leases = (446)
NET CASH FROM FINANCING RETEERSFE

ACTIVITIES 932,837 68,814
NET INCREASE (DECREASE) IN RERBELEHEEH

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS #m ORd) B 1,191,595 (100,449)
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS REDZRERRE

AT BEGINNING OF THE YEAR £@EEA 68,146 163,291
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes [ & & &) 2 3,116 5,304
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS REARZHRESRBELSEER -

AT END OF THE YEAR, represented BNEEMRITETF LA S

by unpledged bank balances and cash 1,262,857 68,146
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GENERAL

CGN Mining Company Limited (the “Company”) was
incorporated in the Cayman Islands as an exempted
company with limited liabilities. The shares of the Company
are listed on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
(the “Stock Exchange”). Its parent is FEHEHEGRER
8] (China Uranium Development Company Limited) (“China
Uranium Development”), which was incorporated in Hong
Kong. Its ultimate parent is FEERZEELEEHR QA
(China Guangdong Nuclear Power Holding Corporation),
which was established in the PRC.

The addresses of the registered office and principal place
of business of the Company are disclosed in the “Corporate
Information” section to the Annual Report.

The consolidated financial statements are presented in
Hong Kong dollars (“HK$”). Other than those subsidiaries
established in the PRC whose functional currency is
Renminbi (“RMB”), the functional currency of the Company
and its subsidiaries is HK$.

As the Company is listed in Hong Kong, the directors of
the Company consider that it is appropriate to present the
consolidated financial statements in HKS$.

The principal activities of the Company and its subsidiaries
(collectively referred to as the “Group”) are selling,
distributing and manufacturing of pharmaceutical and
food products, property investment and trading of natural
uranium.

Pursuant to a special resolution passed at the extraordinary
general meeting held on 21 November 2011, the name of
the Company was changed from “Vital Group Holdings
Limited #REEZERAR AT to “CGN Mining Company
Limited” and “F E % & % B R A 7" was adopted as
its Chinese name for identification purposes only. The
“Certificate of Incorporation on Change of Name” has
been issued by the Registrar of Companies in the Cayman
Islands and the change of the Company’s name took effect
on 21 November 2011.
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APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED

HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”)

In the current year, the Group has applied the following
new and revised standards, amendments to standards and
interpretations (“new and revised HKFRSs”) issued by the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (the

“HKICPA”).
HKFRSs (Amendments)
HKFRS 1 (Amendments)
Hong Kong Accounting
Standard (“HKAS")
24 (Revised)
HKAS 32 (Amendment)
HK(IFRIC) - Interpretation

(“Int”) 14 (Amendment)

HK(IFRIC) - Int 19

Improvements to HKFRSs issued
in 2010

Limited Exemption from Comparative
HKFRS 7 Disclosure for First-time
Adopters

Related Party Disclosures

Classification of Rights Issues
Prepayments of a Minimum Funding

Requirement

Extinguishing Financial Liabilities
with Equity Instruments

The application of the above new and revised HKFRSs in
the current year has had no material effect on the Group’s
financial performance and positions for the current and
prior year and / or on the disclosures set out in these

consolidated financial statements.

2.
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2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (Continued)

The Group has not early applied the following new and
revised HKFRSs that have been issued but are not yet

effective:
Amendments to HKFRS 1

Amendments to HKFRS 7

HKFRS 9

HKFRS 10
HKFRS 11
HKFRS 12

HKFRS 13
Amendments to HKAS 1

Amendments to HKAS 12

HKAS 19 (as revised
in 2011)
HKAS 27 (as revised
in 2011)
HKAS 28 (as revised
in 2011)
Amendments to HKAS 32

HK(IFRIC) - Int 20

Severe Hyperinflation and Removal
of Fixed Dates for First-time Adopters'

Disclosures — Transfers of Financial
Assets'

Disclosures — Offsetting Financial
Assets and Financial Liabilities?
Mandatory Effective Date of HKFRS 9

and Transition Disclosures®

Financial Instruments®
Consolidated Financial Statements?
Joint Arrangements?
Disclosures of Interests in Other
Entities?
Fair Value Measurement?
Presentation of Items of Other
Comprehensive Income®
Deferred Tax — Recovery of
Underlying Assets*
Employee Benefits?

Separate Financial Statements?

Investments in Associates and
Joint Ventures?

Offsetting Financial Assets and
Financial Liabilities®

Stripping Costs in the Production
Phase of a Surface Mine?

! Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 July

2011.

2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1
January 2013.

8 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1
January 2015.

4 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1
January 2012.

5 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 July
2012.

6 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1

January 2014.
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APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (Continued)

Amendments to HKFRS 7 Disclosures — Transfers of
Financial Assets

The amendments to HKFRS 7 increase the disclosure
requirements for transactions involving transfers of financial
assets. These amendments are intended to provide greater
transparency around risk exposures when a financial
asset is transferred but the transferor retains some level of
continuing exposure in the asset. The amendments also
require disclosures where transfers of financial assets are
not evenly distributed throughout the period.

The directors of the Company anticipate that the
application of the amendments to HKFRS 7 will affect the
Group’s disclosures regarding transfers of financial assets
in the future.

Amendments to HKAS 32 Offsetting Financial Assets
and Financial Liabilities and amendments to HKFRS 7
Disclosures — Offsetting Financial Assets and Financial
Liabilities

The amendments to HKAS 32 clarify existing application
issues relating to the offsetting requirements. Specifically,
the amendments clarify the meaning of “currently has a
legally enforceable right of set-off” and “simultaneous
realisation and settlement”.

The amendments to HKFRS 7 require entities to disclose
information about rights of offset and related arrangements
(such as collateral posting requirements) for financial
instruments under an enforceable master netting agreement
or similar arrangement.

The amended offsetting disclosures are required for annual
periods beginning on or after 1 January 2013 and interim
periods within those annual periods. The disclosures
should also be provided retrospectively for all comparative
periods. However, the amendments to HKAS 32 are not
effective until annual periods beginning on or after 1
January 2014, with retrospective application required.
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2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (Continued)

HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments

HKFRS 9 issued in 2009 introduces new requirements for
the classification and measurement of financial assets.
HKFRS 9 amended in 2010 includes the requirements for
the classification and measurement of financial liabilities
and for derecognition.

Key requirements of HKFRS 9 are described as follows:

° HKFRS 9 requires all recognised financial assets
that are within the scope of HKAS 39 Financial
Instruments: Recognition and Measurement to be
subsequently measured at amortised cost or fair
value. Specifically, debt investments that are held
within a business model whose objective is to
collect the contractual cash flows, and that have
contractual cash flows that are solely payments of
principal and interest on the principal outstanding
are generally measured at amortised cost at the end
of subsequent accounting periods. All other debt
investments and equity investments are measured at
their fair values at the end of subsequent accounting
periods. In addition, under HKFRS 9, entities may
make an irrevocable election to present subsequent
changes in the fair value of an equity investment
(that is not held for trading) in other comprehensive
income, with only dividend income generally
recognised in profit or loss.

CGN Mining Company Limited F EiZ &3 AR A &
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2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED 2.

HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (Continued)

HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments (Continued)

° The most significant effect of HKFRS 9 regarding the
classification and measurement of financial liabilities
relates to the presentation of changes in the fair
value of a financial liability (designated as at fair
value through profit or loss) attributable to changes
in the credit risk of that liability. Specifically, under
HKFRS 9, for financial liabilities that are designated
as at fair value through profit or loss, the amount of
change in the fair value of the financial liability that
is attributable to changes in the credit risk of that
liability is presented in other comprehensive income,
unless the recognition of the effects of changes
in the liability’s credit risk in other comprehensive
income would create or enlarge an accounting
mismatch in profit or loss. Changes in fair value
attributable to a financial liability’s credit risk are not
subsequently reclassified to profit or loss. Previously,
under HKAS 39, the entire amount of the change in
the fair value of the financial liability designated as
at fair value through profit or loss was recognised in
profit or loss.

The directors of the Company anticipate that the adoption
of HKFRS 9 in the future may have significant impact on
amounts reported in respect of the Group’s financial assets
and financial liabilities. However, it is not practicable to
provide a reasonable estimate of that effect until a detailed
review has been completed.
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APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (Continued)

New and revised standards on consolidation, joint
arrangements, associates and disclosures

In June 2011, a package of five standards on consolidation,
joint arrangements, associates and disclosures was issued,
including HKFRS 10, HKFRS 11, HKFRS 12, HKAS 27 (as
revised in 2011) and HKAS 28 (as revised in 2011).

HKFRS 10 replaces the parts of HKAS 27 Consolidated and
Separate Financial Statements that deal with consolidated
financial statements and HK (SIC)-Int 12 Consolidation
— Special Purpose Entities. HKFRS 10 includes a new
definition of control that contains three elements: (a) power
over an investee, (b) exposure, or rights, to variable returns
from its involvement with the investee, and (c) the ability to
use its power over the investee to affect the amount of the
investor’s returns. Extensive guidance has been added in
HKFRS 10 to deal with complex scenarios.

HKFRS 11 replaces HKAS 31 Interests in Joint Ventures
and HK (SIC)-Int 13 Jointly Controlled Entities - Non-
Monetary Contributions by Venturers. HKFRS 11 deals
with how a joint arrangement of which two or more parties
have joint control should be classified. Under HKFRS 11,
joint arrangements are classified as joint operations or
joint ventures, depending on the rights and obligations of
the parties to the arrangements. In contrast, under HKAS
31, there are three types of joint arrangements: jointly
controlled entities, jointly controlled assets and jointly
controlled operations.
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APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (Continued)

New and revised standards on consolidation, joint
arrangements, associates and disclosures (Continued)

In addition, joint ventures under HKFRS 11 are required to
be accounted for using the equity method of accounting,
whereas jointly controlled entities under HKAS 31 can be
accounted for using the equity method of accounting or
proportionate accounting.

HKFRS 12 is a disclosure standard and is applicable
to entities that have interests in subsidiaries, joint
arrangement, associates and /or unconsolidated structured
entities. In general, the disclosure requirements in HKFRS
12 are more extensive than those in the current standards.

These five standards are effective for annual periods
beginning on or after 1 January 2013. Earlier application
is permitted provided that all of these five standards are
applied early at the same time.

The directors of the Company anticipate that these five
standards will be adopted in the Group’s consolidated
financial statements for the annual period beginning 1
January 2013. The application of these five standards
may have significant impact on amounts reported in the
consolidated financial statements. However, the directors of
the Company have not yet performed a detailed analysis of
the impact of the application of these standards and hence
have not yet quantified the extent of the impact.
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APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (Continued)

HKFRS 13 Fair Value Measurement

HKFRS 13 establishes a single source of guidance for
fair value measurements and disclosures about fair value
measurements. The standard defines fair value, establishes
a framework for measuring fair value, and requires
disclosures about fair value measurements. The scope of
HKFRS 13 is broad; it applies to both financial instrument
items and non-financial instrument items for which other
HKFRSs require or permit fair value measurements and
disclosures about fair value measurements, except in
specified circumstances. In general, the disclosure
requirements in HKFRS 13 are more extensive than those
in the current standards. For example, quantitative and
qualitative disclosures based on the three-level fair value
hierarchy currently required for financial instruments only
under HKFRS 7 Financial Instruments: Disclosures will be
extended by HKFRS 13 to cover all assets and liabilities
within its scope.

HKFRS 13 is effective for annual periods beginning on or
after 1 January 2013 with earlier application permitted.

The directors of the Company anticipate that HKFRS 13
will be adopted in the Group’s consolidated financial
statements for the annual period beginning on 1 January
2013 and that the application of the new standard may
affect the amounts reported in the consolidated financial
statements and result in more extensive disclosures in the
consolidated financial statements.
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APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (Continued)

Amendments to HKAS 1 Presentation of Items of Other
Comprehensive Income

The amendments to HKAS 1 retain the option to present
profit or loss and other comprehensive income in either
a single statement or in two separate but consecutive
statements. However, the amendments to HKAS 1
require additional disclosures to be made in the other
comprehensive income section such that items of other
comprehensive income are grouped into two categories: (a)
items that will not be reclassified subsequently to profit or
loss; and (b) items that may be reclassified subsequently
to profit or loss when specific conditions are met. Income
tax on items of other comprehensive income is required to
be allocated on the same basis.

The amendments to HKAS 1 are effective for annual
periods beginning on or after 1 July 2012. The presentation
of items of other comprehensive income will be modified
accordingly when the amendments are applied in the future
accounting periods.

Amendments to HKAS 12 Deferred Tax — Recovery of
Underlying Assets

The amendments to HKAS 12 provide an exception to the
general principles in HKAS 12 that the measurement of
deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities should reflect
the tax consequences that would follow from the manner in
which the entity expects to recover the carrying amount of
an asset. Specifically, under the amendments, investment
properties that are measured using the fair value model
in accordance with HKAS 40 Investment Property are
presumed to be recovered through sale for the purposes
of measuring deferred taxes, unless the presumption is
rebutted in certain circumstances.
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APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (Continued)

Amendments to HKAS 12 Deferred Tax — Recovery of
Underlying Assets (Continued)

The amendments to HKAS 12 are effective for annual
periods beginning on or after 1 January 2012. The directors
of the Company anticipate that the application of the
amendments to HKAS 12 will not have material impact on
the results and the financial position of the Group.

Other than disclosed above, the directors of the Company
anticipate that the application of the other new and revised
standards, amendments or interpretations will have no
material impact on the results and the financial position of
the Group.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared
in accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA. In
addition, the consolidated financial statements include
applicable disclosures required by the Rules Governing
the Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange and by the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared
on the historical cost basis except for investment properties
and certain financial instruments, which are measured at
fair values, as explained in the accounting policies set out
below. Historical cost is generally based on the fair value of
the consideration given in exchange for goods.

The principal accounting policies are set out below.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements &4

BRI

For the year ended 31 December 2011 £ Z2011F12 8318 1L FE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements incorporate the
financial statements of the Company and entities controlled
by the Company (its subsidiaries). Control is achieved
where the Company has the power to govern the financial
and operating policies of an entity so as to obtain benefits
from its activities.

The results of subsidiaries acquired or disposed of during
the year are included in the consolidated income statement
from the effective date of acquisition and up to the effective
date of disposal, as appropriate.

Where necessary, adjustments are made to the financial
statements of subsidiaries to bring their accounting policies
into line with those used by other members of the Group.

All intra-group transactions, balances, income and
expenses are eliminated in full on consolidation.

Non-controlling interests in subsidiaries are presented
separately from the Group’s equity therein.

Allocation of total comprehensive income to non-
controlling interests

Total comprehensive income and expense of a subsidiary
is attributed to the owners of the Company and to the non-
controlling interests even if this results in the non-controlling
interests having a deficit balance (effective from 1 January
2010 onwards).

3.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Changes in the Group’s ownership interests in existing
subsidiaries

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary, it (i)
derecognises the assets (including any goodwill) and
liabilities of the subsidiary at their carrying amounts at the
date when control is lost, (ii) derecognises the carrying
amount of any non-controlling interests in the former
subsidiary at the date when control is lost (including any
components of other comprehensive income attributable
to them), and (iii) recognises the aggregate of the fair
value of the consideration received and the fair value of
any retained interest, with any resulting difference being
recognised as a gain or loss in profit or loss attributable to
the Group.

Goodwill

Goodwill arising on an acquisition of a business is carried
at cost less any accumulated impairment losses and is
presented separately in the consolidated statement of
financial position.

For the purposes of impairment testing, goodwill is
allocated to each of the cash-generating units, or groups of
cash-generating units, that is expected to benefit from the
synergies of the combination.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Goodwill (Continued)

A cash-generating unit to which goodwill has been
allocated is tested for impairment annually, or more
frequently whenever there is an indication that the unit
may be impaired. If the recoverable amount of the cash-
generating unit is less than its carrying amount, the
impairment loss is allocated first to reduce the carrying
amount of any goodwill allocated to the unit and then to the
other assets of the unit on a pro-rata basis based on the
carrying amount of each asset in the unit. Any impairment
loss for goodwill is recognised directly in profit or loss in
the consolidated income statement. An impairment loss
recognised for goodwill is not reversed in subsequent
periods.

On disposal of the relevant cash-generating unit,
the attributable amount of goodwill is included in the
determination of the amount of profit or loss on disposal.

Investments in subsidiaries

Investments in subsidiaries are included in the Company’s
statement of financial position at cost less any identified
impairment losses.

Intangible assets
Intangible assets acquired separately

Intangible assets acquired separately and with finite useful
lives are carried at cost less accumulated amortisation and
any accumulated impairment losses (see the accounting
policy in respect of impairment losses on tangible and
intangible assets below). Amortisation for intangible assets
with finite useful lives is provided on a straight-line basis
over their estimated useful lives. The estimated useful life
and amortisation method are reviewed at the end of each
reporting period, with the effect of any changes in estimate
being accounted for on a prospective basis.

Research and development expenditure

Expenditure on research activities is recognised as an
expense in the period in which it is incurred.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment including leasehold land
(classified as finance leases) and buildings held for use in
the production or for administrative purposes are stated in
the consolidated statement of financial position at cost less
subsequent accumulated depreciation and accumulated
impairment losses, if any.

Depreciation is recognised so as to write off the cost of
items of property, plant and equipment less their residual
values over their estimated useful lives using the straight-
line method. The estimated useful lives, residual values
and depreciation method are reviewed at the end of each
reporting period, with the effect of any changes in estimate
accounted for on a prospective basis.

If an item of property, plant and equipment becomes an
investment property because its use has changed as
evidenced by end of owner-occupation, any difference
between the carrying amount and the fair value of that item
at the date of transfer is recognised in other comprehensive
income and accumulated in properties revaluation reserve.
On the subsequent sale or retirement of the asset, the
relevant revaluation reserve will be transferred directly to
retained earnings.

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised
upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are
expected to arise from the continued use of the asset.
Any gain or loss arising on the disposal or retirement of an
item of property, plant and equipment is determined as the
difference between the sales proceeds and the carrying
amount of the asset and is recognised in profit or loss.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Investment properties

Investment properties are properties held to earn rentals
and / or for capital appreciation.

Investment properties are initially measured at cost,
including any directly attributable expenditure. Subsequent
to initial recognition, investment properties are measured
at their fair values. Gains or losses arising from changes in
the fair value of investment property are included in profit
or loss for the period in which they arise.

Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised in
the consolidated statement of financial position when a
group entity becomes a party to the contractual provisions
of the instrument. Financial assets and financial liabilities
are initially measured at fair value. Transaction costs
that are directly attributable to the acquisition or issue of
financial assets and financial liabilities (other than financial
assets or financial liabilities at fair value through profit or
loss) are added to or deducted from the fair value of the
financial assets or financial liabilities, as appropriate, on
initial recognition. Transaction costs directly attributable to
the acquisition of financial assets or financial liabilities at
fair value through profit or loss are recognised immediately
in profit or loss.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets

The Group’s financial assets are classified into one of the
two categories, including financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss (“FVTPL”) and loans and receivables.
The classification depends on the nature and purpose
of the financial assets and is determined at the time of
initial recognition. All regular way purchases or sales of
financial assets are recognised and derecognised on a
trade date basis. Regular way purchases or sales are
purchases or sales of financial assets that require delivery
of assets within the time frame established by regulation or
convention in the marketplace.

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the
amortised cost of a financial asset and of allocating interest
income over the relevant period. The effective interest rate
is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash
receipts (including all fees paid or received that form an
integral part of the effective interest rate, transaction costs
and other premiums or discounts) through the expected
life of the financial asset, or, where appropriate, a shorter
period to the net carrying amount on initial recognition.

Interest income is recognised on an effective interest basis
for debt instruments.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

Financial assets at FVTPL represent investments held for
trading.

A financial asset is classified as held for trading if:

° it has been acquired principally for the purpose of
selling in the near future; or

o it is a part of an identified portfolio of financial
instruments that the Group manages together and
has a recent actual pattern of short-term profit-
taking; or

o it is a derivative that is not designated and effective
as a hedging instrument.

Financial assets at FVTPL are measured at fair value,
with changes in fair value arising from remeasurement
recognised directly in profit or loss in the period in which
they arise. The net gain or loss recognised in profit or loss
excludes any dividend or interest earned on the financial
assets and is included in the other operating income in the
consolidated income statement. Fair value is determined in
the manner described in Note 7.

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets
with fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted in
an active market. Subsequent to initial recognition, loans
and receivables (including trade and other receivables
and bank balances and cash) are carried at amortised
cost using the effective interest method, less any identified
impairment losses (see accounting policy in respect of
impairment loss on financial assets below).
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)
Impairment loss on financial assets

Financial assets, other than those at FVTPL, are assessed
for indicators of impairment at the end of the reporting
period. Financial assets are considered to be impaired
where there is objective evidence that, as a result of one
or more events that occurred after the initial recognition of
the financial asset, the estimated future cash flows of the
financial assets have been affected.

For all other financial assets, objective evidence of
impairment could include:

o significant financial difficulty of the issuer or
counterparty; or

° breach of contract, such as default or delinquency
in interest or principal payments; or

o it becoming probable that the borrower will enter
bankruptcy or financial re-organisation; or

o disappearance of an active market for that financial
asset because of financial difficulties.

For certain categories of financial asset, such as trade
and other receivables, assets that are assessed not to
be impaired individually are, in addition, assessed for
impairment on a collective basis. Objective evidence of
impairment for a portfolio of receivables could include
the Group’s past experience of collecting payments,
an increase in the number of delayed payments in the
portfolio past the credit period ranging from 90 to 180
days, observable changes in national or local economic
conditions that correlate with default on receivables.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)
Impairment loss on financial assets (Continued)

For financial assets carried at amortised cost, the amount
of the impairment loss recognised is the difference
between the asset’s carrying amount and the present value
of estimated future cash flows discounted at the financial
asset’s original effective interest rate.

The carrying amount of the financial asset is reduced
by the impairment loss directly for all financial assets
with the exception of trade and other receivables, where
the carrying amount is reduced through the use of an
allowance account. Changes in the carrying amount of the
allowance account are recognised in profit or loss. When
a trade or other receivable is considered uncollectible, it
is written off against the allowance account. Subsequent
recoveries of amounts previously written off are credited to
profit or loss.

For financial assets measured at amortised cost, if, in
a subsequent period, the amount of impairment loss
decreases and the decrease can be related objectively
to an event occurring after the impairment losses was
recognised, the previously recognised impairment loss
is reversed through profit or loss to the extent that the
carrying amount of the asset at the date the impairment is
reversed does not exceed what the amortised cost would
have been had the impairment not been recognised.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial liabilities and equity instruments

Financial liabilities and equity instruments issued by a
group entity are classified as either financial liabilities or as
equity in accordance with the substance of the contractual
arrangements and the definitions of a financial liability and
an equity instrument.

Equity instruments

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a
residual interest in the assets of the group after deducting
all of its liabilities. Equity instruments issued by the Group
are recognised at the proceeds received, net of direct
issue costs.

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating
the amortised cost of a financial liability and of allocating
interest expense over the relevant period. The effective
interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated
future cash payments (including all fees and points paid or
received that form an integral part of the effective interest
rate, transaction costs and other premiums or discounts)
through the expected life of the financial liability, or, where
appropriate, a shorter period, to the net carrying amount on
initial recognition.

Interest expense is recognised on an effective interest
basis.

Other financial liabilities

Other financial liabilities including trade and other payables
and secured bank borrowings are subsequently measured
at amortised cost, using the effective interest method.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial liabilities and equity instruments (Continued)
Convertible bonds contain liability and equity components

Convertible bonds issued by the Group that contain
both the liability and conversion option components
are classified separately into respective items on initial
recognition in accordance with the substance of the
contractual arrangements and the definitions of a financial
liability and an equity instrument. Conversion option that will
be settled by the exchange of a fixed amount of cash or
another financial asset for a fixed number of the Company’s
own equity instruments is classified as an equity instrument.

On initial recognition, the fair value of the liability
component is determined using the prevailing market
interest of similar non-convertible debts. The difference
between the gross proceeds of the issue of the convertible
bonds and the fair value assigned to the liability
component, representing the conversion option for the
holder to convert the bonds into equity, is included in
equity (equity component of convertible bonds).

In subsequent periods, the liability component of the
convertible bonds is carried at amortised cost using
the effective interest method. The equity component,
representing the option to convert the liability component
into ordinary shares of the Company, will remain in equity
component of convertible bonds until the embedded option
is exercised (in which case the balance stated in equity
component of convertible bonds will be transferred to
share premium). Where the option remains unexercised at
the expiry date, the balance stated in equity component of
convertible bonds will be released to the retained earnings.
No gain or loss is recognised in profit or loss upon
conversion or expiration of the option.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3. EESHEE#®)

(Continued)
Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial liabilities and equity instruments (Continued)

Convertible bonds contain liability and equity components
(Continued)

Transaction costs that relate to the issue of the convertible
bonds are allocated to the liability and equity components
in proportion to the allocation of the gross proceeds.
Transaction costs relating to the equity components are
charged directly to equity. Transaction costs relating to the
liability component are included in the carrying amount of
the liability portion and amortised over the period of the
convertible bonds using the effective interest method.

Equity instruments

Equity instruments issued by the Company are recorded at
the proceeds received, net of direct issue costs.

Derecognition

The Group derecognises a financial asset only when the
contractual rights to the cash flows from the asset expire,
or when it transfers the financial asset and substantially all
the risks and rewards of ownership of the asset to another
entity.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial liabilities and equity instruments (Continued)
Derecognition (Continued)

On derecognition of a financial asset in its entirety, the
difference between the asset's carrying amount and the
sum of the consideration received and receivable and
the cumulative gain or loss that had been recognised in
other comprehensive income and accumulated in equity is
recognised in profit or loss.

The Group derecognised financial liabilities when, and only
when, the Group’s obligations are discharged, cancelled or
expired. The difference between the carrying amount of the
financial liability derecognised and the consideration paid
and payable is recognised in profit or loss.

Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present
obligation as a result of a past event, and it is probable
that the Group will be required to settle that obligation,
and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the
obligation. Provisions are measured at the best estimate of
the consideration required to settle the present obligation
at the end of the reporting period, taking into account the
risks and uncertainties surrounding the obligation. When
a provision is measured using the cash flows estimated
to settle the present obligation, its carrying amount is the
present value of those cash flows (where the effect of the
time value of money is material).

When some or all of the economic benefits required to
settle a provision are expected to be recovered from a third
party, a receivable is recognised as an asset if it is virtually
certain that reimbursement will be received and the amount
of the receivable can be measured reliably.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Properties under development

Properties under development are stated at the lower of
cost and net realisable value.

Cost is determined by apportionment of the total land and
development costs including borrowing costs.

Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the
ordinary course of business less the estimated costs to
completion and applicable selling expenses.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable
value. Cost is calculated using the weighted average
method. Net realisable value represents the estimated
selling price for inventories less all estimated costs of
completion and costs necessary to make the sale.

Cash and cash equivalents

Bank balances and cash in the consolidated statement
of financial position comprise cash at banks and on hand
and short-term deposits with a maturity of three months
or less. For the purpose of the consolidated statement of
cash flows, cash and cash equivalents consist of cash and
short-term deposits as defined above.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Impairment losses on tangible and intangible assets
other than goodwill (see the accounting policy in
respect of goodwill above)

At the end of the reporting period, the Group reviews the
carrying amounts of its tangible and intangible assets to
determine whether there is any indication that those assets
have suffered an impairment loss. If any such indication
exists, the recoverable amount of the asset is estimated in
order to determine the extent of the impairment loss, if any.

When it is not possible to estimate the recoverable amount
of an individual asset, the Group estimates the recoverable
amount of the cash-generating unit to which the asset
belongs. Where a reasonable and consistent basis of
allocation can be identified, corporate assets are also
allocated to individual cash-generating units, or otherwise
they are allocated to the smallest group of cash-generating
units for which a reasonable and consistent allocation basis
can be identified.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Impairment losses on tangible and intangible assets
other than goodwill (see the accounting policy in
respect of goodwill above) (Continued)

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs
to sell and value in use. In assessing value in use, the
estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present
value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current
market assessments of the time value of money and the
risks specific to the asset for which the estimates of future
cash flows have not been adjusted.

If the recoverable amount of an asset (or cash-generating
unit) is estimated to be less than its carrying amount, the
carrying amount of the asset (or cash-generating unit) is
reduced to its recoverable amount. An impairment loss is
recognised immediately in profit or loss.

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses,
the carrying amount of the asset is increased to the
revised estimate of its recoverable amount, but so that
the increased carrying amount does not exceed the
carrying amount that would have been determined had no
impairment loss been recognised for the asset (or cash-
generating unit) in prior years. A reversal of an impairment
loss is recognised as income immediately.

Revenue recognition

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration
received or receivable and represents amounts receivable
for goods sold in the normal course of business, net of
discounts and sales related taxes.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Revenue recognition (Continued)

Revenue from the sale of goods is recognised when the
goods are delivered and titles have passed, at which time
all the following conditions are satisfied:

o the Group has transferred to the buyer the
significant risks and rewards of ownership of the
goods;

o the Group retains neither continuing managerial

involvement to the degree usually associated with
ownership nor effective control over the goods sold;

o the amount of revenue can be measured reliably;

° it is probable that the economic benefits associated
with the transaction will flow to the Group; and

° the costs incurred or to be incurred in respect of the
transaction can be measured reliably.

Interest income from a financial asset is recognised when
it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to the
Group and the amount of income can be measured reliably.
Interest income is accrued on a time basis, by reference
to the principal outstanding and at the effective interest
rate applicable, which is the rate that exactly discounts the
estimated future cash receipts through the expected life of
the financial asset to that asset’s net carrying amount on
initial recognition.

Dividend income from investments is recognised when
the shareholders’ rights to receive payment have been
established (provided that it is probable that the economic
benefits will flow to the Group and the amount of revenue
can be measured reliably).
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Equity settled share-based payment transactions

Share options granted to employees (on or before 7
November 2002, or granted after 7 November 2002 and
vested before 1 January 2005)

The financial impact of share options granted is not
recorded in the consolidated financial statements until
such time as the options are exercised, and no charge
is recognised in profit or loss in respect of the value of
options granted. Upon the exercise of the share options,
the resulting shares issued are recorded as additional
share capital at the nominal value of the shares, and the
excess of the exercise price per share over the nominal
value of the shares is recorded as share premium. Options
which lapse or are cancelled prior to their exercise date are
deleted from the register of outstanding options.

Share options granted to employees (after 7 November
2002 and vested on or after 1 January 2005)

The fair value of services received determined by reference
to the fair value of share options granted at the grant
date is recognised as an expense in full at the grant date
when the share options granted vest immediately, with a
corresponding increase in equity (share options reserve).

At the end of the reporting period, the Group revises its
estimates of the number of options that are expected to
ultimately vest. The impact of the revision of the original
estimates during the vesting period, if any, is recognised in
profit or loss such that the cumulative expense reflects the
revised estimate, with a corresponding adjustment to share
options reserve.

When share options are exercised, the amount previously
recognised in share options reserve will be transferred to
share premium. When the share options are forfeited after
the vesting date or are still not exercised at the expiry date,
the amount previously recognised in share options reserve
will continue to be held in share options reserve.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Equity settled share-based payment transactions
(Continued)

Share options granted to other eligible participants

Share options issued in exchange for goods or services
are measured at the fair values of the goods or services
received, unless the fair value cannot be reliably measured,
in which case the goods or services received are measured
by reference to the fair value of the share options granted.
The fair values of the goods or services received are
recognised as expenses, with a corresponding increase in
equity (share options reserve), when the Group obtains the
goods or when the counterparties render services, unless
the goods or services qualify for recognition as assets.

Taxation

Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax currently
payable and deferred tax.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for
the year. Taxable profit differs from profit as reported in
the consolidated income statement because it excludes
items of income or expense that are taxable or deductible
in other years and it further excludes items that are never
taxable or deductible. The Group’s liability for current tax
is calculated using tax rates that have been enacted or
substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period.

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences
between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the
consolidated financial statements and the corresponding
tax base used in the computation of taxable profit. Deferred
tax liabilities are generally recognised for all taxable
temporary differences. Deferred tax assets are generally
recognised for all deductible temporary difference to the
extent that it is probable that taxable profits will be available
against which those deductible temporary differences can
be utilised. Such assets and liabilities are not recognised
if the temporary difference arises from goodwill or from the
initial recognition (other than in a business combination)
of other assets and liabilities in a transaction that affects
neither the taxable profit nor the accounting profit.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Taxation (Continued)

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable temporary
differences associated with investments in subsidiaries
except where the Group is able to control the reversal
of the temporary difference and it is probable that the
temporary difference will not reverse in the foreseeable
future. Deferred tax assets arising from deductible
temporary differences associated with such investments
and interests are only recognised to the extent that it is
probable that there will be sufficient taxable profits against
which to utilise the benefits of the temporary differences
and they are expected to reverse in the foreseeable future.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax
rates that are expected to apply in the period in which the
liability is settled or the asset realised, based on tax rates
(and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively
enacted by the end of the reporting period.

The measurement of deferred tax liabilities and assets
reflects the tax consequences that would follow from the
manner in which the Group expects, at the end of the
reporting period, to recover or settle the carrying amount
of its assets and liabilities. Current and deferred tax is
recognised in profit or loss, except when it relates to items
that are recognised in other comprehensive income or
directly in equity, in which case, the current and deferred
tax are also recognised in other comprehensive income or
directly in equity respectively. When current tax or deferred
tax arises from the initial accounting for a business
combination, the tax effect is included in the accounting for
the business combination.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Foreign currencies

In preparing the financial statements of each individual
group entity, transactions in currencies other than the
functional currency of that entity (foreign currencies) are
recorded in the respective functional currency (i.e. the
currency of the primary economic environment in which
the entity operates) at the rates of exchanges prevailing
on the dates of the transactions. At the end of reporting
period, monetary items denominated in foreign currencies
are retranslated at the rates prevailing at that date. Non-
monetary items carried at fair value that are denominated
in foreign currencies are retranslated at the rates prevailing
on the date when the fair value was determined. Non-
monetary items that are measured in terms of historical
cost in a foreign currency are not retranslated.

Exchange differences arising on the settlement of monetary
items, and on the retranslation of monetary items are
recognised in profit or loss in the period in which they
arise. Exchange differences arising on the retranslation of
non-monetary items carried at fair value are included in
profit or loss for the period except for exchange differences
arising on the retranslation of non-monetary items in
respect of which gains and losses are recognised directly
in other comprehensive income, in which cases, the
exchange differences are also recognised directly in other
comprehensive income.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Foreign currencies (Continued)

For the purposes of presenting the consolidated financial
statements, the assets and liabilities of the Group’s foreign
operations are translated into the presentation currency of
the Group (i.e. HK$) using exchange rates prevailing at
the end of each reporting period. Income and expenses
items are translated at the average exchange rates for the
year. Exchange differences arising, if any, are recognised
in other comprehensive income and accumulated in equity
under the heading of the exchange translation reserve
(attributable to non-controlling interest as appropriate).

On disposal of a foreign operation (i.e. a disposal of the
Group’s entire interest in a foreign operation), all of the
exchange differences accumulated in equity in respect of
that operation attributable to the owners of the Company
are reclassified to profit or loss.

Goodwill and fair value adjustments on identifiable assets
acquired arising on an acquisition of a foreign operation
are treated as assets and liabilities of that foreign operation
and retranslated at the rate of exchange prevailing at the
end of the reporting date. Exchange differences arising are
recognised in the exchange translation reserve.

Leasing

Leases are classified as finance leases whenever the terms
of the lease transfer substantially all the risks and rewards
of ownership to the lessee. All other leases are classified
as operating leases.

The Group as lessor

Rental income from operating leases is recognised in profit
or loss on a straight-line basis over the term of the relevant
lease.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Leasing (Continued)
The Group as lessee

Operating lease payments are recognised as an expense
on a straight-line basis over the lease term.

Leasehold land and building

When a lease includes both land and building elements,
the Group assesses the classification of each element as
a finance or an operating lease separately based on the
assessment as to whether substantially all the risks and
rewards incidental to ownership of each element have
been transferred to the Group, unless it is clear that both
elements are operating leases in which case the entire
lease is classified as an operating lease. Specifically,
the minimum lease payments (including any lump-sum
upfront payments) are allocated between the land and the
building elements in proportion to the relative fair values
of the leasehold interests in the land element and building
element of the lease at the inception of the lease.

To the extent the allocation of the lease payments can be
made reliably, interest in leasehold land that is accounted
for as an operating lease is presented as “prepaid lease
payments on land use rights” in the consolidated statement
of financial position and is amortised over the lease term
on a straight-line basis, except for those that are classified
and accounted for as investment properties under the
fair value model. When the lease payments cannot be
allocated reliably between the land and building elements,
the entire lease is generally classified as a finance lease
and accounted for as property, plant and equipment.

Retirement benefit costs

Payments to state-managed retirement benefit scheme and
the Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme are recognised
as an expense when employees have rendered service
entitling them to the contributions.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition,
construction or production of qualifying assets, which are
assets that necessarily take a substantial period of time
to get ready for their intended use or sale, are added to
the cost of those assets, until such time as the assets are
substantially ready for their intended use or sale.

All other borrowing costs are recognised in profit or loss in
the period in which they are incurred.

Government grants

Government grants that are receivable as compensation
for expenses or losses already incurred or for the purpose
of giving immediate financial support to the Group with no
future related costs are recognised in profit or loss in the
period in which they become receivable.
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CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY

In the application of the Group’s accounting policies, which
are described in Note 3, the directors of the Company are
required to make judgments, estimates and assumptions
about the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities that are
not readily apparent from other sources. The estimates and
associated assumptions are based on historical experience
and other factors that are considered to be relevant. Actual
results may differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on
an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are
recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised
if the revision affects only that period, or in the period of
the revision and future periods if the revision affects both
current and future periods.
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CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (Continued)

Critical judgement in applying the entity’s accounting
policies

The following is the critical judgement, apart from those
involving estimations (see below), that the directors of the
Company have made in the process of applying the entity’s
accounting policies and that have the most significant
effect on the amounts recognised in the consolidated
financial statements.

Legal title of land and buildings

As detailed in Notes 18, 19 and 23 respectively, certain
of the Group’s land and buildings as at 31 December
2010 had not been granted legal title from the relevant
government authorities yet. Although the Group had not
obtained the relevant legal titles, the land and buildings
were recognised in the consolidated statement of financial
position as at 31 December 2010 on the grounds that
the Group will obtain the legal title in the near future with
no major difficulties and is in substance controlling these
land and buildings. At 31 December 2011, the Group has
obtained all legal titles of the land and buildings.

Income taxes

In respect of the Hong Kong Profits Tax under inquiries by
the Hong Kong Inland Revenue Department (the “IRD”) as
mentioned in Note 11, management judgment is required
in assessing the likelihood of success in defending its
position that the income derived is non-Hong Kong sourced
and therefore, are not subject to Hong Kong Profits Tax
and no provision for profits tax is required. The provision
of income taxes is reviewed on an ongoing basis and the
management had received an advice from a tax expert
to assess the potential income taxes exposure. As at 31
December 2011, the aggregate amount of protective profits
tax assessment issued by the IRD to the Group amounting
to approximately HK$27,640,000 (2010: HK$18,890,000).
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CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (Continued)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty

The followings are the key assumptions concerning the
future, and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at
the end of the reporting period, that have a significant risk
of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of
assets and liabilities within the next financial year.

Impairment loss recognised in respect of goodwill

Determining whether goodwill is impaired requires an
estimation of the value in use of the cash-generating units
to which goodwill has been allocated. The value-in-use
calculation requires the Group to estimate the future cash
flows expected to arise from the cash-generating unit and
a suitable discount rate in order to calculate the present
value. Where the actual future cash flows are less than
expected, a material impairment loss may arise. As at
31 December 2011, the carrying amount of goodwill was
nil (net of accumulated impairment loss of approximately
HK$112,406,000) (2010: carrying amount of approximately
HK$52,355,000, net of accumulated impairment loss of
approximately HK$94,927,000). Details of impairment testing
on goodwill are set out in Note 22.

Depreciation of property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are depreciated on a
straight-line basis over their estimated useful lives, after
taking into account their estimated residual values. The
determination of the useful lives and residual values involve
management’s estimation. The Group assesses annually
the residual value and the useful life of the property,
plant and equipment and if the expectation differs from
the original estimate, such a difference may impact the
depreciation in the year and the estimate will be changed
in the future period.
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CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (Continued)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty (Continued)
Impairment loss recognised in respect of trade receivables

The Group performs ongoing credit evaluations of its
customers and adjusts credit limits based on payment
history and the customer’s current credit-worthiness, as
determined by the review of their current credit information.
The Group continuously monitors collections and payments
from its customers and maintains a provision for estimated
credit losses based upon its historical experience and
any specific customer collection issues that it has been
identified. Credit losses have historically been within the
Group’s expectations and the Group will continue to monitor
the collections from customers and maintain an appropriate
level of estimated credit losses. As at 31 December 2011,
the carrying amount of trade receivables was approximately
HK$51,447,000 (net of accumulated impairment loss of
approximately HK$4,165,000) (2010: carrying amount
of approximately HK$42,560,000, net of accumulated
impairment loss of approximately HK$7,800,000).
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CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (Continued)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty (Continued)
Impairment loss recognised in respect of other receivables

When there is objective evidence of impairment loss, the
Group takes into consideration the estimation of future cash
flows. The amount of the impairment loss is measured as
the difference between the asset’s carrying amount and
the present value of estimated future cash flows (excluding
future credit losses that have not been incurred) discounted
at the financial asset’s original effective interest rate (i.e.
the effective interest rate computed at initial recognition).
Where the actual future cash flows are less than expected,
a material impairment loss may arise. As at 31 December
2011, the carrying amounts of payments for pharmaceutical
projects and prepayments, deposits and other
receivables were nil and approximately HK$45,042,000
respectively (2010: the carrying amounts of payments for
pharmaceutical projects and prepayments, deposits and
other receivables were approximately HK$138,000 and
HK$26,497,000 (net of accumulated impairment loss of
approximately HK$3,273,000) respectively).

Write-down of inventories

The directors of the Company review an aging analysis at
the end of each reporting period, and makes allowance for
obsolete and slow-moving inventory items identified that are
no longer suitable for use in production. The management
estimates the net realisable value for finished goods based
primarily on the latest invoice prices and current market
conditions. The Group carries out an inventory review
on a product-by-product basis at end of each reporting
period and makes allowance for obsolete items. As at
31 December 2011, the carrying amount of inventories
was approximately HK$408,422,000 (net of accumulated
impairment loss of approximately HK$14,349,000) (2010:
carrying amount of approximately HK$108,968,000,
net of accumulated impairment loss of approximately
HK$4,955,000).
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CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (Continued)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty (Continued)

Estimated net realisable value of properties under
development

In determining whether allowances should be made to the
Group’s properties under development, the directors of
the Company takes into consideration the current market
environment and the estimated market value (i.e. estimated
selling price less estimated costs to sell) less estimated
costs to completion of the properties. An allowance is
made if the estimated market value is less than the carrying
amount. If the actual net realisable value on properties
under development is less than expected as a result of
change in market condition and / or significant variation
in the budgeted development cost, material provision for
impairment losses may result. As at 31 December 2011,
the carrying amount of properties under development was
nil (2010: HK$240,561,000). During the years ended 31
December 2011 and 2010, no allowance has been made.

Impairment of property, plant and equipment

The impairment loss for property, plant and equipment are
recognised for the amounts by which the carrying amounts
exceed their recoverable amounts, in accordance with the
Group’s accounting policy. The recoverable amounts of
property, plant and equipment are the greater of the fair
value less cost to sell and value-in-use. In determining the
recoverable amounts, use of estimates such as the future
revenue and discount rates is required. As at 31 December
2011, the carrying amount of property, plant and equipment
was approximately HK$63,007,000 (net of accumulated
impairment loss of approximately HK$53,965,000) (2010:
carrying amount of approximately HK$174,139,000,
net of accumulated impairment loss of approximately
HK$39,903,000).

@ CGN Mining Company Limited F EiZ &3 AR A &

4.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements 435 B #& i R iz

For the year ended 31 December 2011 £ Z2011F 128318 L FE

FESTHE RS
BEZ2FERIR (&)

A THPRZEZTERR (&)
RREFYEZ 1G5 A EHF(E

REEAEEZBERMERS
EEREBR ARAESEEREE
AMmAREEYEZEFTE
(BMEET S BRI T E KA &
HEFTER L EMEZ KA - W
E2EErmEENEREAE A
BELBME - WEBRmREL
BEPAMECERNEREBS
BERIESK,SEEERKAS
EREE - AR LA ERIE
fE I E KB - R2011F12A8
A BEFAVECZREEBAT
(20104F : 240,561,000 7T) ° 1
#H Z=20114F K%2010F12H31H
I - BIEIED (B o

W - BE R ERE

ME - BERZEZRERBETD
BEASE 2@ BERREKE
BB E A Uk B3R5 2 B e
RoME - WEREZHEZATRE
HEE - DARERBENARE
REBEzERE EETE IR
[B] £k %8 I 78 F A3 R 2R Ue & & B
I K% % IE 4 5 o FR20114F12
A31A - Mm% - BEERREBEZ
R T 1B #) 463,007,000/ 7T (B
R #953,965,00058 7T 2 & &
BB & 1) (20106 : BRE A 4
£174,139,0007% 7T (B 1 8 4
39,903,000/ 7T 2 R & &k & &
8B)) e



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements 435 B iR R M

For the year ended 31 December 2011 EZ2011F12 8318 1L FE

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (Continued)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty (Continued)
Fair value of investment properties

At the end of the reporting period, investment properties
are stated at fair value based on the valuation performed
by independent professional valuers. In determining the
fair value, the valuers have based on a method of valuation
which involves certain estimates of market conditions. In
relying on the valuation report, the directors of the Company
have exercised their judgement and are satisfied that
the assumptions used in the valuation have reflected the
current market conditions. Changes to these assumptions
would result in changes in the fair values of the Group’s
investment properties being recognised in profit or loss.
The carrying amount of investment properties measured
at fair value at 31 December 2011 was approximately
HK$76,790,000 (2010: HK$95,409,000).

Provision for compensation

Management judgment is required in assessing the
provisions made for compensation at the end of the
reporting period, which is made based on an estimation
of the anticipated claims against the Group, the merits
of the claims against the Group and the existence of any
obligation. The provision is reviewed on an ongoing basis
and is revised where appropriate.

4.

FESHHE R A THA
BEEZTERR &)

HHTHBARRZEZERR (&)
REYRZ 2 E
RREIEREE - REMETIR
B EEGEMETZHEEUA
AREVNE REEALER &
EMREZEERFESRETT
AR e MRBEERSR - K
NEEFREITEEAE HILEHR
REEFRERZBREURERE
FFmTf - 2SR 2 285351
RIERPERZAEEREE
NREZEH) - R2011F12H31
H  BARBEHEZREMER
fE {& #) 476,790,000 7T (2010
4 1 95,409,000/ 7T) °

BEERE R

B9 25 R 4 SR BT £ B O 9 £
B R BRI A MR
PHERHERRE 2 5 WA
EERY B RAR RS ERE
fEt - ISR R MRS - 3
REEBHRSET -

ANNUAL REPORT 2011 =& ——441R @



CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The Group manages its capital to ensure that entities in
the Group will be able to continue as a going concern
while maximising the return to shareholders through the
optimisation of the debt and equity balance. The Group’s
overall strategy remains unchanged from prior year.

The capital structure of the Group consists of net debt,
which includes secured bank borrowings and convertible
bonds disclosed in Notes 29 and 31 respectively, cash and
cash equivalents and equity attributable to owners of the
Company, comprising issued share capital and reserves.
The directors of the Company review the capital structure
on a regular basis. As a part of this review, the directors
of the Company consider the cost of capital and the
associated risks, and take appropriate actions to adjust the
Group’s capital structure.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

Categories of financial instruments
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES

The Group’s major financial instruments include held-for-
trading investment, trade and other receivables, bank
balances and cash, trade and other payables, convertible
bonds and secured bank borrowings. Details of these
financial instruments are disclosed in respective notes. The
risks associated with these financial instruments include
market risk (currency risk, interest rate risk and other price
risk), credit risk and liquidity risk. The policies on how to
mitigate these risks are set out below. The management
manages and monitors these exposures to ensure
appropriate measures are implemented on a timely and
effective manner.

Currency risk

The Group has transactional currency exposures. Such
exposures arise from sales or purchases by the Group in
currencies other than the entities’ functional currencies. In
addition, certain portion of bank balances and cash and
trade payables are denominated in currencies other than
the functional currency of the entity to which they relate.

The following table shows the Group’s exposure at the
end of the reporting period to currency risk arising from
transactions or recognised assets or liabilities denominated
in a currency other than the functional currency of the entity
to which they relate.
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continued)

Currency risk (Continued)

The Group currently does not have a foreign currency
hedging policy. However, the management monitors foreign
exchange exposure and will consider hedging significant
foreign currency exposure should the need arise.

Sensitivity analysis

The Group is mainly exposed to the currency risk of RMB
and USD.

The following table details the Group’s sensitivity to a 5%
(2010: 5%) increase and decrease in HK$ against the
relevant foreign currencies. 5% (2010: 5%) is the sensitivity
rate used when reporting foreign currency risk internally to
key management personnel and represents management’s
assessment of the reasonably possible change in foreign
exchange rates. The sensitivity analysis includes only
outstanding foreign currency denominated monetary items
and adjusts their translation at the end of the reporting
period for a 5% (2010: 5%) change in foreign currency
rates. A positive number below indicates a decrease in
post-tax loss (2010: increase in post-tax profit), where HK$
strengthens 5% (2010: 5%) against the relevant currency.
For a 5% (2010: 5%) weakening of HK$ against the relevant
currency, there would be an equal and opposite impact on
the profit, and the balances below would be negative.

usD
EH

2011

20115
HK$°000
FHT

i Ak & 1B

Profit or loss

14,576
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In management’s opinion, the sensitivity analysis is
unrepresentative of the inherent foreign exchange risk as
the year end exposure does not reflect the exposure during
the year.
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continued)

Interest rate risk

As at 31 December 2011, the Group is exposed to cash
flow interest rate risk in relation to its variable-rate bank
balances and is also exposed to fair value interest rate risk
in relation to fixed-rate bank deposits. The Group currently
does not have an interest rate hedging policy. However,
the management monitors interest rate exposure and will
consider other necessary actions when significant interest
rate exposure is anticipated.

As at 31 December 2010, the Group is exposed to cash
flow interest rate risk in relation to its variable-rate bank
balances and bank borrowings and is also exposed to fair
value interest rate risk in relation to fixed-rate bank deposits
and bank borrowings.

Sensitivity analysis

The Group’s exposure to interest rate risk in relation to
variable-rate bank balances and fixed-rate bank deposits is
minimal due to short-term maturities.

The sensitivity analyses below had been determined
based on the exposure to interest rates for non-derivative
instruments. The analysis was prepared assuming the
financial instruments outstanding at the end of the reporting
period were outstanding for the whole year. A 50 basis
point (2010: 50 basis point) increase or decrease was
used when reporting interest rate risk internally to key
management personnel and represents management’s
assessment of the reasonably possible change in interest
rates.

If interest rates had been 50 basis points higher / lower
and all other variables were held constant, the Group’s
post-tax profit for the year ended 31 December 2010 would
decrease / increase by approximately HK$86,000 and nil
for the post-tax loss for the year ended 31 December 2011.
This was mainly attributable to the Group’s exposure to
interest rates on its variable-rate bank borrowings.
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continued)

Other price risk

The Group is not exposed to equity price risk through its
investment in listed equity securities as at 31 December
2010. The Group’s exposure to other price risk is minimal.

Credit risk

As at 31 December 2011, the Group’s maximum exposure
to credit risk which will cause a financial loss to the
Group due to failure to discharge an obligation by the
counterparties is arising from the carrying amount of the
respective recognised financial assets as stated in the
consolidated statement of financial position.

In order to minimise the credit risk, the management of the
Group has delegated a team responsible for determination
of credit limits, credit approvals and other monitoring
procedures to ensure that follow-up action is taken to
recover overdue debts. In addition, the Group reviews
the recoverable amount of each individual trade debt at
the end of each reporting period to ensure that adequate
impairment losses are made for irrecoverable amounts.

As at 31 December 2011, the Group’s concentration of
credit risk by geographical locations is mainly in the PRC,
which accounted for 100% (2010: 100%) of the total trade
receivables. However, trade receivables consist of a large
number of customers and spread across diverse industries.
In this regard, the directors of the Company consider that
the Group’s credit risk is significantly reduced.

The credit risk on liquid funds is limited because the
counterparties are banks with high credit ratings assigned
by the international credit-rating agencies.
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (Continued)

Liquidity risk

In the management of the liquidity risk, the Group monitors
and maintains a level of cash and cash equivalents
deemed adequate by the management to finance the
Group’s operations and mitigate the effects of fluctuations
in cash flows. The management monitors the utilisation of
bank borrowings.

The following table details the Group’s remaining
contractual maturity for its non-derivative financial liabilities
based on the agreed repayment terms. The table has
been drawn up based on the undiscounted cash flows of
financial liabilities based on the earliest date on which the
Group can be required to pay. The table includes both
interest and principal cash flows. To the extent that interest
flows are floating rate, the undiscounted amount is derived
from interest rate curve at the end of the reporting period.

MEEREEERERBUR
(#)

hBEEER
REBADESERE - AEHE
EERERERBESEEAR
HRERERATEZ AT - bl
B ARE 2 2B RAERS R
BRHIPE EREEERT

BEZERER -

TERFF YA & B 1 PR 1 5 R R

RZIEMTESHBERTELE
B - TRIVEBRAEEEARE
BrmxFHEHeRBEIRER
ReneERE BENEREKS
BEME - A B REBLTEEET
B RAREEDARE RS

R 2 FRMZRFH -

Liquidity risk tables B Lz AR5l &
Weighted  Carrying
average amount Total
interest at 31 Less than 1-5 undiscounted
rate December 1 year years cash flows
in#E MM2B31H REEH
FigFIE  ZEREE 1ER 1-5% RERELE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
T T T FHETT
2011 20114
Non-derivative financial ~ ¥fT4£SRERE
liabilities
Trade and other payables — FEfTERFR K N/A 424,753 424,753 - 424,753
Hith R 3IE TEA
Convertible bonds AR ES 5.43% 467,483 - 600,000 600,000
892,236 424,753 600,000 1,024,753
2010 2010%F
Non-derivative financial ETHELRERE
liabilities
Trade and other payables — [EfTERFE N/A 46,061 45,141 920 46,061
Hib e 30a TNEHA
Bank borrowings RITIEE 5.78% 71,285 74,231 - 74,231
117,346 119,372 920 120,292
As at 31 December 2010, the amounts included above for MR2010%12/831H » ) FEF =

variable interest rate instruments for non-derivative financial
liabilities is subject to change if changes in variable interest
rates differ to those estimates of interest rates determined
at the end of the reporting period.

HAREHEARBET Z A=
BEr TR Bl BT A RE
B2 FETASBENSAEEE -
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7. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (Continued)

Fair value

The fair value of financial assets and financial liabilities are
determined as follows:

° the fair value of financial assets and financial
liabilities with standard terms and conditions and
traded in active liquid markets are determined with
reference to quoted market bid prices and ask
prices respectively; and

o the fair value of other financial assets and financial
liabilities is determined in accordance with generally
accepted pricing models based on discounted cash
flow analysis using prices from observable current
market transactions and dealer quotes for similar
instruments.

Except for other payables as disclosed in Note 32, the
directors of the Company consider that the carrying
amounts of financial assets and financial liabilities recorded
at amortised cost in the consolidated financial statements
approximate their fair values due to their immediate or
short-term maturities.
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7. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (Continued)

Fair value (Continued)

Fair value measurements recognised in the consolidated
statement of financial position

The following table provides an analysis of financial
instruments as at 31 December 2010 that are measured
subsequent to initial recognition at fair value, grouped into
Levels 1 to 3 based on the degree to which the fair value is
observable.

o Level 1 fair value measurements are those derived
from quoted prices (unadjusted) in active market for
identical assets or liabilities.

° Level 2 fair value measurements are those derived
from inputs other than quoted prices included
within Level 1 that are observable for the asset or
liability, either directly (i.e. as prices) or indirectly (i.e.
derived from prices).

o Level 3 fair value measurements are those derived
from valuation techniques that include inputs for the
asset or liability that are not based on observable
market data (unobservable inputs).

Financial assets at FVTPL BAREFAER
ZEMEE
Held-for-trading investment BIEEERE

%@%Jﬂ[‘ﬁ"éﬁ BERBEE

RiF e BRI K ERZ AAE

TRIEMH2010F12831B A F A
NABEERETEZCSHTESD
W HEERAUSAAERES
B—E= -

. —MAREFERMERE
E XA ERE BT SR
REFHEEREL -

« CBAREHE AEE
B EEE (EE) L
B (SEETE) BRTA
BARBBE  —RHE
ERERI -

. =EMRAREFTETA IR
BRERAGMSEE (&
FEREBABE) cEE
HEBERABBZGES
ERRH o

2010
20104

Level 1 Level 2 Total

1 5t
HK$’'000 HK$'000 HK$’000
FHBT FHBT FHET

- 2,173 2,173
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8. TURNOVER AND OTHER OPERATING 8. EXERHMEEWRA
INCOME
Turnover represents amount received and receivable from EEBIEFTANREE - A5
sales of pharmaceutical and food products net of returns, MBI ERERBHEE &m
discounts allowed, sales related taxes and gross rental EEmzEekrEkZFEBRLRRAS
income during the year. Revenues recognised during the WABERE o NARFEERR 2 W
year are as follows: mnF :

2011 2010
20115 20104

HK$°000 HK$'000
TR TAT

Turnover EER
Sales of goods HEEMm 367,243 323,954
Gross rental income (Note a) el Aszm (HsFa) 5,483 4,166
372,726 328,120

Other operating income H Q&R A
Bank interest income HRITFSUHA 5,911 1,544
Dividend income from held-for-trading BHIEEFRE ZIREWA

investment - 343
Exchange gain ERe 10,059 4,491
Net gain on deregistration of subsidiaries ~ HEB A TBUEZ 2 s F5a = 2,099
Gain on disposal of property, plant and HEWE  BE&

equipment Bt 2 s 11,804 -
Gain on disposal of held-for-trading HEBEEBERE 2=

investment 13 -
Government grant (Note b) AT RS (BREb) 411 -
Reversal of impairment losses recognised £l fEURBR 7k 2

in respect of trade receivables BHERRERBE = 152
Reversal of provision for compensation of #0123, 8 #HE R &

redundant staff = 1,493

Reversal of impairment losses recognised B EFEMFIA ~ 24 K&
in respect of prepayments, deposits and ~ E#bFEURIE Y

other receivables BHERRERE = 2,778
Write-back of long outstanding payables — $#[El& By 2 JE 3008 3,554 3,330
31,752 16,230

Total revenues PN 404,478 344,350
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8. TURNOVER AND OTHER OPERATING 8. EXERHMEERA
INCOME (continued) (/ff)
Notes: s
(a) An analysis of the Group’s net rental income is as follows: (a) AEBZHASWAFES T

™

Gross rental income AW AEEE 5,483 4,166
Less: Outgoings (included in cost of sales) B FREERS (R ASHERA) (931) (700)
Net rental income A WA FEE 4,552 3,466

(b) For the year ended 31 December 2011, the amount
represented an one-off government grant for the Group’s
contribution to the environmental improvement in Sichuan
Province, the PRC, in prior years.

SEGMENT INFORMATION

During the year ended 31 December 2010, the Group
was principally engaged in the selling, distributing and
manufacturing of pharmaceutical and food products and
property investment.

During the year ended 31 December 2011, a new segment
of uranium trading was introduced after the Company
entered into a framework agreement on 21 October 2011
with B ERZHEEEAR AT (CGNPC Uranium Resources
Co., Ltd) (“CGNPC-URC”) (presently known as A E#xH#R
AR ZARF (CGNPC Nuclear Fuel Co., Ltd.), a company
established in the PRC with limited liability and the sole
shareholder of China Uranium Development), in relation to
the sale of natural uranium by the Group to CGNPC-URC.
The Group’s reportable and operating segments, based
on the information reported to the chief operating decision
maker, the Chief Executive Officer, for the purposes of
resource allocation and performance assessment are as
follows:

a) pharmaceutical and food segment engages in
the selling, distributing and manufacturing of
pharmaceutical and food products;

b) property investment segment engages in leasing,
developing and selling of office premises and
residential properties; and

c) uranium trading segment engages in trading of
natural uranium resources.

No operating segments have been aggregated to form the
above reportable segments.

(b) RE 220115128318 1L
B AASBEEUNEFEAS
B R B 0|8 R IR 2 T R
HE R —RIERAHERE ©

ZJ nﬂﬁﬂ

m&izmoimﬂ3ﬂhtif
AEBFEHREHE  DHELE
3 25 u&ﬂuu%&%%&;ﬁ °

\

REZE2011F12A31HIEFE -
AAFIHEPEZMEZREGRA
Al ([PEZMEZR]) GRE[H
BRI AR AR ) (Jh— B
Bk z2EBRETAR  AFEH
EZRE M —RE) - 72011
FI0A21HE L EEAEE M
EZimEEREERARMZIESR
WEE SIABESHHE o &
EEREHRE RS IERKRIFFH
MEELBARENERENTE
BEBHE D 2 RMEREED
=R

a) 2%
A 1

b) MEREDHERE - &
BMEERANEREED
¥ K

c) HEZDEMEBERARMEIR

AEBWEBELEDILES A
A i AT sRE D o
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9. SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued)

Segment revenues and results

The following is an analysis of the Group’s revenue and

results by reportable and operating segments:

For the year ended 31 December 2011

DEEE (&)
D ER U T A

TREJNAEERRE REED
#B 2 Waas MBI

HZ2011F128318LEE

Pharmaceutical Property Uranium
and food investment trading Total
BnREm MERE HEZ et
HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$’000
THET THET THET THET
Turnover e 367,243 5,483 - 372,726
Segment loss SEbEE (215,869) (25,339) (480)  (241,688)
Other income and gains LN e 50,135
Central administration costs A &RTHAK A (32,796)
Finance costs FhE R A (10,524)
Loss before taxation B AT 18 (234,873)

For the year ended 31 December 2010

Pharmaceutical
and food

EmRRm
HK$'000
TR

BZE2010F12A31HLFE
Property Uranium
investment

MERE

HK$'000

TET

trading
e 5
HK$'000
TAT

HK$'000
TAL

Turnover BERE 323,954 4,166 - 328,120
Segment profit DEBEF 54,164 2813 - 56,977
Other income and gains HA A Rz 8,477
Central administration costs 17T HAK 7% (12,512)
Finance costs BB (779)
Profit before taxation BT AR 52,163
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9. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 9. oHWMEHR &)
Segment revenues and results (Continued) DR EREE (F)
The accounting policies of the operating segments are KED 2 G IR B3
the same as the Group’s accounting policies described in MAEE S BERAER - 5 F
Note 3. Segment (loss) / profit represents the (loss from) / (E518) /% F+E & n EbFr (BEAE
profit earned by each segment without allocation of central B8),/ WEURF - AR AR R
administration costs, directors’ salaries, other income and TBUKA - EFFHH - EMlA
gains and finance costs. This is the measure reported to M s ke ERA o It o B
the Chief Executive Officer for the purposes of resource BEREFRTEMEFENTE R
allocation and performance assessment. HIZEE
Segment assets and liabilities PHEEREE
The following is an analysis of the Group’s assets and TREVNNAEEREES B2 BEE
liabilities by operating segments: KBEST:
Segment assets PDEEE

2011 2010
20115 20104

HK$000 HK$'000
FTET FTAET

Pharmaceutical and food S REMm 191,323 435,762
Property investment LESra -} 81,205 345,394
Uranium trading HE S 391,593 -

664,121 781,156
Unallocated corporate assets INBAREE 1,280,913 90,704
Total assets BEMRE 1,945,034 871,860
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9. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 9. ZEER @)
Segment assets and liabilities (Continued) PHEEREE (&)
Segment liabilities SEEE

2011 2010
20115 20104

HK$°000 HK$'000
FER THETT

Pharmaceutical and food BONRER 34,786 66,153

Property investment LESa -} 573 216

Uranium trading HE S 391,593 -

426,952 66,369

Unallocated corporate liabilities KoBLARIAE 481,215 98,476

Total liabilities BEER 908,167 164,845

For the purposes of monitoring segment performances and MERSAEELR DB ZER

allocating resources between segments: SEmME -

. All assets are allocated to operating segments . BRIFEEERE - I
other than held-for-trading investment, income tax Fris® - iRTTEF LB S
recoverable, bank balances and cash and other URIERBIREZZEME
assets for corporate use including property, plant B BEDE BEER
and equipment and other receivables. 18 DA Ko H b g W SR IE A1 -

FIEEEUSIREZERED
& o

. All liabilities are allocated to operating segments . BRIEFMFTST - BEMAR
other than income tax payable, secured bank TEE BELEHEEE -
borrowings, deferred tax liabilities, convertible AR ESEANRE T HAMm
bonds and certain other payables. FERFRIESN - FRBAEY

DEEEKENE
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SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued)

Other segment information

2011

Pharmaceutical
and food
BERREM

HK$000
TER

9. oHER (&)
HitipEEp
2011

Uranium
trading
HES
HK$000
THx

Property
investment
HK$000
TR

Total
@t
HK$°000
THET

Unallocated
ROE
HK$°000
THT

Amounts included in the FEIBBER

measure of segment profit 2B EM

or loss or segment assets: B3t AFKE
Addition to property, plant RENE  BER

and equipment B 8,102 - - 730 8,832
Impairment loss recognised AR ERERFE

in respect of goodwil 52,355 - = - 52,355
Depreciation and amortisation  #7& K $4 10,227 249 - 38 10,514
Decrease in fair value of RENERRERD

investment property - 24,438 = = 24,438
Gain on disposal of property, HEME - BER

plant and equipment B (11,804) = = = (11,804)
Impairment loss recognised ~ #RME  BEK

in respect of property, REREESE

plant and equipment 72,001 - - - 72,001
Impairment loss recognised in - FEREIFIE

respect of trade receivables  JF{EEE 85 - - = 85
Write-down of inventories WREE 14,808 - - - 14,808
Write-off of inventories MEFE 5,957 - = = 5,957
Write-off of other receivables  #fi#5E i fE U ZvB 1,887 - - = 1,887
Write-back of long outstanding B & E& (&8

payables ER30R (3,554) - - - (3,554)
Impairment loss recognised ~ HER & AEMIE

in respect of intangible iR

assets 2,558 - - - 2,558
Research and development  #f3$pAK

costs 1,820 - - - 1,820
Operating lease rental on THREFZ

land and buildings WEHERS 1,290 - - 127 1417
Amounts regularly provided ZEHEBEEHTE

to the Chief Executive RUEREL R

Officer but not included BERIHER

in the measure of RAWEETE

segment profit or loss ZRAE

or segment assets:
Interest expense FERE = = = 10,524 10,524
Income tax credit e = = - (3,417) (3,417)
Bank interest income BRITMEBA - - — (5,911) (5,911)
Gain on disposal of held-for- ~ HEHEEERE

trading investment Wik - - = (13) (13)
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries  H & KB A 7 2 U = = = (30,599)  (30,599)
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9. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 9. EER (@)
Other segment information (Continued) Hib &R (&)
2010 20104

Pharmaceutical Property Uranium
o andfood  investment trading  Unallocated
BoLRm IS $HE 7 AAE

HK$000 ~ HK$000  HK$000  HK$'000
THT TET TET T

Amounts included in the E‘I‘%fﬁ%[fﬁﬁiﬁ
measure of segment profit 9 &
or loss or segment assets: —I' A
Addition to property, plant and fﬁ%% BE R

equipment RiE 3,042 605 - - 3,647
Addition to intangible assets /“EER BE 1,230 - - - 1,230
Impairment loss recognised REERESE

in respect of goodwill 22,569 - - - 22,569
Depreciation and amortisation 7 ka4 16,368 - - 6 16,374
Impairment loss recognised ~ HERME  BE R

in respect of property, REREEE

plant and equipment 9,702 - - - 9,702
Loss on disposal of property, ﬁ%%% WEX

plant and equipment R BE 8,064 - - - 8,064
Write-down of inventories }vhim‘f"j 41 - - - 41
Write-off of inventories MiEGE 120 - - - 120

Impairment loss recognised AT 27 -
In respect of prepayments, .J%&Hﬁﬂﬁ‘ U

deposits and other FERERE

receivables 1,724 - - - 1,724
Research and development  #FEEAAK

costs 381 - - - 381

Reversal of impairment losses 1[5 B ER 31,2
recognised in respect of EHRRESRE

trade receivables (152) - - - (152)
Reversal of provision for BOHEHERE

compensation of

redundant staff (1,493) - - - (1,493)
Reversal of impairment BEEANZUE - i

losses recognised in REMEKEY

respect of prepayments, BHERRESE

deposits and other

receivables (2,778) - - - (2,778)
Operating lease rental on T REF

land and buildings vk tiika 1,654 - - - 1,654
Write-back of long BORBAER

outstanding payables JERFIR (3,330) - - - (3,330)
Amounts regularly provided EHBEEEHTE

to the Chief Executive RUENETR

Officer but not BERIDER

included in the measure RoMEETE

of segment profit or loss ZRE
or segment assets:

Decrease in fair value of BEEEREDAE

held-for-trading investment D - - - 6 6
Loss on disposal of HETHHEREZ

available-for-sale investment 18 - - - 9 9
Interest expenses FISF% - - - 779 779
Income tax expenses TSR - - - 12,947 12,947
Bank interest income RITHISBA - - - (1,544) (1,544)
Dividend income from BIEE a#yﬁZHx g

held-for-trading investments Hﬁz)\ - - - (343) (343)

Net gain on deregistration of  HE R AIFUEZE R
subsidiaries ZUESEEE - _

(2,099) (2,099)
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10.

SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) 9.

Geographical information

No geographical information is presented as the Group’s
business is principally carried out in the PRC and the
Group’s revenue from external customers and non-current
assets are in the PRC. No geographical information
for other country is of a significant size to be reported
separately.

Information about major customers

Revenues from customer of the corresponding years
contributing over 10% of the total sales of the Group are as
follows:

EPH!

Customer A’

DEEFR @)
#3503

HRAREEXKTEAPEET
AR AR ERE R B INEEE P 2 W as
FIERBEEAKRBTE - &AL
EE2IMEER - HMBERNE
BREFR - TRARMIE DR
(EGIERT: =g =

FHREXREFZEHR

UTREEFPZBAEAEER
MEEFE N ERREB10%

2011
20114

2010
20104
HK$'000
FBTT

HK$’000
FTERT

72,101 112,643

Revenue from pharmaceutical and food segment

FINANCE COSTS

Interest expenses on:
— bank borrowings and overdrafts wholly

THBRZFEF

10.

! KEERRRRADEZHBA
L& KA

2011

20114

2010
20104
HK$'000
AT

HK$°000
TR

—ERTFRBHERZ

repayable within five years RITEBEREX 3,305 1,246
— obligations under finance leases — RVEMHE AR - 6

— imputed interest charged on convertible — — A[#A& &S 2 HEH &
bonds (Note 31) M (MI5E31) 9,217 -
— discounted bills of exchange without recourse  — 3B =4 7 BLIR[EZE 161 773
Total borrowing costs BENAREEE 12,683 2,025

Less: amounts capitalised into properties & : REEPYEIEH

under development BER(bZ B (2,159) (1,246)
10,524 779

Borrowing costs capitalised during the year arose on the
general borrowing pool and were calculated by applying
a capitalisation rate of 6.73% (2010: 5.82%) per annum to
expenditure on properties under development.

FRARB—MEBZEBEERAE
B - Wik E AL F £6.73%
(2010%F : 5.82%) sT AEERF Y
ESEEa
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1.

INCOME TAX (CREDIT) EXPENSE

11.

FrE® (E®) i

2011
20114

2010
20104
HK$'000
FAT

HK$°000
TR

PRC Enterprise Income Tax B EEFTIEH
— current year — RFEE = 15,920
— overprovision in prior years — B FEEREEE = (2,739)
= 13,181
Deferred tax (Note 33) BIERIE (FI7E33) (3,417) (234)
(3,417) 12,947

Hong Kong Profits Tax has not been provided for in the
consolidated financial statements as the Group’s income
neither arises in, nor is derived from Hong Kong.

The Hong Kong Profits Tax amounting to HK$7,791,000
of a subsidiary of the Company in respect of the years
of assessment 2000/01 to 2002/03 are under inquiries
by the IRD. The Group lodged an objection against the
assessments and the IRD had held over the payment of the
profits tax and the equal amount of tax reserve certificates
was purchased and recorded as income tax recoverable
as at 31 December 2011 and 2010.

During the year ended 31 December 2010, the IRD further
issued protective profits tax assessments of approximately
HK$5,250,000 to that subsidiary relating to the year of
assessment 2003/04, that is, for the financial year ended
31 December 2003. The Group again lodged objections
with the IRD against the protective assessments and the
IRD agreed to hold over the tax claim unconditionally.

@ CGN Mining Company Limited F EiZ &3 AR A &
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11.

INCOME TAX (CREDIT) EXPENSE (Continued)

During the year ended 31 December 2011, the IRD further
issued protective profits tax assessment of approximately
HK$8,750,000 to that subsidiary relating to the year of
assessment 2004/05, that is, for the financial year ended 31
December 2004. The Group again lodged objections with
the IRD against the protective assessments and purchased
a tax reserve certificate of approximately HK$4,000,000
during the year ended 31 December 2011 as demanded
by the IRD. The amount was recorded as income tax
recoverable as at 31 December 2011.

The directors of the Company believe that that subsidiary
has a reasonable likelihood of success in defending its
position that the income derived is non-Hong Kong sourced
and therefore, are not subject to Hong Kong Profits Tax.
Accordingly, no provision for profits tax is required.

During the year ended 31 December 2009, the IRD
issued protective profits tax assessments of approximately
HK$599,000 to another subsidiary of the Company
relating to the year of assessment 2002/03, that is, for
the financial year ended 31 December 2002. The Group
lodged objections with the IRD against the protective
assessments. The IRD agreed to hold over the tax claim
subject to the purchasing of a tax reserve certificate of
approximately HK$300,000, the Group purchased the tax
reserve certificate during the year ended 31 December
2009 as demanded by the IRD. The amount was recorded
as income tax recoverable as at 31 December 2011 and
2010.

During the year ended 31 December 2010, the IRD further
issued protective profits tax assessments of approximately
HK$5,250,000 to that subsidiary relating to the year of
assessment 2003/04, that is, for the financial year ended
31 December 2003. The Group again lodged objections
with the IRD against the protective assessments and the
IRD agreed to hold over the tax claim unconditionally.

11.

E®H (ER) XH @)

REE2011F12831B IEEE -
Fi B # — 25 512004/05:% i F /2
(BN & 2004128318 I B K
FE) MZWERGZELDRESE
F1S T 277 498,750,000/ 7T © A
SEFHAAMBRLDRERESE
IH G UREBRBER  REZE
2011F12A31AIEFEBERT
##94,000,0007 7T - BEFIELD
FLERAR2011F12A31H 2 [ Ik
EECy A

ARBEERE ZMBRAEA
BEBEBEXFRRBMERALIE
REEE  WHEBMNEENEG
B W BAEL RIS HEE

MNEZE2009F12A31B IEFE
B F2002/03 R R FE (AIE =
2002F 12 A31B BT BFE) [
KARSE—HBRRELRE
M ) 15 B RF 1 49599,000% 7T ©
REBAHEBED RGERE M
Me-BRRABEGAEEEEEEA
#)300,000/ 8 LR HE - HHEA
SEMNBEENIE ~NEEE
BBk REZE20099F12A31H
IHFEREBHARENSE - BEAK
THE 8k AR 201146 & 2010F 12
A318 2o RE S -

REE2010F12A31HLFE -
TR B H2003/04R M EE (BIEHZE
2003F12A31H LB FE) @)
ZM B A Al — PR R RE MR
S FTH 495,250,000 7T ° A&
EHX AR D R REET
W mMERERAEERGEESR
B o
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11.

INCOME TAX (CREDIT) EXPENSE (Continued)

The directors of the Company believe that that subsidiary
has a reasonable likelihood of success in defending its
position that the income derived is non-Hong Kong sourced
and therefore, are not subject to Hong Kong Profits Tax.
Accordingly, no provision for profits tax is required.

Under the Law of the PRC on Enterprise Income Tax (the
“EIT Law”) and Implementation Regulation of the EIT Law,
the tax rate of the PRC subsidiaries is 25% for both years.

One of the PRC subsidiaries obtained approval from the
relevant tax bureau and is qualified as a High and New
Technology Enterprises which was subject to a tax rate of
15% for the year ended 31 December 2010.

Certain PRC subsidiaries were either in loss-making
position for the current and the previous years or had
sufficient tax losses brought forward from previous year to
offset the estimated assessable income for the year and
accordingly did not have any assessable income for the
current and previous years.

The subsidiary operating in Macau is exempted from the
income tax in Macau for the current and previous years.

Pursuant to the laws and regulations of the Cayman Islands
and British Virgin Islands (the “BVI”), the Group is not
subject to any income tax in the Cayman Islands and the
BVI for the current and previous years.

No Australian income tax has been provided as the
subsidiaries operating in Australia had no estimated
assessable profits for the current and previous years.

CGN Mining Company Limited F EiZ &3 AR A &
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1.

INCOME TAX (CREDIT) EXPENSE (Continved)  11. Fi8% (&%) X & (&)

The income tax (credit) expense for the year can be

reconciled to the (loss) profit before taxation per the

AEEMER (BR) XhERE
Was R PR ERTLAT (B51R) i 71

consolidated income statement as follows: R0 -
2011 2010
20114 2010%F
HK$°000 HK$'000
FEx FAT

(Loss) profit before taxation AT (E58) % F (234,873) 52,163
Tax calculated at rates applicable to LEBBE AR ERR

profits in the respective tax jurisdiction A7 TR E 7§18

concerned (51,945) 13,998
Effect of tax exemption granted to a —RRPINBARERE

Macau subsidiary WiE s Ea 452 (3,851)
Tax effect of income not taxable BARBIRA Z g2

for tax purpose (8,632) (708)
Tax effect of expenses not deductible PO S H e M E

for tax purpose 16,025 6,208
Utilisation of previously unrecognised RN ARER 2 RIEEER R

tax losses and deductible ARG R = 58

temporary difference (576) (8,205)
Tax effect of tax losses and deductible RAERRETE 18 M AT 1R

temporary difference not recognised Fair =50 2 TS & 41,259 8,244
Overprovision in prior years BEFEBEEE = (2,739)
Income tax (credit) expense for the year — ZAFEFAGH (#5) il (3,417) 12,947

Details of deferred taxation are set out in Note 33.

BT AR BENIEESS ©
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12.

(LOSS) PROFIT FOR THE YEAR

(Loss) profit for the year has been arrived
at after charging:

Amortisation of intangible assets

Amortisation of prepaid lease payments
on land use rights

Auditors’ remuneration

Cost of inventories sold

Decrease in fair value of held-for-trading
investment

Depreciation of property, plant and
equipment

Impairment loss recognised in respect of
trade receivables (Note 25)

(included in administrative expenses)

Impairment loss recognised in respect of
prepayments, deposits and other
receivables (Note 25) (included in
administrative expenses)

Impairment loss recognised in respect of
intangible assets (included in
administrative expenses)

Loss on disposal of available-for-sale
investments

Loss on disposal of property, plant and
equipment

Operating lease rental on land and buildings

Research and development costs

Staff costs (including directors’ emoluments)
(Note 15)

Write-off of inventories (included in cost
of sales)

Write-down of inventories (included in cost
of sales)

Write-off of other receivables
(included in administrative expenses)

12. KAFE (FE) 55

AEE (BR) EHE kR

THIE -
B AR
54+ 1 FA TR AR S 30E
BBEES
R

FIEEERE AR ERD

M BERRETE

REKEZCREEE
(FizE25) (FFATTERFAS)

WRTENFIE « 518 MEAM
FEWFERERE
(FizE25) (FFAITERFS)

ERENEERERR
(FEATTHFX)

HER HHERE 2 EE
HEYE MENREZERER
T REFEEHERAS
T EE K AN

BTRA (BIEEEME)

(FsE15)

W FE (GTAEERA)
WoRFE (GTASERA)

MsHE A IR YRR
(FEATTBFX)

2011
20114

HK$’000

FEx

333
723

1,498
243,062

9,458

85

2,558

1,417
1,820

120,124

5,957

14,808

1,887

2010
20104
HK$'000
FAET
(RESEETe)]
(E51)

1,335
672

1,264
103,237

14,367

1,724

8,064
1,654
381
69,844

120

41
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13.

14.

DIVIDENDS

13.

No dividend was paid or proposed during the year ended
31 December 2011, nor has any dividend been proposed

since the end of the reporting period (2010: nil).

(LOSS) EARNINGS PER SHARE

14.

The calculation of the basic and diluted (loss) earnings per
share attributable to the owners of the Company is based

on the following data:

(Loss) earnings

(Loss) profit for the year attributable to
the owners of the Company for the
purposes of basic and diluted

(B1) BA

AHESRERNEE (B1R)
BNz RRBHEA A
FRIEAFEE (BHE) &

IR =

HZE201194 128318 L FE I #
BN ERRERE - MERE
HEAEEBURTERZZIRET
BB (20104F « £&) »

BR (FE) 2R

ARREBANEESRER L E#
& (B 18) B TR T BURR
=

2011
20114

2010
20104
HK$'000
F&T

HK$’000
FEx

(loss) earnings per share (229,858) 36,610
Number of shares RHEE
Weighted average number of ordinary st E&AXEAR (Ei8)

shares for the purpose of basic BN 2 E AR DR T E

(loss) earnings per share 2,229,036,061 1,551,056,993
Effect of dilutive ordinary shares in BREERE s T BREETE

respect of share options - 193,633
Weighted average number of ordinary & &AL #EE (E518)

shares for the purpose of diluted BH 7 E AR T 5

(loss) earnings per share 2,229,036,061 1,551,250,626

For the year ended 31 December 2011, diluted loss per
share was same as the basic loss per share, as the effect
of the conversion of the Company’s share options and
convertible bonds was anti-dilutive for the year ended 31
December 2011.

BRARR 2 BERE R AR E
1% 8 B =2011F 128318
ILTFEEERBEZE  HEZE
20115 12A31B L FE 2 B #
SEEEEGREREIBAR -
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15. STAFF COSTS (INCLUDING DIRECTORS’ 15. EIRA (BiEESEME)

EMOLUMENTS)

2011 2010
20114 20104
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET T

Salaries, allowances, other benefits e o R EMEF
and bonus KAEAT 60,931 62,851
Retirement benefit schemes contribution R {RAEFIEHEI 2% 4,465 6,993
Termination benefits (Note) #IEFE (MR 54,728 -
120,124 69,844

Note: Due to the expiry of food hygiene license for “Osteoform
Compound Calcium Amino Acid Chelate Food Capsules”
(“Osteoform”) and an integration of production line, the
Group had laid off excessive staff and incurred termination
benefits of approximately HK$44,228,000 during the year
ended 31 December 2011. In addition, the Group had paid
to the ex-directors for early resignation of approximately
HK$10,500,000 during the year ended 31 December 2011.

The subsidiaries in Hong Kong and Australia operate defined
contribution schemes which are available to qualified employees.
The assets of the schemes are held separately from those of
the subsidiaries in independently administered funds. Monthly
contributions made by the subsidiaries are calculated based on
certain percentages of the applicable payroll costs or fixed sums
as stipulated under the relevant requirements, as appropriate.

Pursuant to the regulations of the relevant authorities in the
PRC, the subsidiaries of the Company in this country participate
in respective government retirement benefit schemes (the
“Schemes”) whereby the subsidiaries are required to contribute
to the Schemes to fund the retirement benefits of the eligible
employees. Contributions made to the Schemes are calculated
based on certain percentages of the applicable payroll costs
as stipulated under the requirements in the PRC. The relevant
authorities of the PRC are responsible for the entire pension
obligations payable to the retired employees. The only obligation
of the Group with respect to the Schemes is to pay the ongoing
required contributions under the Schemes.

The retirement benefit schemes contribution represent gross
contributions by the Group to the Schemes operated by the
relevant authorities of the PRC and the defined contribution
schemes operated in Hong Kong and Australia.

Details of the Company’s share options granted to the employees
of the Group are set out in Note 34.

CGN Mining Company Limited F EiZ &3 AR A &

M ARIENEERERES
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16. DIRECTORS’ AND SENIOR 16. EEREREEAEZ
MANAGEMENT’S EMOLUMENTS =
(a) Directors’ emoluments (a) EEM<
The emoluments paid or payable to each of the BTSN+ (2010
seventeen (2010: nine) directors were as follows: F:NB)ESCHem
T
For the year ended 31 December 2011 BZE2011F12A31HLFE

Other emoluments
Hit#e

Salaries, Retirement
allowances  Payments benefit
and other forearly Discretionary  schemes

Fees benefits  resignation bonus contribution Total
e B R’E BINEA

we REMEN BREHE BERAL  HEER @t

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

THE  TAR TR AR TR TER

Executive directors: HITEE -
Liu James Jin' £ = 264 1,500 - 8 1,772
Xu Xiaofan' B - 264 1,500 - - 1,764
Huang Zemin' HER - 264 1,500 - - 1,764
LiKe' £ - 264 1,500 - - 1,764
Chen Zhiyu? BREF - 270 - - - 270
Guo Lin' " - 264 1,500 - 8 1,772
He Zuyuan® e - 352 - - - 352
Li Zhengguang?® FER - 297 - - - 297
Non-executive directors: 5772 % -
Zheng Xiaowei® ¢ Bl ¢ 56 - - - - 56
Yu Zhiping? FEP 74 - - - - 74
Wei Qiyan® BEER 56 - - - - 56
Chen Zhiyu? BREF 50 132 - - - 182
Independent non-executive v H/TEE
directors:
Lee Kwong Yiu' TER 80 - 1,100 - - 1,180
Lui Tin Nang' BAR 80 - 1,100 - - 1,180
Chong Cha Hwa' REE! 80 - 800 - - 880
Ling Bing?® R 44 - - - - 44
Qiu Xianhong? iy 44 - - - - 44
Huang Jinsong® Y 44 - - - - 44
608 2,371 10,500 - 16 13,495
! Resigned on 18 August 2011 1 A201148 A 18 HBHT
2 Redesignated from executive director to non-executive 2 R2011FE8 H18H BHETE
director on 18 August 2011 ERTFAEHTES
5 Appointed on 18 August 2011 8 201148 H18HEZ T
4 Redesignated from non-executive director to 4 R2012%E3 158 B IEH 1T
executive director on 15 March 2012 EEFATAHITES
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16. DIRECTORS’ AND SENIOR 16. EERSREEAE M
MANAGEMENT’S EMOLUMENTS (continued) € @)
(@) Directors’ emoluments (Continued) (a) EE#ME (&)
For the year ended 31 December 2010 HZE2010F128318IHEE

Other emoluments
Hi B
Salaries, Retirement
allowances benefit

and other  Discretionary schemes

Fees benefits bonus  contribution Total
e 2 RIEH

we  REMERN  BRETL GEER @&t

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

FAT TAT FAT FAL TAT

Executive directors: HITEE
Liu James Jin £l - 396 500 12 908
Xu Xiaofan BIR, - 396 500 - 896
Guo Lin Eif - 396 500 12 908
Chen Zhiyu RET - 396 500 - 896
Huang Zemin "ER - 396 500 - 896
Li Ke | - 396 500 - 896

Independent non-executive ~ BVHHITEE

directors:
Lee Kwong Yiu ZER 120 - - - 120
Lui Tin Nang EpN 120 - - - 120
Chong Cha Hwa RRE 120 - - - 120
360 2,376 3,000 24 5,760
Discretionary bonus for the year ended 31 B E2010F12H31H L5
December 2010 was determined with reference EZBBIATIEERER
to the Group’s operating results, individual SERERE - AKX
performance and comparable market statistics. IR A& LR T 5 R T
E o
(b)  Senior management’s emoluments (b) BEREEASZHMH
Of the five individuals with the highest emoluments rEBEGZeHFMzAEA
in the Group, all (2010: all) were directors of the T 2HHBEERFES
Company whose emoluments are set out in the (20105 : 28p) - ®BEF 2
above. & B EA L3 o

CGN Mining Company Limited F EiZ &3 AR A &
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16. DIRECTORS’ AND SENIOR 16. EENRSREEAR M

MANAGEMENT’S EMOLUMENTS (continued) cAC )

(¢) No emoluments have been paid by the Group to (c) REZE2011FK20104F
all directors of the Company or the five highest 12A31HIEFE K&
paid individuals as an inducement to join or upon B E AR R T ES
joining the Group during the years ended 31 SR EERIT AL
December 2010 and 2011. During the year ended B - YERTRSIAIA AN
31 December 2011, the Group paid approximately AREBER 2 ZE) - REZE
HK$10,500,000 (2010: nil) as compensation for 2011F12A31HILFE -
early resignation to the directors of the Company. REBDRAARARESIA
No directors of the Company waived or agreed to #710,500,000% 7T (2010
waive any emoluments during the years ended 31 F D) ERIERHR 25
December 2010 and 2011. 18 - RE Z2010%F %2011

F12A31ALFE - 8
ARABEENRLREBRK
ZEMHE -

17 INTANGIBLE ASSETS 17. BREE
Technical
know-how
BRI
HK$'000
FET
COST 2%
At 1 January 2010 20101 H1H 16,119
Exchange realignment M 5, B 540
Addition NE 1,230
At 31 December 2010 72010 12H31H 17,889
Exchange realignment I H 1,062
Derecognised on disposal of subsidiaries HEMB A RBRIHER (16,051)
At 31 December 2011 M2011512A31H 2,900
ACCUMULATED AMORTISATION AND IMPAIRMENT  R:H# 88 &R E
At 1 January 2010 201041418 13,089
Exchange realignment ME 5, B 437
Provided for the year EERHE 1,335
At 31 December 2010 72010612318 14,861
Exchange realignment M 5, B 877
Provided for the year INF SR 333
Impairment loss recognised in the year FNER BB RS 2,558
Eliminated on disposal of subsidiaries HEME QR (16,051)
At 31 December 2011 720115128318 2,578
CARRYING VALUES AREE
At 31 December 2011 M2011512A31H 322
At 31 December 2010 2010F12831H 3,028
Technical know-how has finite useful lives and are EERMABZEERAIGAF
amortised on a straight-line basis over five years. B - R E SRR -
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17. INTANGIBLE ASSETS (Continued) 17. BEEE #)
During the year ended 31 December 2011, the directors RE E2011F128318 L FE
of the Company conducted a review of the Group’s KRR EEEHNEEB CERE
intangible assets and determined that several intangible E REAEGTERRRmEMR
assets were impaired due to cessation of production of FEMEHLIERLEERE -
certain pharmaceutical and food products. Accordingly, It BB EERRREESIEL
impairment loss of approximately HK$2,558,000 (2010: nil) 2,558,000/ 7T (20104 : &) ©

has been recognised in respect of intangible assets.

18. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 18. Y% - BERRE

Furniture,

Leasehold fixtures
Landand  improve- Plant and Motor  and office
buildings ments machinery vehicles equipment Total

BENE Bh - KB
THRET % HER#ER RE RMORME Eh
HK$000 ~ HK$000  HK$000  HK$O000  HK$000  HK$000
TAT TATL TATL TATL TATL TAT

COST B

At 1 January 2010 2010F1 418 97,989 7,788 202,186 19,097 12,954 340,014
Exchange realignment 0 5 5 1675 48 5,799 593 399 8514
Additions RE 666 123 1,131 250 1,477 3,647
Disposals HeE (545) - (8,852) (5,652) (3296)  (18,345)
Transfer to investment BREEREME

properties (5,988) - - - - (5,988)
At31December 2010 RD10F12A318 93,797 7959 200,264 14,288 11534 327,842
Exchange realignment B X 3% 3,725 95 11,990 755 580 17,145
Additions NE 4,530 1,724 412 1,563 603 8,832
Disposals e (14,111) (4,770) (9,601) (3,391) (875)  (32,748)
Derecognised on HEMBAR

disposal of FHR ERER

subsidiaries (26,886) - (122677) (1,281) (2,454)  (153,208)
At 31 December 2011 R2011512A318 61,055 5,008 80,388 11,934 9,388 167,773
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18. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

(Continued)

18. W¥ - BMERRE &)

Furniture,
Leasehold fixtures
Land and

buildings

Motor and office
vehicles equipment
B KB

AE RBARE
HK$000  HK$'000
TET TET

Plant and
machinery

improve-
ments
HEW*
£
HK$'000
THT

Total

T RET
HK$'000
TR

BE R
HK$'000
TR

a5t
HK$'000
TR

ACCUMULATED R MERAE

DEPRECIATION AND
IMPAIRMENT
At 1 January 2010 #20106141H 11,622 6,648 93,624 15,175 9,930 136,999
Exchange realignment  [& 5, 5% 189 30 2,380 472 261 3,332
Provided for the year — RN HEE 3,280 492 6,724 2,386 1,485 14,367
Impairment losses BRERRERSE

recognised - - 9,702 - - 9,702
Eliminated on HER Y

disposals (74) - (2,108) (5,040) (3002)  (10,224)
Transfer to investment SR ZHEHE

properties (473) - - - - (473)
At 31 December 2010 72010F12H31H 14,544 7,170 110,322 12,993 8,674 153,703
Exchange realignment & 5 F§%& 415 61 6,096 700 383 7,655
Provided for the year ~ ZNEEEE 3,931 524 3,501 535 967 9,458
Impairment losses ERRREBR

recognised 30,886 - 40,325 35 755 72,001
Eliminated on R

disposals (2,650) (4,770) (9,334) (2,449) (590)  (19,793)
Eliminated on HERB AR

disposal of HY

subsidiaries (14,645) - (100,081) (1,186) (2,346) (118,258)
At 31 December 2011 A2011%12H31H 32,481 2,985 50,829 10,628 7,843 104,766

CARRYING VALUES  BREE

At 31 December 2011 420115128318 28,574 2,023 29,559 1,306 1,545 63,007
At 31 December 2010 72010F12H31H 79,253 789 89,942 1,295 2,860 174,139
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18. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 18. ¥ - WERRZE @)
(Continued)
The carrying values of properties shown above comprise: iy 2 BERERE
2011 2010
201145 20104
HK$°000 HK$'000
THET BT
Land in Hong Kong: REEZ T
Long lease RHEE 12,007 12,357
Medium-term lease PHITEE = 11,415
Land outside Hong Kong: REBEINZ L -
Medium-term lease PEEE 16,648 55,481
28,655 79,253
The above items of property, plant and equipment are FtiiyE  BELXEEBR IR
depreciated on a straight-line basis at the following rates BHESFRUNTERFEITE -
per annum:
Leasehold land and Over the shorter of the term of HELHE  IRHEEFHE40
buildings the lease or 40 years gx £ REE
R
Leasehold improvements  20% or over lease term, THEYMEEE 20%IZHEE
whichever is shorter FHY - PARE
Plant and machinery 2.5% to 20% BER#ZE  25%%20%
Motor vehicles 20% =] 20%
Furniture, fixtures and 10% to 27% FRffh - HEN 10%E27%
office equipment PR
Notes: B
(a) At 31 December 2011, the carrying values of the Group’s (a) R2011F12A831H » E B &
property, plant and equipment pledged as security for EEEFR ZETREEE AR
the banking facilities granted to the Group amounted to EEME BMELEHELS L
approximately HK$1,656,000 (2010: HK$62,457,000). 491,656,000 7T (20104 :

62,457,000 7T) °
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18. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
(Continued)

Notes: (Continued)

(b)

During the year ended 31 December 2010, impairment
losses of approximately HK$9,702,000 were recognised in
respect of plant and machinery, due to the possibilities of
non-renewal of import drug license of Osteoform.

During the year ended 31 December 2011, the directors
of the Company conducted a review of the Group’s
manufacturing assets and determined that a number of
property, plant and equipment were impaired, due to
the expiry of food hygiene license for Osteoform and an
integration of production line which resulted in the idleness
of certain property, plant and equipment. Accordingly,
impairment losses of approximately HK$30,886,000,
HK$40,325,000 and HK$790,000 respectively have
been recognised in respect of land and buildings, plant
and machinery and other assets, which are used in the
pharmaceutical and food segment. The directors of the
Company assessed the recoverable amounts based on
the fair values less costs to sell, determined by reference
to the market prices for similar assets.

At 31 December 2010, included in property, plant and
equipment are land and buildings with carrying amount of
approximately HK$27,949,000 which were located in the
PRC and the Group was in the process of obtaining the
building certificates. During the year ended 31 December
2011, building certificates have all been obtained.

18. M% - BERRE @)

MeE - ()

(b)

RE £2010F12831H It F
B ARAIRETNESEL )2
HEOERFME  AQRDH
R B K i 25 HE SRR B B B 4D
9,702,000/ 7T °

RE E2011F12831H It F
B AR EEREMALEEY
BEEE  RAERLNIRM
FEHAEINHEEREAS
EEGMERETYWE K
ELERERE  BEimMZEY
¥ BELEKZKEERMAE-
It ERARERERRRD
Bz MEF - BE R
AR EME E D B R
& & 48 #930,886,000/8 7T -
40,325,000/ JT 5 790,000/%
TL e ARBEEERRAEBER
E I ERAATHE R WO 5 -
T2 REREENTSE -

M2010512H318 © 5t AW
¥ BEELXEZEB AER@
B #927,949,000/8 7T 2 L it
MEF  ZETWRIEFLR
R REEEREFES
BAMEHEZEZ REZE
2011E12A31B IEFE - B
DESEEEEZ -
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19. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES 19. BREYHE

HK$'000
TAT

FAIR VALUE DRE

At 1 January 2010 201051 A1H 74,384

Transfer from land and buildings (Note 18) (Note )  ®E B T NiEF

(M¥zE18) (Fifzte) 5515

Transfer from prepaid lease payments on land ERE RS

use rights (Note e) TEMFERIE (Hate) 6,607
Net increase in fair value recognised in properties VEBEHREZEERRAE
revaluation reserve (Note e) HEINFRE (Mste) 5,723

Exchange realignment [E 5 % 3,180

At 31 December 2010 72010 12A431H 95,409

Decrease in fair value recognised in profit or loss ERERERZ A ERD (24,438)

Exchange realignment P H §E % 5,819

At 31 December 2011 20116128318 76,790

Notes: MizE -

(@  The carrying value of investment properties shown above () LAREEZREMETGCR
are situated in the PRC and held under medium-term HE - RIEREEERE -
lease.

(b)  All of the Group’s property interests held under operating (b)  AREMBRBEEHERSEMN

HEHE AN SEREZY
FRERARAERRE - I
DERNRIIWEREWE -

leases to earn rentals or for capital appreciation purposes
are measured using the fair value model and are classified
and accounted for as investment properties.

(c) 7R £ [ 3% & Y0 5 R2010F 12
A31BZ AR EHREEASE
B EBECBYIABRIREE
fHERDD) I 2R B A E TS
EBAARATE ([P ])
K PO B} B o 2= R A B 7% P
BRAR (TONERD RZ
AfETHHEEAREEFES
o R L) 2R AE
HEERRNEBAETGE
U2 R HE R - ZI(EE T
2EH R R AR 2 B
ECMIBRREETE -

(c) The fair value of the Group’s investment properties at 31
December 2010 have been arrived at on the basis of a
valuation carried out on that date by PUJI|ZZRIPEEE
MEEBAARAR (ERPE) and MIEREMERT
HEBRAAERA A (“M)IEE), independent qualified
professional valuers not connected with the Group. &%}
B¢ and P0)I|72 &l have appropriate qualifications and
recent experiences in the valuation of similar properties
in the relevant locations. The valuation was arrived at by
reference to market evidence of transaction prices for
similar properties in the same locations and conditions.

@ CGN Mining Company Limited F EiZ &3 AR A &
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19. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (Continued)

Notes: (Continued)

(d)

Due to lack of market evidence of transaction prices for
similar properties in the same locations and conditions, all
investment properties of the Group have been revalued
as at 31 December 2011 on an open market value basis
assuming sale with existing tenancies by using the income
approach by capitalising the net rental income receivable
from the existing tenancies and the reversionary rental
income potentials. The valuations were carried out by an
independent qualified professional valuer not connected
with the Group, Avista Valuation Advisory Limited (“Avista”),
who has among its staff members of the Hong Kong
Institute of Surveyors with recent experience in the location
and category of property being valued.

During the year ended 31 December 2010, the Group
transferred an office building previously classified as
property, plant and equipment and prepaid lease payment
on land use rights with carrying amounts of approximately
HK$5,515,000 and HK$6,607,000 respectively to
investment properties. The fair value of the investment
properties on the date of transfer was amounted to
approximately HK$17,845,000 which were valued by 4I|
#ZEL The valuation was arrived at by reference to market
evidence of transaction prices for similar properties in the
same locations and conditions.

At 31 December 2011, the fair value of the Group’s
investment properties pledged as security for the banking
facilities granted to the Group amounted to approximately
HK$68,585,000 (2010: HK$78,396,000).

At 31 December 2010, investment properties with fair value
of approximately HK$17,014,000 were located in the PRC
and the Group was in the process of obtaining the building
certificate. During the year ended 31 December 2011,
building certificates have all been obtained.

19. REWE &)
Mt (&)

(d)

A ER DB B b 25 Btk R 2 28
UMETIBRRE  AEE2
IR EYE (REFHREALY
#HE) O R2011E12A31H &
BEACEURAEROESF
WA RELDBERSWA - A
WAER AT EEESS -
ZhEREAEEERECE
NAEREEGEMIERT
HEAERAR ([ Em]) #
1T NEMATHETHBEHH
EMBeg8  BEIHMG
EWEMEI R EER 2 H

REE2010F12A31HIEF
B AEEBEERESROA
5,515,000/ 7t % 6,607,000
BLTBESBEAME - BE
DREBZHAZTEFRLHE
Rz EMNEEREERER
BEWE - REWEREREA
REIERHEEZ AREBEN A
17,845,000/ 7T » i HETZ
ZiEE 2 KAk Rz BB
TSR ZEBET -

R2011412A318 » EAEER
ERZBTRERAAEER
B Y%A H#968,585,0008 7T
(20104 : 78,396,000/ 7T ) °

R2010912A318 A £ &
4917,014,0008 T 2 I E W)
ETNRAFRE - NEEIEHE
FEEDNHBEHMERSE -
RE Z20115F12831H I+ F
- HERBEREERSE -
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20. PREPAID LEASE PAYMENTS ON LAND

21.

20. tiEAERESEERE

USE RIGHTS

2011 2010
20114 20104
HK$°000 HK$’000
FHT FHET

Analysed for reporting purposes as: BEAMBE DR -
Current assets REEE 366 672
Non-current assets IEREEE 19,918 32,922
20,284 33,594

The prepaid lease payments consist of cost of land use
rights in respect of land located in the PRC held under
medium term lease.

At 31 December 2011, the carrying value of the Group’s
prepaid lease payments on land use rights amounted to
approximately HK$1,457,000 (2010: HK$15,875,000) was
pledged as security for the banking facilities granted to the
Group.

DEPOSIT FOR ACQUISITION OF
PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Balance at 31 December 2010 of approximately
HK$4,063,000 (equivalent to approximately RMB3,535,000)
represented deposits paid for the acquisition of staff
quarters in the PRC. During the year ended 31 December
2011, amount of approximately HK$2,359,000 (equivalent
to approximately RMB1,935,000) has been transferred
to property, plant and equipment and HK$1,951,000
(equivalent to approximately RMB1,600,000) was
derecognised on disposal of subsidiaries.

@ CGN Mining Company Limited F EiZ &3 AR A &

21.

BNHEEFRASRRTPEER
BRRPEZ Tz - A
PR o

M2011F12831H  EAEEH
BREZIBITHMEELDERZAE
B ARBENEEREBEZE
M {8 49 A&1,457,000% st (2010
4 1 15,875,000/ 7T) °

BB BERKRREZ
El

R2010F 1231 B 2 &4
4,063,000/ (HHEERARE
3,535,0007T) FERFABIYEE T
BEXMZEE - REZE20114F
12A31H LS E - 492,359,000
BT (HEERAR1,935,000
) BEREME  BRERR
MMEWNBRARZKRIEERAB
1,951,000/ 7 (HHEERARE
1,600,0007C) °
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22.

GOODWILL

The carrying amounts of goodwill at the end of the
reporting period allocated to Vital Pharmaceutical (Sichuan)
Company Limited (“Sichuan Vital”) and Sichuan Hengtai
Pharmaceutical Company Limited (“Sichuan Hengtai”) and
its subsidiary (“Hengtai Group”) are as follows:

22. &

RREBEERKESEEM)I| 4
BYBEFRQF ([W)IER]) A
m)ExEEGR AR ([H)
B MEHNBAR ([BEHXE
) zEmEREERNT

TR

Sichuan Hengtai
Vital Group Total
791 =E=S
#ER 3L | et
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FA&T FA&T AT
COST A
At 1 January and M2010F1 H1H K
31 December 2010 201012 831H 34,876 112,406 147,282
Derecognised on disposal of & — I B A B
a subsidiary BIETER (34,876) - (34,876)
At 31 December 2011 A2011F12831H - 112,406 112,406
IMPAIRMENT AR
At 1 January 2010 M2010F1A18 34,876 37,482 72,358
Impairment loss recognised FREERREREE
in the year - 22,569 22,569
At 31 December 2010 R2010612H31H 34,876 60,051 94,927
Eliminated on disposal of B — IR B A BB T 4
a subsidiary (34,876) - (34,876)
Impairment loss recognised FANEHRBESE
in the year - 52,355 52,355
At 31 December 2011 A20115F12831H - 112,406 112,406
CARRYING VALUES BREE
At 31 December 2011 R2011512831H - - -
At 31 December 2010 2010512 431H - 52,355 52,355
Sichuan Vital )l 4B

On 30 December 2011, the Group disposed of its entire
equity interest in Sichuan Vital, at a cash consideration
of HK$52,300,000 (Note 35(d)). The goodwill which
arose from the acquisition of Sichuan Vital amounting to
HK$34,876,000 was fully impaired in prior years due to
the remote possibilities of the renewal of the import drug
license for Osteoform as considered by the directors of the
Company.

R2011E12A300 - "EEHEE
HEAW)|#R o 25#s - ]
% R B /A52,300,000% 7T (M 5%
35(d)) - ERARREERAEEN
ZHEOERAMEZSEEME
T B AR BB DY )| | M B FTEE P B
34,876,000 TERUNEFFE R
HURE °
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22.

GOODWILL (continued)

Hengtai Group

During the year ended 31 December 2011, the
management of the Group assessed the recoverable
amount of Hengtai Group with reference to the valuation
report of the Hengtai Group issued by Avista (2010: BMI
Appraisals Limited, an independent qualified professional
valuer not connected with the Group, who has among its
staff members of the Hong Kong Institute of Surveyors),
and determined that goodwill was fully impaired by
approximately HK$52,355,000 (2010: HK$22,569,000).
The impairment of the cash generating unit was mainly
attributable to the expiry of the food hygiene license (&
BTAFF A EE) for Osteoform as set out in the announcement
of the Company dated 4 August 2011. The expiry of the
food hygiene license has led to cessation of production of
Osteoform in the PRC.

The basis of calculating the recoverable amount and the
principal underlying assumptions are summarised as
below:

The recoverable amount of Hengtai Group has been
determined on the basis of value-in-use calculations. That
calculation uses cash flow projections based on financial
budgets approved by management of the Group covering
a five-year period, and discount rate of approximately 19%
(2010: 19.51%). Cash flow beyond the five-year period has
been extrapolated using a steady 3% growth rate (2010:
3%). This growth rate is based on the relevant market
growth forecasts and does not exceed the average long-
term growth rate for the relevant industry.

Other key assumptions for the value in use calculations
relate to the estimation of cash inflow/outflows which
include budgeted sales and gross margin, such estimation
is based on the unit's past performance and management’s
expectations for the market development. During the
year, as the expiry of the food hygiene license resulted
in cessation of production of Osteoform in the PRC, the
budgeted sales for the value-in-use calculation prepared
by the directors of the Company significantly decreased as
compared to prior years. Management believes that any
reasonably possible change in any of these assumptions
would not cause the aggregate carrying amount of Hengtai
Group to exceed the aggregate recoverable amount of
Hengtai Group.

CGN Mining Company Limited F EiZ &3 AR A &

22.

BE #)
EREE

® # ZE2011F12A318 1k F
B AEEEEEL2ENEH
(2010%F : F A HBFHBRA
A —EERNEEYEEE B
VYEEREEMEM HEHEH
ETABBIEMELEE) T
BREREBEMHERS  FHE
ZEBNKOSE  BETHER
81 (B 4952,355,000% 7T (2010
& 1 22,569,000/ Jr) o Mt EX IR
SBEMNRBEFETHARARTN
2011F8R4B 2 R FTE 2 %)
RMEEFIEIS - REEE
A BRI SR R REE -

A mEeRzAEEER TR
FABRRR BT

B EE A U E ¢8R FERE
BEENEET - BHTEGER
KASEEEEMZ AFHY
BEEER 2B RETE 0 &EL
[ R #4919% (20104 : 19.51%)
TE - BBSFHZBEEREMN
3% (20104 : 3%) 2 EBFHEEXR
B MERDNZMEEMHRER
BAE  BTRBEEETEN
FHEMEER -

AAEEREECEbERRRE
BRAEHEREMNZEREER
AN R 2 b AR AR
DBz BERANEEREY
MEHR 2FAHEL - RAFE
HRRmMEEFAZERHSEN
FBILLEE BARAESEHREA
At EERERECBEHERN
EFEABRE - EREREE
MERBRRNAEREES TS
EYERSE L REAEAERR
BZRKE 2 AR EFKIBARE -
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23. PROPERTIES UNDER DEVELOPMENT

23. HEHYE

2011 2010
20114 2010%F
HK$°000 HK$'000
FE T FAT
At 1 January R1A1H 240,561 -
Exchange realignment fEE i g EK 14,634 —
Additions NE 13,374 240,561
Derecognised on disposal of a & — B A B AR LEFERR
subsidiary (Note 35(b)) (FF7E35(b)) (268,569) -
At 31 December MW12A31H - 240,561
Represented by: BRTHISEES)
Prepaid lease payments on land T AR 2 BRI EIE
use rights 259,717 237,446
Construction costs and capitalised BEKRANRERMET H
expenditure 5,405 1,869
Finance costs capitalised B BhE R AR 3,447 1,246
Derecognised on disposal of a & — B A B AR LEFERR
subsidiary (Note 35(b)) (FF7E35(b)) (268,569) -
- 240,561

IWEZRRNTEFAEZLHE
Rz FRmERNT

The carrying amounts of the land use rights held for
property development in the PRC are as follows:

2011 2010

20114 20104F

HK$°000 HK$'000

FHET T

Medium-term lease rEAFRE - 23,745
Long-term lease REEE - 213,701
= 237,446

ARTEREEYEREEE 22
SHER—REERHRTMN
BN 5 B 2k IE T BN SR 5 HA RS
EE BB —FrBERE - R
201012 A31 B 2 R AW ED
BEAEB ZSHBRRSEAR
BEE -

According to the accounting policy of the Group,
properties under development at 31 December 2010 was
classified as current assets as the construction period of
the relevant property development project was expected
to be completed in the normal operating cycle even it was
expected to be recovered after one year from the end of
the reporting period.

R2010F12831H » ANEB EH
B FERERE - REZE20114F
12A31BIEFE  #RFTWED
RHE B AR R

At 31 December 2010, the Group was in the process of
obtaining the land use right certificates. During the year
ended 31 December 2011, properties under development
have been derecognised on disposal of a subsidiary.
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24. INVENTORIES 24. FE

2011 2010
20115 20104

HK$°000 HK$'000
FER TAET

Raw materials EM R

— in transit — BREF - 18,157

—on hand — F58 1,471 30,480

Work in progress R - 1,648
Finished goods Rk

—in transit — kg 391,593 -

— on hand —FE 15,099 55,183

Packing materials BEYIR 259 3,500

408,422 108,968

25. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES 25. FEURER % B b FE Wk k0l

2011 2010
20115 20104

HK$’000 HK$'000
TR TAT

Trade and bills receivables FEUBR R R FE U R 55,612 50,360
Prepayments, deposits and TENFRIE - e REMER
other receivables oI 45,020 29,770
Payments for pharmaceutical SzmnIE B R (MfEta)
projects (Note a) = 138
100,632 80,268
Less: Impairment loss recognised in W FEMER R 2 B RERR A
respect of trade receivables B8 (4,165) (7,800)
Impairment loss recognised for BRIE B Nz BE#ER
payments for pharmaceutical BEEE (FFb)
projects (Note b) = -
Impairment loss recognised in TERTEIE ~ 5T R EAM
respect of prepayment, deposits FEW IR 2 B RESRIRE
and other receivables (Note c) &8 (Fiste) = (8,273)
96,467 69,195
The Group does not hold any collateral over these RE BN B Z AR E TR
balances. #dn o
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25. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES
(Continued)

Notes:

(a)

Amounts paid for the development of technology
and pharmaceutical products are deferred prior to
completion of the projects and included in payments for
pharmaceutical projects. On completion, these amounts
are transferred to development costs in accordance with
the Group’s accounting policy. During the year ended 31
December 2011, the payments for pharmaceutical projects
have been derecognised on the disposal of subsidiaries.

At the end of each reporting period, the directors of the
Company reviewed the carrying values of the payments for
pharmaceutical projects and considered that in light of the
market conditions in the PRC, the Group had terminated
certain projects which involved high risks and ceased
on its own initiative the application of those projects of
minimal benefit, therefore accumulated impairment loss
of approximately HK$20,509,000 had been recognised in
prior years.

During the year ended 31 December 2010, the directors of
the Company considered to write off the balances which
are long outstanding and expected that the amounts were
not recoverable.

The movements in impairment loss of payments for
pharmaceutical projects were as follows:

At 1 January ®1A18
Written off b€

PR W Bl R B EL At B WK R TR

(&

fi g -

(a)

MNABE BB STAAT - BT &
BB B FT S BB Ty IR IE R
B Wat ABMEEMRIEE N2
FRIAR o RTERES + R EFHE
BRRASESTBRERER
R AR o RE E2011F12A
S1BLEFE - #R\E K
B &S B F AR L
éa\J\o
REREHEAR - ARFES
EEHNEREENRZER
B REENPRETR - A&
EEgiEpkaRk2EE -
YEBEIEBETANERH
w0 A ERAEFRERIARE
{EE1E#720,509,000/8 7T °

RE £2010F12831H I F
E - ARBIEEEEMEE R
BEX BB AT W Bl 2 FRIE
ek o

ZEmIA R FIERESEZH
T

7

2011 2010
20114 2010%F
HK$’000 HK$'000
F#&T T
= 20,509
= (20,509)

At 31 December M12A31H8
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25. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES 25.

(Continued)

Notes: (Continued)

(c) The movements in impairment loss of prepayments,
deposits and other receivables were as follows:

FEE AT B R I L it B WL R O

(%)

MeE - ()

(c)  TENFIE - FlEREMEER
RZREBRESHMT

2011 2010

20114 20104

HK$’000 HK$'000

FHExT FHT

At 1 January M A1H 3,273 4,275
Exchange realignment B 5 52 105 52
Recognised during the year FAER - 1,724
Reversal during the year FARREE - (2,778)
Eliminated on disposal of subsidiaries SR B A Bk E 8 (3,378) -
At 31 December MW12A31H8 - 3,273

At 31 December 2010, included in the impairment
loss were individually impaired prepayments, deposits
and other receivables with an aggregate balance
of HK$3,273,000 (2011: nil) which were due to long
outstanding.

The Group normally grants to its customers credit periods
ranging from 90 days to 180 days which are subject to
periodic review by management.

The following is an aged analysis of the trade and bills
receivables, based on the invoice date at the end of the
reporting period, and net of impairment loss recognised:

R2010%12A31H » B E &
BEERKIREEMERE
BEzEMNKRE: FTe hEM
JE U 3R TE A +£3,273,0007% 7T
(20115 : &) »

KEE-—MBHETFTEFTFIOKRE
180AZEEH mMEEESTEH
B EEH -

RESHBEER  LREAY
AEE. MBERRAESEE
2 8 A B 2K T L R B 5
o -

2011 2010
20115 20104

HK$000 HK$'000
TR TAT

Within 30 days 30 KA 25,795 13,755
31-60 days 31E60K 17112 18,381
61-90 days 61E90K 5,022 10,161
Over 90 days EBHEI0K 3,518 263

51,447 42,560

@ CGN Mining Company Limited F EiZ &3 AR A &
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25.

TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES

(Continued)

The movements in impairment loss of trade receivables

were as follows:

For the year ended 31 December 2011 £ ZE2011F12 8318 I FE

FEE AT B R I L it B WL R O

(%)

FEYERFORERIR 2 ZFMT

2011 2010

20114 2010%F

HK$°000 HK$'000

FEx FAT

At 1 January »1A1H 7,800 12,387
Exchange realignment ME B 252 251
Recognised during the year FAER 85 -
Reversal during the year F A = (152)
Written off i ss (3,656) (4,686)
Eliminated on disposal of subsidiaries HET B N T ¥ 5N (316) -
At 31 December R12A31H 4,165 7,800

20116124318 » FEURBR 2R
EEEEEEERAREEMER
receivables with an aggregate balance of approximately B 2 FEUBR ;A 2 494,165,000
HK$4,165,000 (2010: HK$7,800,000) which are due to long 77t (20104F : 7,800,000 7T) °
outstanding.

At 31 December 2011, included in the impairment loss
of trade receivables are individually impaired trade

20114 % 2010F 128318 -
FrB FE YRR sk A R SRR A
range of customers for whom there was no recent history of WERLZWELHARLH IR

default. FER -

At 31 December 2011 and 2010, all trade receivables
were neither past due nor impaired and related to a wide
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26.

27.

HELD-FOR-TRADING INVESTMENT

Held-for-trading investment include:
Unlisted investment in guaranteed

funds, at fair value BARE

26.

RIFEERERRE
RREESZIFLETRE

BFIEEERE
2011
20114

2010
20104
HK$'000
FAT

HK$°000
FExT

= 2,173

BANK BALANCES AND CASH

At 31 December 2011, unpledged bank balances
comprises of short-term bank deposits with original maturity
of three months or less of approximately HK$1,140,000,000
(2010: nil) and bank balance of approximately
HK$122,764,000 (2010: HK$67,908,000). Short-term bank
deposits carry fixed interest rates ranging from 1.85% to
2.45% (2010: nil) per annum and bank balances carry
interest at average market rate of 0.42% (2010: 0.29%) per
annum.

Pledged bank deposits represent deposits pledged to
banks to secure short-term banking facilities granted to the
Group in respect of bills and letter of credit facilities and
are therefore classified as current assets. The deposits
carry fixed interest rate at 0.01% (2010: ranging from 0.01%
to 1.98%) per annum. The pledged bank deposits will be
released upon the settlement of bills and letter of credit
facilities.

Bank balances and cash of the Group at 31 December
2011 included amounts of approximately HK$83,348,000
(2010: HK$62,576,000) denominated in RMB which is not
freely convertible to other currencies.

@ CGN Mining Company Limited F EiZ &3 AR A &

27.

RITEFRRS

MR2011F 128311 » BIEIFRT
RERERTEERA=EANA
2} BRSR 7717 5K #91,140,000,000
BT (20106 : T) RIRITTHETF
£122,764,000% 7T (20104 :
67,908,000/ 7T) ° %2 HAR 1T 1%
HAREEF M E N F1.85E =
245 (2010F : T) 5T B+ M
RITHEFIRFHAMSEFX0.42E
(2010%F : 0.29]E) 5T &

BEEABRITATREALAESERE
BRERBRMERGHRTRE
EERTRITZER Ao 8
ERBEE - FRIRETFEHNE
0.01/E (20104 : 0.01E Z=1.98
[B) it B - BEEBRITFEZRHBRN
B 2% R A= AiR& R o

A& B R2011F12A318 2 iR
TEEFRESBEUAARBEE
2 3R IE #)83,348,0007 7T (20104 -
6257600087T) ' EHIETFE
BEBAHEMER
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28. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES

28. ERERRAREMESRE

2011 2010
20115 20104

HK$’000 HK$'000

Tt TAT

Trade and bills payables FETBR N B 22 393,390 19,576
Accrued expenses and other payables FEETF S R E A R IR 31,532 47,572
424,922 67,148

The following is an aged analysis of trade and bills
payables presented based on the invoice date at the end
of the reporting period:

RBEEMEEER  REEFEH
Iz ENERARENRRZ
RREEDOMTEAT -

2011 2010
20115 2010%F

HK$°000 HK$'000
R TAT

Within 30 days 30K 391,821 16,448
31-60 days 31E60X 372 946
61-90 days 61E90K 4 1,797
Over 90 days BRI 1,193 385

393,390 19,576

The average credit period on purchases of goods is
30 days (2010: 30 days). The Group has financial risk
management policies in place to ensure that all payables
are settled within the credit time frame.

KEEGZFHEEHARIK
(20104 : 30K) - "EEC B
MERBRERBER - UERAA
EAFEREERANEE -
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28.

29.

TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES (Continued)

Included in accrued expenses and other payables,
there was provision for compensation claim following the
voluntary recall of one of the Group’s products “Depile
Capsules” from the market after reports of possible
damage to the liver by “Depile Capsules” were received.
Details of the particulars were set out in an announcement
dated 12 November 2008. The movement of the provision

for compensation claim is set out below:

28.

FE A B R B2 EL At B A SR TR

(&

JEETFE R EMENFRIBEIEE
BEBEES—FERFMBE]
AEEFEERKEE 2 REE -
AEBBARBETM SRR [FmR
EIMEERRBERE - BH
BN BB /R2008F 11 H12H
ZRE - BARBEEREZHHT
W

2011 2010

20114 2010%F

HK$°000 HK$'000

FEx FAT

At 1 January m1A1E 1,447 2,500
Exchange realignment bE 88 86
Settled in the year FRZA (292) (1,139)
Derecognised on disposal of a subsidiary & — B QIR & FER (1,243) -
At 31 December M12H31H = 1,447

SECURED BANK BORROWINGS

29. BEFRITEE

2011 2010
20114 20104
HK$’000 HK$'000
FEx FAT
Secured bank borrowings BEIFRITEE
Fixed-rate borrowings ELEE = 34,483
Floating-rate borrowings FEEE = 36,802
- 71,285
At 31 December 2010, the fixed-rate borrowing carried M2010F12A31H - TEEEZ

interest rate at 5.58% per annum and the floating-rate
borrowings carried interest rates ranging from 5.85% to
6.12% per annum. The secured bank borrowings were
secured by certain assets of the Group as set out in Note
38. All secured bank borrowings have been fully repaid
during the year.

CGN Mining Company Limited R EZIEE B[R QA

FHR A58 ZFEEBEZF
FER BN F585FEE6.12B -
EIRRITE B AN 38T H A%
BETEEEERT - FTEEEMR
RITIEEEAR —FREE -



29. SECURED BANK BORROWINGS (Continued)

30. SHARE CAPITAL
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The amounts of banking facilities not utilised at the end of
each reporting period are set out as follows:

29. FIEHRITEE &)

REREMRERE Z KB AR
TEREEHINAT

2011 2010
20115 20104

HK$’000 HK$'000

Facilities amount not utilised AP EREE

FHEE T

88,282 187,336

30. B&

Number of
CHETCE Amount
gl 4= &8
HK$'000
FHIT
Ordinary share of HK$0.01 each ERREEC.01E T TiE%
Authorised: JETE
At 1 January 2010, 31 December 2010, 20101818 -
31 December 2011 2010F12H318 &
2011F12H831H 50,000,000,000 500,000
Issued and fully paid: BETRER
At 1 January and 31 December 2010  72010F1H1H K&
201012 H831H 1,551,056,993 15,511
Issue of subscription shares (Note a)  Z&/TREMD (HiTa) 1,670,000,000 16,700
Exercise of share options (Note b) 1T (FisEb) 111,530,000 1,115

At 31 December 2011 M2011F12831H 3,332,586,993 33,326

Notes: BisE -

(a) On 18 August 2011, the Company issued and allotted an (a) M201148A18H + &N A 7]
aggregate of 1,670,000,000 ordinary shares of HK$0.01 & 5 R0.23% T 2 B KB
each by way of subscription at a price of HK$0.23 per BRERTAEZEEK@
share. The net proceeds of approximately HK$382,239,000 BoOTBE Lz E@BA &
after deducting related expenses of approximately 1,670,000,000/% - 0 B 48 8
HK$1,861,000 were used as additional working capital of B X 491,861,000/ ;T & * AT
the Group. 18 2078 % % #)382,239,000/8

(b) During the year ended 31 December 2011, 1,115,000
(2010: nil) new shares of HK$0.01 each in the Company
were issued at prices ranging from HK$0.23 to HK$0.51
(2010: nil) per share upon exercise of 111,530,000 (2010:
nil) share options.

All new shares issued during the year ended 31 December 2011
rank pari passu in all respects with other shares in issue.

TTREREERINEEES -

(b) M20116128318 I F & -
1,115,0000% (20104 : &) &<
DB EEC.OVE TTH RN ITE
111,530,0001 (2010%F = &)
B AR MRS IR (B IE N T & %0.23
# 7T 20.517% 7T (20109 ¢
) T o
HZE20MF12A31BIEFERT2E
A S T mEED BT EMRYD
ZHERS R o
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31. CONVERTIBLE BONDS 31. AIRRES

On 18 August 2011, the Company issued zero coupon
convertible bonds (the “CB”) in principal amount of
HK$600,000,000 to China Uranium Development. The CB is
denominated in HK$. The CB entitles the holder to convert
the CB in full or in part (in an amount of HK$1,000 and
integral multiples thereof) into the ordinary shares of the
Company at any time on or after the date of issue of the CB
up to seven days prior to the maturity date on 17 August
2016 at an initial conversion price of HK$0.23 per share,
subject to adjustments. If the CB has not been converted,
it would be redeemed on 17 August 2016 at its principal
amount.

The CB contains two components, liability and equity
elements. The equity element is presented in equity
heading “equity component of convertible bonds”. The
fair value of the liability component was calculated as
the present value of the stream of future cash flows. The
effective interest rate of the liability component is 5.43%
per annum. The movement of the liability component of the
CB during the year is set out below:

A A & H2011F8H18H A
PTRBEBRRETASEAR
600,000,000/ 7L« & B AJ R (&
H (TR RRES]) - AlRRES
B TTAHE - IR ESFEE
ERENETB®RES 2 BBk
2% EBEZEHA (2016F8817
A) Bt B 2 AF AR5 a3 ik
BEHBELH S (25 /21,0008
TRETEEE) BV SERE
HRR0.23B T (A TAR) BRA
RATEBRRG o R KR
Ak ES - B R20165F8 A
17HUAEREEEED -

mRESFPEMTS c BER
BmE D RO (AR
EHEEmBD ] BT ZEZANL
5 - BEH D ARBEURKRES
MEZRBENE 8BRS/ ZE
BX A B F F| E5.43% o T&RE
PFRATBRBEFBESH &
B :

HK$'000
TAT

Fair value at date of issue RETREBZ ARE 460,497
Transaction costs capitalised BN G A (2,231)
Imputed interest charged (Note 10) HEMSFRZ (K3E10) 9,217
At 31 December 2011 A2011F12831H 467,483

@ CGN Mining Company Limited F EiZ &3 AR A &
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32.

OTHER PAYABLES

Other payables represent the compensation payable to

former distributors for early termination of distribution
contracts after the Group acquired a subsidiary in 2008
which took up the role as a distributor for its products.

32. HiENFIE

H M JE - FRIE F5 AR &= B R 2008 4F
WEETEERS)HE HNBA
AR TR IS HE LB AT
DI 2 BEE -

2011 2010
20114 2010%F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FAT
Analysed for reporting purposes as: TERE DT A ¢

Current liabilities (included in trade nEaE Gt ARMERTR R
and other payables) HAbFET5RIE) 976 1,494
Non-current liabilities FEmEEE = 920
976 2,414

The fair value of other payables equals its carrying amount,
as the impact of discounting is not significant. The balance
would be fully settled in the year ending 31 December
2012.

HRMBEZ BN TEKR - H
R RIE 2 AR EREEREE
HE - BREBEHERBE20126F12 A
318 L FEREEN -
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33.

DEFERRED TAXATION

The followings are the major deferred tax liabilities and
assets recognised and movements thereon during the
current and prior year:

33.

Change in fair
value of land
and buildings

Accumulated
F:)

depreciation

and
investment
properties
THREF

NREEMS

Re BRI
HK$/000
AL

MRERE
HK$'000
T

i FE B 1R

AT ARAERE R85 E R
2 EBREHBEEREENR
BH%

Change in
fair value of
properties
upon transfer
to investment
properties
NEEBRZ
RENEHZ
NAEED
HK$'000
THx

Tax losses

AR
HK$'000
47

@t
HK$'000
AL

At 1 January 2010 720101 A1H 5,315 5,867 1,573 (60) 12,695
Charge to profit or loss RBHMG (132) (40) - (62) (234)
Charge to other comprehensive REMZERANR
income - - 1,431 - 1,431

Exchange realignment XA 1 202 50 - 263
At 31 December 2010 20106 12A318 5,194 6,029 3,054 (122) 14,155
Charge to profit or loss RERR 332 (3,710) - (39) (3,417)
Exchange realignment B 278 367 192 - 837
At 31 December 2011 ®20115125318 5,804 2,686 3,246 (161) 11,575

At the end of the reporting period, the Group has unused
tax losses of approximately HK$86,989,000 (2010:
HK$97,504,000) available for offset against future profits.
A deferred tax asset has been recognised in respect
of approximately HK$976,000 (2010: HK$739,000)
No deferred tax asset has been
recognised in respect of the remaining tax losses of
approximately HK$86,013,000 (2010: HK$96,765,000)
due to the unpredictability of future profit streams. At 31
December 2011, approximately HK$28,380,000 (2010:
HK$31,638,000) included in the above unused tax losses
will expire after five years from the year of assessment to
which they relate to. Other losses may be carried forward
indefinitely.

of such losses.

@ CGN Mining Company Limited F EiZ &3 AR A &

RBREHHEEER - AE@EA
8 85 K s A 2 R B A R IE
51849 586,989,000/8 7T (2010
F 1 97,504,00087L) ° BERZE
#9976,0007% 7T (20104 : 739,000
BIL) CEEREREERBEE -
FH A R B BRI SR 2 4 F SRR - i
I 4 B H #45E4Y86,013,0008 7T
(20104 : 96,765,000/ 7T)
ZBEBEERECHBEEE -
B2011F 128318 » it k%
FA#% I8 5 18 R 4928,380,000/% 7T
(2010%F : 31,638,000/87C) #5
RELE AR 2 SF B FE T B F A
[E - EfbES 1Bl PR AR AR S -
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33.

34.

DEFERRED TAXATION (cContinued)

At the end of the reporting period, the Group has
deductible temporary differences of approximately
HK$94,844,000 (2010: HK$60,370,000). No deferred tax
asset has been recognised in relation to such deductible
temporary difference as it is not probable that taxable profit
will be available against which the deductible differences
can be utilised.

Under the EIT Law, withholding tax is imposed on
dividends declared in respect of profits earned by PRC
subsidiaries from 1 January 2008 onwards. Deferred
taxation has not been provided for in the consolidated
financial statements in respect of temporary differences
attributable to accumulated profits of the PRC subsidiaries
amounting to HK$3,309,000 (2010: HK$13,448,000) as the
Group is able to control the timing of the reversal of the
temporary differences and it is probable that the temporary
differences will not reverse in the foreseeable future.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME

A share option scheme was adopted on 26 January 2002
(“2002 Share Option Scheme”). The 2002 Share Option
Scheme was replaced by a share option scheme adopted
by the shareholders on 23 July 2003 (“2003 Share Option
Scheme”).

Pursuant to an ordinary resolution passed at the annual
general meeting held on 2 June 2010, a new share option
scheme (“2010 Share Option Scheme”) was adopted and
the 2003 Share Option Scheme was terminated. Any share
options granted pursuant to the 2003 Share Option Scheme
prior to the termination will remain exercisable before the
expiration date. Details of which have been set out in the
Company’s circular dated 27 April 2010.

33.

34.

EERIE (&)

RIFERELEER  AEEEH
F0 R G B 2 B8 494,844,000 7T
(20104 : 60,370,000/ 7T) » M
AR A A] BE B FE RR A b5 I AT K 88
HA R ERE M E AR
HMRERREEEREERBEE -

RIBEFEFSTE - B200851H
1B # - B BB A R FTBREUE
TR 2 BB BB TENF - AR
AN £R B AL 12 1) B o B B A= 5 2 B
M BERREEE T AR RER A
R REE - 0 ERERE I
R BB A R ReHEFIFTE
A F& Iy 2 #83,309,0007% 7T (2010
4 : 13,448,000/ 0) 1EHEIER
TR -

B

N2 B 200241 26 B 4y —
BB ERTE) ([2002F BB A HEAH
21]) - 2002F FEBR#E T EIE B AR
B R2003F7A23B M 2 ¥ 8
BTl ([20035 BB AR AERT 2 ])
A o

1B & 7R2010F6 H2R £ 17 2 |
REFRG AR -BLTRRE
R AQRBEHEM—IBIERE
& ([2010F BE AR #7181 )) -
20034 B AR R &I B2 B4R IE ©
20034 fi# AR #E 51 &1 4% LE R BR UL %
H 2 {n] B e 4 13 B] 28 £ B A A1
T BAFERN ARG AH
2010F4 B27H Z3BIK o
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34.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued)

The board of directors of the Company may, at their
discretion, grant option to the eligible participant including
any employees, any non-executive directors, directors,
suppliers, customers, advisors, consultants, joint venture
partners and any shareholders of any members of the
Group or any invested entities or any holders of any
securities issued by any members of the Group or any
invested entities. The maximum number of shares of
the Company which may be issued upon exercise of all
options granted under its share option scheme or any
other share option scheme adopted by the Company must
not in aggregate exceed 30% of its issued share capital
of the Company from time to time. The total number of
shares which may be issued upon exercise of all options
to be granted under the 2010 Share Option Scheme and
any other share option scheme of the Group must not in
aggregate exceed 10% of the shares in issue as at the date
of passing the relevant resolution adopting the share option
scheme unless it is approved by shareholders in a general
meeting of the Company. The maximum number of shares
issuable under the options to each eligible participant
in any 12-month period is limited to 1% of the shares in
issue unless it is approved by shareholder in a general
meeting of the Company. Any grant of options under the
share option scheme to a director, chief executive or
substantial shareholder of the Company or any of their
respective associates must be approved by independent
non-executive directors (excluding any independent non-
executive director who is the grantee of the options). Any
share options granted to a substantial shareholder or an
independent non-executive director of the Company or to
any of their respective associates, in excess of 0.1% of
the shares in issue and with an aggregate value (based
on the closing price of the shares at the date of grant)
in excess of HK$5 million, in any 12-month period, are
subject to shareholders’ approval in a general meeting of
the Company.

@ CGN Mining Company Limited F EiZ &3 AR A &

34.

BRETTE (2

ARAIEEZEANEREGERKR
HERLERE BEAEEA
AR E AR RWREEE 2 M
BE - FPTTESE FF HE
BeBPBRBRAEE
BHEEBRRIAEHEEMKER
AR EEREBITIRER LR
BA e BEITERBEARRFBRKR
T B AR R FTER AN ] KA
B R i Bt B FT I B AR T AT BB
B2 ARBIRGOEE  AHEK
LRBBBARNRBTEEEHTR
A 230% o 7& B 17 {F R 52010
FHERETI RSB EMEM
B8 IR BE R B FTH% O BB AR R i 7T Ak
BT 2R BE - TEHBEM
BRESS CBRAREERB
BAHEAIE 1T ) 210% « BRIEAR
RAARR T IRE KN 3 # AIER
e RIENRADABRRASER
Rtk BAGRGERKRSHEE
R AT 1 216 A AR 95 B AR A m] 2 5%
TR BREEZREEITRG
1% o BEBEREFTEIRM A QAR
TMES TREHREZERE
AEERZACHBEATRLIBR
EVBEBIENITES (T
EEABIREARAZ BT IEH
TEE) 2 o W EM121E
AEERARRZ EEZRFELE
VIIHTEFTABRESTAZHE
ATEEZBREBRD BITR
17 20.1% K # {8 8 15,000,000
BT (BERGONEEBBRZK
MEFHE) - BIZERARFREAR
SRR FHLE -
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34.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued)

At 31 December 2011, the number of shares of the
Company in respect of which options had remained
outstanding under the schemes was 860,000 (2010:
112,390,000) representing 0.03% (2010: 7.25%) of the
shares of the Company in issue at that date.

During the years ended 31 December 2011 and 2010,
no share options were granted or cancelled. 111,530,000
(2010: nil) options were exercised and nil (2010: 2,000,000)
options were lapsed in current year.

First phase:

On 21 June 2002, options were granted to subscribe for an
aggregate of 30,000,000 shares of the Company, with an
exercise price calculated in accordance with the provisions
of the 2002 Share Option Scheme at HK$0.39 per share.
The closing price of the Company on the day immediately
preceding the offer of grant was HK$0.37 per share. Those
who were granted with the options can exercise their
rights in multiple periods starting from 16 August 2002 to 6
February 2012 as follows:

From 16 August 2002 to 6 February 2012
— approximately 6,850,000 shares

From 1 January 2003 to 6 February 2012
— approximately 8,280,000 shares

From 1 January 2004 to 6 February 2012
— approximately 6,510,000 shares

From 1 January 2005 to 6 February 2012
— approximately 8,360,000 shares

34.

BRETTE (2

MR2011F 128318 » BIEFTEI
RITE2EREMPRZAR
7 B% 19 21 B 4A860,0008% (2010
4 :112,390,0008%) * & R &
NARZBEETRMN 20.03%
(2010%F : 7.25%) °

REZE2011F &2010F12831H
LEFE BER DS EHEAE
BHE © 111,530,00017 (20104 :
T)ERERAFEITHE &
(20104 : 2,000,0001) BE % #
ERAFERK -

E—HETE

R2002F6 A21H » AR RIRH A
2 BE A ££30,000,0000% A& 2 &) Bk
D2 BB HE - 17{F5 B 1Z2002F fE
I 7 5T B & X 5T B B B 1%0.39%
Lo ARARMREBEZIEZR T
HEIRI— B 2 WM E A SR0.37%5
T o MEEEEIRAE 2 A 1 52002
F8H16H # =2012F2H6H It
HMIRA T BB HA TR S 2
)

200248 516 HE2012F2A6H
— #96,850,000%

2003F1A1BHE2012%2H6H
— #98,280,000/%

2004F1 A1HE2012F2H6H
— #96,510,0000%

2005F1 A1HZE2012F2H6H
— #98,360,000/%
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34.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued)

Second phase:

On 28 February 2003, options were granted to subscribe
for an aggregate of 19,800,000 shares of the Company,
with an exercise price calculated in accordance with the
provisions of the 2002 Share Option Scheme at HK$0.24
per share. The closing price of the Company on the day
immediately preceding the offer of grant was HK$0.21
per share. Those who were granted with the options can
exercise their rights from 1 March 2003 to any time before
expiry date on 6 February 2012.

Third phase:

On 29 September 2003, options were granted to subscribe
for an aggregate of 30,000,000 shares of the Company,
with an exercise price calculated in accordance with the
provisions of the 2003 Share Option Scheme at HK$0.51
per share. The closing price of the Company on the day
immediately preceding the offer of grant was HK$0.50
per share. Those who were granted with the options can
exercise their rights in two periods starting from 2 January
2004 to 6 February 2012 as follows:

From 2 January 2004 to 6 February 2012
— approximately 8,990,000 shares

From 2 July 2004 to 6 February 2012
— approximately 21,010,000 shares

@ CGN Mining Company Limited F EiZ &3 AR A &

34.

BIRERTE 2
BB

72003%2H28H  ARRIEEA]
R 8E A ££19,800,0008% A& 2 &) i%
12 BEAAE - 172 (B I1R20024F f#
ARG B X T E AT AR0.2478
T ARARMREERZRD
AHigI—H 2 WM EAERR0.21E
T o R EARE 2 AL AT 72003
F3A1H =2012F286H 2 & A
LIEEARIBE IR T TR S 2 R

SE=HETE

20039 H29R8 » AR AFE L
A] R B 4 30,000,000 & A 7]
I 0z AR HE - 1T B 1R2003%F
R T G X ETE A B R0.51
BIL e ARRIRNREBEEIEER
FHEBAI—Bz2RTERER
0508 7T - EREREZALA
200451 A28 # £2012F2 A
6 IR A TR D #HEA T 1R
LR

20041 2B E2012%2H6H
— #98,990,000/%

20047 A2B E2012%2A6H
— #921,010,0000%
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34.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued)

Forth phase:

On 12 September 2005, options were granted to subscribe
for an aggregate of 69,800,000 shares of the Company,
with an exercise price calculated in accordance with the
provisions of the 2003 Share Option Scheme at HK$0.23
per share. The closing price of the Company on the day
immediately preceding the offer of grant was HK$0.23
per share. Those who were granted with the options can
exercise their rights in two periods starting from 1 January
2006 to 6 February 2012 as follows:

From 1 January 2006 to 6 February 2012
— approximately 34,900,000 shares

From 1 January 2007 to 6 February 2012
— approximately 34,900,000 shares

Fifth phase:

On 29 January 2008, options were granted to subscribe
for an aggregate of 67,500,000 shares of the Company,
with an exercise price calculated in accordance with the
provisions of the 2003 Share Option Scheme at HK$0.28
per share. The closing price of the Company on the day
immediately preceding the offer of grant was HK$0.28 per
share. Those who were granted the options can exercise
their rights in two periods starting from 1 October 2008 to 6
February 2012 as below:

From 1 October 2008 to 6 February 2012
— approximately 20,250,000 shares

From 1 January 2009 to 6 February 2012
— approximately 47,250,000 shares

34.

BIRELTE (2)
SIS

R2005F9 A 128 © AR A& H
A] R B 4 69,800,000/ A& A 7]
&0 2 AR HE - 1710 B R2003%F
BT S G X EHE A B R0.23
BIL e ARAIROREBEERZR
BRI —Bz2UmERBTR
0238 - BEEREZ AL
B20065F1A1H #£ £2012F2 A
68 |FEAMZ A T MER HAf 5 b 7T
R ERER -

2006F1 A1HE2012F2H6H
— #934,900,0004%

2007F1 A1BE2012%2H6H
— #934,900,0004%

SRS -

H2008F 1829 » AARIRH A
R A 67,500,000 & A 7] i
D2 IEARHE - 172 (B 120034 i
fig 7 5 & 1§ X ET H A B AR0.2878
T ARNARMREERREERD
AHigI—H 2 Wi fE AER0.28%
TT o R 2 A LA 52008
F10A1H # £2012F 2861 1t
R T HAR o HE AT ELAE A -

200810 H1HZE2012F2 H6H
— #920,250,0004%

2009F1 A1HE2012F2H6H
— #947,250,000/%
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34. SHARE OPTION SCHEME (Continued) 34. BRESE @)
Movements of the share options during both years are set ERENMEFE BT I
out below: N

Outstanding Outstanding Outstanding
at Lapsed at31  Exercised at31  Exercise
1January duringthe  December  duringthe  December price
Date of grant 2010 year 2010 year 2011 per share
0105 0105 W1F
1A1A 12A31H 12A31H Bk
WR{TE HAR{TE AT G4
HK$
BT
Executive directors : HTES:
M. Xu Xiaofan' BIZEE 12 September 2005 15,000,000 - 15,000,000 (15,000,000) - 023
2005597128
M. Liu James Jin' e 29 January 2008 8,500,000 - 8500000 (8500,000) - 028
2008517298
Ms. Guo Lin' b v 29 September 2003 3,000,000 - 3000000 (3,000,000) - 051
200359728
29 January 2008 8,500,000 - 8500000 (8500,000) - 028
2008517298
Ex-directors : HEs:
Mr. Tao Lung? s 12 September 2005 15,000,000 - 15,000,000 (15,000,000) - 023
2005594128
Mr. Huang Jianming? HEHLL 29 January 2008 8,500,000 - 8500000 (8,500,000) - 0.28
2008517298
Mr. Shen Songaing? B 29 January 2008 8,500,000 - 8500000 (8,500,000) - 028
2008517298
Independent non-executive B (TEE :
director:
Mr. Chong Cha Hwa' FRELE 29 January 2008 1,500,000 - 1500000  (1,500,000) - 028
2008517298
Employees L 21 June 2002 330,000 - 330000  (230,000) 100,000 0.39
024564218
29 September 2003 10,260,000 - 10260000 (9500,000) 760,000 051
2003597295
12 September 2005 2,800,000 - 2800000 (2800,000) - 023
2005597128
29 January 2008 21,000,000 (2,000,000) 19,000,000 (19,000,000) - 0.28
2008517298
Other eligible participants ~ Eth&&#SHE 29 September 2003 500,000 - 500000 (500,000) - 051
2003F9A29H
29 January 2008 11,000,000 - 11,000,000 (11,000,000) - 0.28
2008517295
114,390,000 (2,000,000) 112,390,000 (111,530,000 860,000
Exercisable at the end R REEER
of the reporting period BRI 112,390,000 860,000
Weighted average METRE HK$0.29  HKS028  HKS0.29  HK$029  HKS$0.50
exercise price 0298  08Bm  029%T  029%T  050%T
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34. SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued)

35.

1

2

The directors resigned with effect from 18 August 2011.

The directors resigned with effect from 11 November 2009.
The share options held by the resigned directors remained

effective and exercisable until 6 February 2012.

In respect of share options exercised during the year, the

weighted average share price at the dates of exercise is
HK$1.34.

DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARIES

(a)

On 15 April 2011, the Group entered into sale
agreements to dispose of its 100% equity interest in
a total of nine inactive subsidiaries, to independent
third parties for total consideration of approximately
HK$206. Those disposed subsidiaries include
Vital Biotech (Hong Kong) Limited, Medhealth
International Limited, Ever Power Holdings Inc.,
Gainful Plan Limited, Beshabar Trading Limited
(BVI), Maxsun International Limited, Farthinghoe
Enterprise Limited, AMT Labs (Australia) Pty Limited
and Vitapharm Research Pty Limited. The disposal
was completed on 15 April 2011.

34.

35.

BIRESTE ()

1

ZEEREHMT - 8201148
BA18HE#EAERL

ZEEFCEE - B20094F
HAMERER - EFHTE
EEEREEEES LA T
1116 - HE E20126F2A6H A
ﬂ: °

FRNITFEZBRENTEBRZ
INHEFHEEA1.348 T -

HENB AT
(a) H2011F48158 @ ~EH

R HEWME MBI
FE=ZFTHEHENMEILE
X cHMBEBLAAZ 2
AR BERELR
2068 L mECD HE
M B o E B SRR L
m&E &) BR A A
Medhealth International
Limited * Ever Power
Holdings Inc. * Gainful
Plan Limited * Beshabar
Trading Limited (BVI) »
EHEBRARAA
Farthinghoe Enterprise
Limited + AMT Labs
(Australia) Pty Limited
Vitapharm Research Pty
Limited » #% H & %= H R
201154 A15H5ERK °
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35. DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARIES (cContinued)

(@)

(b)

(Continued)

The net assets of those disposed subsidiaries at
their respective dates of disposal were as follows:

35. HEHBAT (&)

(a) (&)
SEOHENBATRNE
fEHERBMY BEFE
mF

HK$'000
TAT

Bank balances and cash
Cumulative exchange translation reserve

Re MIRTTER 2
HEMBARER . Rt EL R

released on disposal of subsidiaries (1,627)
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries HEME AR WES 1,625
Total cash consideration BIRSRE -
Net cash inflow arising on disposal HEEAZRERAFRE
Cash consideration received FrUER IR &R AE -
Less: bank balances and cash disposed of i : FrHERITEBEIRS (2)

On 29 July 2011, KEHEREXAR AR (“KEE
%) a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company,
entered into an agreement with an independent
third party, pursuant to which X#ZE% agreed to
dispose of and the acquirer agreed to acquire the
entire equity interest of and the shareholder’s loan
owing by RKEBRT#REMEMRZEER AR (A
ST = b E”) at an aggregate cash consideration
of RMB230,609,000 (equivalent to approximately
HK$281,230,000). The disposal was completed on

16 September 2011.

@ CGN Mining Company Limited F EiZ &3 AR A &

(b) HA2011F7H298 © & R
Bl 2 AN B R KA 4
BEXBRAE ([KEE
%) BBIFE=ZHIVH
B KBMEERE
6 T W B 5 R B R AR
WA THREMERESR
RAE (DRIIEME]) %
BrERE AR R ERE
NBRERER BREABA
R #230,609,0007T (#9483
E 281,230,000/ TT) °
Z & EHN201169AH
16H5EM °
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35. DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARIES (Continued) 35. HEMBAR ®
(b)  (Continued) (b) (#&)
The net assets of )& TFEHIE at the date of disposal BIEHENREERBR
were as follows: BEFENT
HK$'000
FAT
Property under development BRFPYIHE 268,569
Amount due to holding company FERHEIR A R FIE (258,114)
Net assets disposed of FrtEEEFE 10,455
Cumulative exchange translation reserve HE—RfBEATERZ
released on disposal of a subsidiary ZEHE N G (533)
Disposal of the total indebtedness REEHBESERIEME.
owned by J&)IFEHE to the Group at REIATAEE
the date of disposal 258,114
Gain on disposal of a subsidiary HE—RM B Rz W= 13,194
Total cash consideration BIRSRE 281,230
Net cash inflow arising on disposal HEEEZBSRATE
Cash consideration received FrU IR &R 281,230
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35. DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

(c) On 25 July 2011, Sichuan Vital entered into an
agreement with an independent third party, pursuant
to which Sichuan Vital agreed to dispose of and the
acquirer agreed to acquire the entire equity interest
of R (KE) HEFR AR ("HEKHRE) at
cash consideration of RMB1,500,000 (equivalent
to approximately HK$1,829,000). The disposal was
completed on 21 September 2011.

The net assets of # B X B8 & %% at the date of
disposal were as follows:

HK$'000
TAT

35. HEMBLTR (@)
(c) R2011F7H25H + @ JI|

HEREBIE =R
OB mIERRE
& T U EE 5 B = U AR
NAIZEEMB AR HE
(B #B) REEFRAA) ([#4
B EBEIEE ) 2 2 E IR
#Exm - HEREAARKE
1,500,0007T (¥ /8 & »
1,829,000/ 7T) - #Z &
£ 18 R2011F9A21H =
ﬁJZ °

MEERMAER L E R
ZEBERENT

Property, plant and equipment M - R MR 455
Other receivables Hith e RIE 182
Bank balance and cash RITHEERRE 314
Other payables HABFERFIE (620)
Net assets disposed of FrtEEEFE 331
Cumulative exchange translation reserve HE—RfBEATERZ

released on disposal of a subsidiary LETIE N FEE (1,218)
Gain on disposal of a subsidiary HE—MEMNBAR K= 2,716
Total cash consideration BIRSRE 1,829
Net cash inflow arising on disposal HEEEZRSRAFE
Cash consideration received FrU IR &R AE 1,829
Less: bank balance and cash disposed of i : FRHERITEBREIRS (314)

1,515

@ CGN Mining Company Limited F EiZ &3 AR A &
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35. DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARIES (cContinued)

(d)

On 16 August 2011, Yugofoil Holdings Limited (d)
(“Yugofoil”) a wholly-owned subsidiary of the
Company, entered into an agreement with an
independent third party, pursuant to which Yugofoil

agreed to dispose of and the acquirer agreed to i

acquire the entire equity of Sichuan Vital at cash
consideration of HK$51,000,000. Further on 20
September 2011, Yugofoil and the acquirer entered
into a supplementary agreement for an additional
cash consideration of HK$1,300,000. The disposal
was completed on 30 December 2011.

The net assets of Sichuan Vital at the date of

disposal were as follows:

Intangible assets

35. HEMHBATR (&)

201168 H16H * KA A
ZEEANB R R ERIE
BERAR (e &
BAYE=FEMNmE &
CHERABLRE W
W B 75 [R] 2= M B P )| 4 B8
Z 2R - ReRE
51,000,000/ 7T °© BN

-

20119 H20R - e A
URRE A R]S — It T s

B HNR € X {8 51,300,000
BT e MEFHEE K201
F12A30H 5K °

)

RN EERBZE

EFEWT

HK$'000
TAT

BEE

Property, plant and equipment M - WE MR 34,585
Prepaid lease payment TERHEERIE 14,166
Deposit for acquisition of property, WEBYZE « BEMREZZS

plant and equipment 1,951
Inventories FE 7,791
Trade and other receivables JFE UK BR 2R N EL At i Y FR T8 10,562
Bank balances and cash BITHEERRE 2,590
Other payables HAbFER IR (14,138)
Net assets disposed of T EEETE 57,507
Cumulative exchange translation reserve HE—RfBEARERZ

released on disposal of a subsidiary ZETIE R (18,271)
Gain on disposal of a subsidiary HE—MNBAR K= 13,064
Total cash consideration B S RE 52,300
Satisfied by: LTSS B

Cash received 2YEIE S 16,500

Other receivable (Note) E A e UERIE (M5E) 35,800

52,300
Net cash inflow arising on disposal HEEAZRESRAFHE
Cash consideration received FrU IR &R AE 16,500
Less: bank balance and cash disposed of g : FrHERITEBREIRS (2,590)
13,910

Note:
has been subsequently settled.

The remaining cash consideration of HK$35,800,000

BEEE -

H #4357 & (835,800,000
BILTHEBEN -
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36. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

During the year, the Group has the following significant
related party transactions:

(a) A tax indemnity dated 30 January 2002 were
entered into by the then controlling shareholders of
the Company, the Company and its subsidiaries,
pursuant to which the then controlling shareholders
provide indemnities on a joint and several basis
in respect of, among other matters, taxation which
might be payable by any member of the Group
(other than those established or incorporated
subsequent to the date of the tax indemnity) in
respect of any income, profits or gains earned,
accrued or received on or before 7 February 2002.

(b) Compensation of key management personnel

The remuneration of directors of the Company and
other members of key management during the year
was as follows:

36.

BREALRS

FARNEBDHTZEREBIE
ATRZ0T

(a)

(b)

BIEARNFIERZE - A
NE) M EH B R E TR S
A H &200241A30H 2
REHEEREE 2R
7 A% % B LA R R fE Bl &
£t (B eE) AEETE
AR E ARG (TEERM
BREREEZEAHMEBAKT
sk 2 KB AR
A] 8¢ 78 X 1 B B#20024F 2
ﬂ?EljZZH' EBE - R&F
s AR Z AR dA - 3 F
s 2 IR ER

23

ag ©

TEEBASZHHE

FRARARAEZNAEME
EZEBABZMEMT

2011 2010
20115 2010%F

HK$°000 HK$'000
R TAT

Short-term benefits 5 HATE A 4,414 8,922
Termination benefits BIEF = 10,500 -
Post-employment benefits BER 212 T 58 109
14,972 9,031
The remuneration of directors of the Company and RKAFEBERTETHA

key executives is determined by the remuneration
committee having regard to the performance of
individuals and market trends.

CGN Mining Company Limited P EZIEE B[R Q7]
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37 COMMITMENTS 37. EiE
At the end of the reporting period, the Group had the RmEHEEER  ~EEBH MU
following commitments: TS
(a) Capital commitments for the acquisition of (a) WBYE BEREZHEZ
property, plant and equipment BEREE

2011 2010
20115 20104

HK$’000 HK$'000
TR TAT

Contracted but not provided for BEETH B R = 940

(b) Commitments for the properties under (b) BRERYEZRE
development

2011 2010
201145 20104

HK$°000 HK$'000
TR TAT

Contracted but not provided for EEEEES = 230
Authorised but not contracted for EREBRETH = 759,439
- 759,669
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37. COMMITMENTS (continued)

(c) Commitments under operating leases
The Group as lessor

Property rental income earned during the year was
approximately HK$5,483,000 (2010: HK$4,166,000).
The investment properties are expected to generate
rental yields of 7.14% (2010: 4.37%) on an ongoing
basis. The investment properties held have
committed tenants for the next one to four years.

At the end of the reporting period, the Group had
contracted with tenants for the following future
minimum lease payments:

37.

I ()

(c) EEASERE
AEBEREHAA
FRBEEZMERS KA

49 5,483,000/ 7T (2010
F 14,166,000/ TT) o &%
EMEEHBEEEELMNR
& U %57.14% (20104
437%) - IR EMER
BAMTR-—Z2WMF M
)5 o

RmEHEBEER A&
B e EAE PR T AR
BBz R &IEHEE MK

EIRvA=§ Ol

2011 2010
20115 2010%

HK$°000 HK$'000

FERx TET

Within one year —FR 6,511 3,236
In the second to fifth year inclusive NE_FEEZFRE

(BEEEMF) 6,271 5,974

12,782 9,210

CGN Mining Company Limited F EiZ &3 AR A &
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37. COMMITMENTS (Continued) 37. &IE #)

(c) Commitments under operating leases (Continued) (c) REHEEERE (&)
The Group as lessee ANEEEAAEA
The Group leases certain of its offices and staff AEBRESLCHERH
quarters under operating lease arrangements. HEEFRA=ZNRELR
Leases for properties are negotiated for a term <. HAYEYSETHRE
ranging from one to two years and rentals are fixed FEHN F1EE2FE > I
throughout the rental period. SHEMEHREEEE -
At the end of the reporting period, the Group had RPEHABLEER > K&
commitments for future minimum lease payments ERETO BN ELEE
under non-cancellable operating leases which fall AERTHIERIE Y R
due as follows: KERERENR -

2011 2010
20115 2010%

HK$’000 HK$'000
R TAT

Land and buildings THIREF
Within one year —FR 544 905
In the second to fifth year inclusive RE_FEERF
(RIFERMT) 590 562
1,134 1,467
38. PLEDGE OF ASSETS 38. EEEF
At the end of the reporting period, certain assets of the RmEHBEEER  ~&EEE
Group were pledged to secure banking facilities granted to FrERBRITRMEERE TEE -
the Group as follows: FEIBE

2011 2010
20115 20104

HK$’000 HK$'000
TAET TAT

Property, plant and equipment ME - WENEE 1,656 62,457
Investment properties "EYE 68,585 78,396
Bank balances and cash RITHEFERR® 678 12,138
Prepaid lease payments on land use rights {3 FARETE (0 & 208 1,457 15,875

72,376 168,866
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39. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF  39.
THE COMPANY

AR MBARR R

2011 2010
20114 20104
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET T
Non-current assets ERBEE
Plant and equipment B B 5k 705 13
Investments in subsidiaries WEBARIRE (a) 277,929 53,035
278,634 53,048
Current assets MENVE E
Inventories TE 391,593 -
Other receivables Hib gl za 4,582 144
Amounts due from subsidiaries [ NG E (b) - 381,016
Bank balances and cash IRITEHEFRIRE 1,144,788 4,811
1,540,963 385,971
Current liabilities mENBE
Trade and other payables FERBRFR R
Hih e FRIE 393,750 5,290
Amounts due to subsidiaries FERTHTE A Rl RIE (b) 148,500 128,673
542,250 133,963
Net current assets MEVEBEFE 998,713 252,008
Total assets less current liabilities BERBERRDAR 1,277,347 305,056
Capital and reserves A&7 R (et
Share capital AR AR 33,326 15,511
Other reserves H 849,953 314,098
Accumulated losses ZEtEE (73,415) (24,553)
Total equity R 4AEE 809,864 305,056
Non-current liability ERBBE
Convertible bonds Al AR ESH 467,483 -
1,277,347 305,056
Notes: 5T
(a) During the year ended 31 December 2011, investments (a) RE E2011F12A31H IEF
in subsidiaries have been increased by approximately E - WBAREEBEREARE
HK$224,894,000 by capitalising the same amount of FEWHE AR RIBEZERSRE
amounts due from subsidiaries. H#hN#9224,894,0007 7T °
(b) Amounts due from / to subsidiaries (b) FER Uk B A R 3kIE

The amounts are unsecured, non-interest bearing and
repayable on demand.

@ CGN Mining Company Limited F EiZ &3 AR A &
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40. PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES 40. EEMBEAF
Details of the principal subsidiaries held by the Company K 2 8 72011 %2010 12 A 31
as at 31 December 2011 and 2010 are as follows: BEEZ2EENBRAAFBW
™

Place of Particulars of issued
Class of shares incorporation/ Place of share capital / paid Attributable equity
Name of subsidiary held establishment  operations up registered capital  interest of the Group  Principal activities
AL,/ BRITRE/

WEAFEH BERGER  RUZBE EHIE BREMRAGS REBEERE TERH
2011 2010
2011% 20105

Direct subsidiaries:
ERNEARR:
" Ever Power Holding Inc. Ordinary shares ~ BVI BVI 2 ordinary shares of - 100%  Investment holding
LER US$1 each RERR
TREER
BREEIET
" Gainful Plan Limited Ordinary shares ~ BVI BVI 2 ordinary shares of - 100%  Investment holding
LRk US$1 each RARR
MEER
BREE1ZT
" Vital BioTech (Hong Kong) ~ Ordinary shares  Hong Kong Hong Kong 2 ordinary shares of = 100%  Investment holding
Limited Lk &% A HK$1 each REHR
MRELEY (BB) BRAA IREER
SREEAT
Yugofoil Ordinary shares ~ BVI Hong Kong 50,000 (2010: 103) 100% 100%  Investment holding
waR LER BA ordinary shares RERR
of US$1
50,000%%
(2010% : 103%%)
LRRBREEIZT
Indirect subsidiaries:
BENEAR
" Beshabar Trading Limited ~ Ordinary shares ~ BVI BVI 1 ordinary share = 100%  Investment holding
Tk of US$1 REZR
1RERR
BREEIET
Beshabar (Macao Commercial  Ordinary shares  Macau Macau 1 quota (share) 100% 100%  Trading
Offshore) Limited LiEk il B of MOP100,000 each 2%
1ERE () BERE
100,000£M7T
Beshabar Trading Limited Ordinary shares Hong Kong Hong Kong 100 ordinary shares 100% 100%  Trading
LaEk £ B of HK$1 each 25
100 EBR
SREEET
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40. PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

Name of subsidiary

HEAFEH

Indirect subsidiaries:
(Continued)
HENELF (2)

" Maxsun International Limited

" EHERERAT

Wuhan Weiao Pharmaceuticals
Co., Ltd.

#* Sichuan Vital (Note d)
)[R (i)

Wide Triumph Limited

Vital Pharmaceuticals
Company Limited

R ERE (Note o)
(Mizke)

Class of shares
held

BERGER

Ordinary shares
LRk

Contributed
capital

BAER

Contributed
capital
NV

Ordinary shares
EER

Ordinary shares
LaEk

Contributed
capital

BAER

Place of
incorporation /
establishment

R 23

Hong Kong
Bl

PRC
HE

PRC
HE

Hong Kong
B

Hong Kong
B

PRC
RE

Place of
operations

B33

Hong Kong
BB

PRC
PE

PRC
PE

Hong Kong
R

Hong Kong
BB

PRC
TE

40. FEMHBRAT (&)

Particulars of issued
share capital / paid
up registered capital
BRITRE/
HREMBRAFE

100 ordinary shares
of HK$1 each

100 EBR
BREEIET

RMB30,000,000
AE#30,000,0007T

RMBG65,000,000
AR 165,000,0007

100 ordinary shares
of HK$1 each

100ME B
BREETAT

100 ordinary shares
of HK$1 each

100 AR
SREEIET

RMB7,000,000
ARI7,000,0007C

Attributable equity
interest of the Group

AEEEGRE
2011 2010
2011 2010%

= 100%
95.70%  95.70%
= 100%

100% 100%
100% 100%

= 100%

Principal activities

EE3 3

Investment holding
RERR

Manufacturing
and trading of
pharmaceutical
products

HELEEEm

Manufacturing
and trading of
pharmaceutical
products

WENEEER

Management
services

ERRE

Manufacturing
and trading of
pharmaceutical
products

Ay

HEREEEM

Manufacturing
and trading of
pharmaceutical
products

NEREEER

CGN Mining Company Limited F EiZ &3 AR A &
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40. PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

40. FEMHBRAT (&)

Place of Particulars of issued
Class of shares incorporation/ Place of share capital / paid Attributable equity
Name of subsidiary held establishment  operations up registered capital  interest of the Group  Principal activities
HMAL BRITRE/
WEARER HERGER R 25 KB BREMBARE REEERRE TERH
2011 2010
20115 2010F
Indirect subsidiaries:
(Continued)
MEHEAR (&)
Sichuan Hengtai (Note €) Contributed PRC PRC RMB4,300,000 100% 100%  Selling and
Mm% (Mizke) capital HE HE AR#4,300,0007 distributing of
NV pharmaceutical
products
HERDHER
* EEE (Notescande)  Contributed PRC PRC RMB18,000,000 100% 100%  Property development
(Hzzcle) capital il EF AR 118,000,0007 and management
BAEK NRERRER
CRIREHE Contributed PRC PRC RMB8,000,000 - 100%  Property development
capital i EP AR 8,000,000 and management
BANER NEERRER
f I EREEERAR Contriouted PRC PRC RMB229,541,874 100% Pharmaceutical
(TmEE)) capital HE # AEH220 541 8747 research and
(Notes d and e) NV development
(KisdRe) and investment
management
EnitERRAER
#  Wholly-owned foreign enterprise ¢ OHNEBE

N Disposed of during the year ended 31 December 2011

A RAEZE20M1F12ABIEEELRE
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40. PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

Notes:

(a)

The above table lists the subsidiaries of the Group, which,
in the opinion of the directors of the Company, principally
affected the results or assets of the Group. To give details
of other subsidiaries would, in the opinion of the directors
of the Company, result in particulars of excessive length.

None of the subsidiaries had any debt securities
outstanding as at the end of the reporting period or at any
time during the reporting period.

During the year ended 31 December 2010, in accordance
with relevant shareholder meeting resolution, spin-off
agreements and regulations of modified articles of
association, a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company,
HEBAR EBBLEE is divided into the new #EEAKATRIEE and A
#BE % Registered and paid-up capital of the new #EEAK
#BEZE is reduced from RMB25,000,000 to RMB7,000,000
and the registered capital of F#E % is RMB18,000,000.
After the completion of spin-off, fX#E % and #EEAKERE
%% are wholly-owned by Sichuan Vital.

During the year ended 31 December 2011, in accordance
with relevant shareholder meeting resolution, spin-off
agreements and regulations of modified articles of
association, a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company,
Sichuan Vital, is divided into the new Sichuan Vital
and PO )I| & ¥. Registered and paid up capital of the
new Sichuan Vital is reduced from USD36,800,000 to
RMB65,000,000 and the registered capital of PUJI|EZ is
RMB229,542,000. After the completion of spin-off, PY)I| &
% is wholly-owned by Sichuan Vital. During the year ended
31 December 2011, the entire interest of Sichuan Vital has
been disposed of.

At 31 December 2011, K #BE % and Sichuan Hengtai
are in the process of obtaining the approval of change
in shareholding from Sichuan Vital to P4/l E % due to
the spin-off of Sichuan Vital during the year ended 31
December 2011.

@l‘ CGN Mining Company Limited F EiZ &3 AR A &

B 5

(a)

(c)

(d)

B

FEREB AT (&)

ERBINARREERREE
FEAREEEAREBEZAS
EEAR - EER/INHE
B AR ER < RIERR
TR e

AR E B B A R e S AR R
MR - BLEER S A 75
BEAREEBRES

REZE2010F12A31 B ILFE -
BERBRIRNEREZR 2
Wi RIS T A S 12 A
2B MR ERED SR
B e B R BB [ BB E B o
WP EP RIS Y S R AAE
AN @ A R #25 000,0007T &
Z= AR #7,000,0007T © i1 A
HEXZIMEXRABARE
18,000,0007T ° 7 #f & HF ¢
B 1% - BREBE 3 M MR A EDRY
BRI EREEHESR °

RE E2011F12A318 IFF
B REBEBABRINS AR
B ofFthe REBTAE
ERMAZHEG - ARE—
HMEENBARNIIERE
DI AF ) 4R K )l
BE - WIgRyFMEEA
& 7N #136,800,0003 7T &=
A E #65,000,0007T © ifi F4
NEBEZEMERAARE
229,542,0007T ° DL HE T
Mg )| EEHD)IEREE
BHA - RE ZE2011F128
S1IREFE  WIgERZ2
HEZDLE -

H2011F12A31H » AR #H
ZEZ2011F12A31H L FEE 2
PRSI - EBEE KM
JNIMERIERBIIRESRRER
POl BB A EE B
AE o
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41.

42.

EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

On 9 March 2012 and 23 March 2012, China Uranium
Development entered into a memorandum of understanding
and a subscription agreement with Silver Grant International
Industries Limited (“Silver Grant”) respectively. Pursuant to
the subscription agreement and upon completion of it, China
Uranium Development shall issue and Silver Grant shall
subscribe for an exchangeable bond in the principal amount
of HK$776,000,000. Subject to the right of redemption by
China Uranium Development, Silver Grant shall have the
exchange right to request China Uranium Development
to transfer to it the ordinary shares of the Company held
by China Uranium Development at an exchange price of
HK$1.41 (subject to adjustment). Details of the transaction
are set out in the Company’s announcements dated 9 March
2012, 12 March 2012 and 23 March 2012.

COMPARATIVE FIGURES

Certain comparative figures had been reclassified to
conform to current year’s presentation. The directors of the
Company consider that the separation of impairment loss
recognised in respect of property, plant and equipment of
approximately HK$9,702,000 from administrative expenses
in the consolidated income statement for the year ended 31
December 2010 is more meaningful in view of the significant
item to the Group. As the reclassification does not affect
the consolidated statement of financial position, it is not
necessary to disclose comparative information as at the
start of the comparative period (i.e. 1 January 2010).

41.

42.
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Particulars of Major Properties as at 31 December 2011

R2011FE12831 B 2 EYEFE

PROPERTIES HELD FOR INVESTMENT

Location

Office Unit Nos. 15-16

on 1st Floor to 2nd Floor and
Office Unit Nos. 1-12

on 4th Floor of an office building
known as ‘“BHIEIEH L,

No. 318 Tianfuda Road North Section,
within Gaoxin District Technology
Incubate Park
(BFREHRFEER),

Chengdu City,

Sichuan Province, the PRC

No. 3, Keyuan South Road,

High-Tech Industrial Development Zone,

Chengdu City,
Sichuan Province,
the PRC

BEREZM*

NE Type of properties Lease term
YEEE HEHR

A Office premises Medium-term lease

milE /N hEAEE

PR

TR RHE I L E R

RIFAREILRI3185%

ZR [REIEF O]

ZMAEKRE

11BE2B 2 15-165%

PNEEN AR 4E

121255

AT

A Office premises Medium-term lease
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